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Showing the way

Anticipating what lies ahead and preparing to meet new challenges
ishow we learn and grow. It is how we gain confidence about
the future. Some of these lessons we learn on our own, while others

require guidance from those we trust.

For the Power Financial Group, anticipating what lies ahead is
essential to what we do. This is why our employees
and the financial advisors who work with us develop relationships
of trust with our clients to encourage them to save and prepare

for theirfuture. This, too, we call showing the way.
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This Annual Reportisintended to
provide interested shareholders

and otherinterested persons with
selected information concerning
Power Financial Corporation.
Forfurtherinformation concerning the
Corporation, shareholders and other
interested persons should consult the
Corporation’s disclosure documents,
such asits Annual Information Form
and Management'’s Discussion and
Analysis. Copies of the Corporation’s
continuous disclosure documents can
be obtained from the Corporation’s
website at www.powerfinancial.com,
fromwww.sedar.com, or from the
Office of the Secretary at the addresses
shown at the end of this report.

Readers should also review the
notefurtherin thisreport, in the
section entitled Review of Financial
Performance, concerning the use
of Forward-Looking Statements,
which applies to the entirety of this

Annual Report.

In addition, selected information
concerning the business, operations,
financial condition, financial
performance, priorities, ongoing
objectives, strategies and outlook

of Power Financial Corporation’s
subsidiaries and associates is derived
from publicinformation published by
such subsidiaries and associates and
is provided here for the convenience
of the shareholders of Power Financial
Corporation. Forfurtherinformation
concerning such subsidiaries and
associates, shareholders and other
interested persons should consult
the websites of, and other publicly
available information published by,

such subsidiaries and associates.

The selected performance measures
shown on pages1through25are

as of December 31,2013 unless
otherwise noted.

Thefollowing abbreviations are

used throughout this report: Power
Financial Corporation (Power
Financial or the Corporation);
Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance
Company (Great-West Life & Annuity

or Great-West Financial);

Great-West Lifeco Inc.

(Great-West Lifeco or Lifeco);

Groupe Bruxelles Lambert (GBL);

IGM Financial Inc. IGM Financial

or IGM); Investment Planning

Counsel Inc. (Investment Planning
Counsel); Investors Group Inc.
(Investors Group); Irish Life Group
Limited (Irish Life); Lafarge SA (Lafarge);
London Life Insurance Company
(London Life); Mackenzie Financial
Corporation (Mackenzie or Mackenzie
Investments); Pargesa Holding SA
(Pargesa); Parjointco N.V. (Parjointco);
Power Corporation of Canada (Power
Corporation); Putnam Investments,
LLC (Putnam Investments or Putnam);
SGS SA(SGS); Suez Environnement
Company (Suez Environnement); The
Canada Life Assurance Company
(Canada Life): The Great-West Life
Assurance Company (Great-West
Life): Total SA (Total). In addition,

IFRS refers to International Financial
Reporting Standards and CGAAP
refers to previous Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles.



FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS] 2013 2012
Revenues 28,830 32,934
Operating earnings —attributable to common shareholders 1,708 1,678

Operating earnings - per common share 2.40 2.37
Net earnings - attributable to common shareholders 1,896 1,618

Net earnings - per common share 2.67 2.29
Dividends declared - per common share 1.40 1.40
Total assets 341,711 268,586
Consolidated assets and assets under management 646,303 512,854
Shareholders' equity 16,113 13,563
Total equity 27103 23,665
Book value per common share 18.78 15.95
Common shares outstanding (in millions) 711.2 709.1
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GROUP Power Financial Corporation is a diversified management and

ORGANIZATION holding company that has interests, directly or indirectly, in

CHART companies in the financial services sector in Canada, the United
States, Europe and Asia. It also has substantial holdings in a
diversified industrial group based in Europe.

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION ———

6/70%

GREAT-WEST LIFECO" ~ %0%

2013 Operating earnings attributable
to common shareholders

$2,052 MILLION
2013 Return on shareholders’ equity

15.0%
Total assets under administration
$758 BILLION
100% 100%™ 100% 100% 100% 100%
GREAT-WEST PUTNAM GREAT-WEST LONDON LIFE CANADALIFE IRISH LIFE

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS LIFE

Percentages denote [1] Representing 65% of the
participating equity interestas voting rights

at December 31, 2013 .
[2] Denotesvotinginterest.

Operating earningsisa
non-IFRS financial measure.

Return on shareholders’
equityis calculated using
operating earnings
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2013 OPERATING EARNINGS

2013 RETURN ON

CONSOLIDATED

TOTAL

ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS' ASSETS AND ASSETS UNDER ASSETS UNDER
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY MANAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION
(©)
$1,708 14.1% $646 $877
MILLION BILLION BILLION
58.6%
PARGESA"
IGM FINANCIAL
3.6% >
2013 Operating earnings available to 2013 Operating earnings
common shareholders SF251 MILLION
$764 MILLION Net asset value
2013 Return on shareholders’ equity SF8.8 BILLION
17.3%
Total assets under management
$132BILLION
100% 100% 975% 50.0%"
INVESTORS MACKENZIE INP\L/E'S\ITNITINEET GROUPE
GROUP INVESTMENTS COUNSEL BRUXELLES LAMBERT
IMERYS LAFARGE
56.2% 21.0%
TOTAL GDF SUEZ
3.6% 2.4%
[3] Throughitswholly owned [4] Representing 52% of the
subsidiary, Power Financial voting rights. EN\/\RONNSEHEENZT PERNOD RICARD
E P Fi ial [¢)
Pelda o nerestin 7.2% 5%
Parjointco. Parjointco held a
voting interest of 75.4% and —
anequity interest of 55.6%
inPargesa. SGS
15.0%
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DIRECTORS REPORT
TO SHAREHOLDERS

Power Financial and its subsidiaries experienced positive momentum across many parts
of their business in 2013, contributing to an elevated sense of optimism for the future,
Increased earnings from financial services were driven by higher product sales and strong
financial market conditions. Sales of investment and insurance products increased
through most distribution channels, driven by company strategies and actions, as well
as increased consumer and business confidence in the geographies where we operate.

For the first time since the financial crisis began, the Power Financial group made a
significant acquisition in the financial services industry, with Great-West Lifeco's €1.3 billion
purchase of Irish Life in July 2013. The acquisition establishes the group as the leading
insurance company in Ireland and is expected to be accretive to Power Financial and
Great-West Lifeco.
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Senior leadership transition occurred at each of the
Corporation’s principal subsidiaries during 2013. Mr. Paul
Mahon was appointed President and Chief Executive
Officer of Great-West Lifeco Inc. and Mr. Jeffrey Carney
was appointed Co-President and Chief Executive Officer of
IGM Financial Inc. and President and Chief Executive Officer
of Mackenzie Financial Corporation. The management
teams across the group are fully engaged in developing and
implementing strategies to meet the needs of their clients
and distribution partners well into the future, through
innovation, product and service excellence and value

to customers.

Core to the businesses of our companies is the ability to
honour the promises they make to clients over the long
term, whichiitself is a function of financial strength and
responsible governance. This is why our group companies
have maintained their prudent approach to balance sheet
management and a strong risk-management culture over
many years. This is evident in the maintenance of solid

credit ratings across our group.

Our governanceis rootedinalong-term perspective, and
focuses upon key factors such as strategy, people, capital
and risk. We oversee our principal investments through
boards of directors comprising a mix of experienced
individuals both from within our group and from

the outside.

Our companies also have along and proud history
of contributing to the well-being of the communities
in which they operate. The principles underlying our

approach in this area are outlined later in this report under

“Responsible Management.”

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Power Financial's operating earnings attributable to
common shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2013
were $1,708 million or $2.40 per share, compared with

$1,678 million or $2.37 per share in 2012.

Otheritems represented a contribution of $188 million in

2013, compared with a charge of $60 million in 2012.

Net earnings attributable to common shareholders,
including otheritems, were $1,896 million or $2.67 per share,

compared with $1,618 million or $2.29 per share in 2012.

Dividends declared by Power Financial totalled

$1.40 per common share in 2013, unchanged from 2012.

RESULTS OF GROUP COMPANIES

GREAT-WEST LIFECO

Great-West Lifeco’s operating earnings attributable to
common shareholders, a non-IFRS financial measure,
were $2.1billion or $2.108 per share in 2013, compared with
$1.9 billion or $2.049 per share in 2012.
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

Great-West Lifeco’s return on equity (ROE) of 15.0 per cent
on operating earnings and16.6 per cent on net earnings for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 continued to

rankamong the strongest in the financial services sector.

Other measures of Great-West Lifeco's performance

in 2013 include:

> Premiumsand deposits of $74.8 billion, compared with

$60.2 billion in 2012.

> Anincreasein general fund and segregated fund assets

from $253.9 billion in 2012 to $325.9 billion in 2013.

> Totalassets underadministration at December 31, 2013
of $758 billion, compared with $546 billion twelve

monthsago.

Dividends declared on Great-West Lifeco's common shares

were $1.23in 2013, unchanged from the prior year.

Great-West Lifeco’'s companies benefit from prudent and
conservative investment policies and practices with
respect to the management of their consolidated assets.
Its conservative product underwriting standards and
disciplined approach tointroducing new products have
proved beneficial for the company and its subsidiaries

over the long term. Also, Great-West Lifeco’s approach to
assetand liability management has minimized exposure to
interest rate movements. The company continues to offer
segregated fund guaranteesin a prudent and disciplined
manner, thereby limiting its risk exposure. As a result,
Creat-West Lifeco’s balance sheet is one of the strongestin

theindustry.
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The Minimum Continuing Capital and Surplus
Requirements (MCCSR) ratio for Great-West Life was

223 per centona consolidated basis at December 31, 2013.
This measure of capital strengthis slightly higher than the
upper end of Great-West Life's target operating range of

175215 per cent.

In Canada, Great-West Lifeco's companies maintained
leading market positions in 2013 in their individual and
group businesses, and experienced strong organic growth.
This was achieved by focusing on three broad goals:
improving products and services for clients and advisors,
maintaining strong financial discipline, and improving tools,
information and processes to enable greater productivity

and effectiveness.

The group retirement services business recorded strong
growth, the group insurance business had strong sales

in all segments while continuing to experience excellent
persistency, and individual segregated fund and mutual
fund businesses maintained positive net cash flows.
Individual insurance sales in Canada remained constant
and sales of proprietary retail investment funds increased

4.9 per centyear over year.

The Canadian operations offer group retirement and savings
plans that are tailored to the unique needs of small, medium
and large businesses and organizations. Group capital
accumulation plans are a core business for Great-West Life.
Providing an engaging experience forits plan members

continues to be a top priority for this business.



Together, Great-West Lifeco’s subsidiaries Great-West Life,
London Life and Canada Life remain Canada’s number one
provider of individual insurance solutions. From term,
universal and participating life insurance to individual
disability and critical illness insurance, their broad range
of products gives advisors choice and flexibility in meeting

clients'diverse individual needs.

In the United States, Great-West Life & Annuity's new
Great-West Financial® brand and the various initiatives of
the company’s five-year strategic plan contributed to solid

growth in 2013.

Ina survey conducted by Plan Adviser magazine, 401(k) plan
advisors voted Great-West Financial No.1in best value for

price and best wholesalers.

Improved name recognition combined with strategic
initiatives contributed to a 39 per centincrease in sales

in 2013 over the previous year. The company experienced
strong momentum inits deferred contribution retirement
business, its Individual Retirement Account businessand in

its annuity sales through institutional partners.

Putnam’s assets under management ended 2013 at
US$150 billion, reflecting strong market conditions and

sales momentum from several key product offerings.

In 2013, Putnam continued its focus on investment
performance and innovation, highlighted by the

introduction of six new funds to pursue new drivers of

return, innovative income solutions, and lower volatility.
Putnam’s “New Ways of Thinking” campaign is designed
to help investors address the dynamic set of ongoing
market challenges, and is supported by the firm’s

awareness-building efforts.

Forthe third timein five years, Barron's ranked Putnam
among the top fund families based on total return across
asset classes. Putnam also ranked second among all fund

families assessed over the past five years.

In Europe, Great-West Lifeco, throughits Canada Life
and Irish Life subsidiaries, has operations in the United

Kingdom, Isle of Man, Germany and Ireland.

InJuly 2013, Great-West Lifeco completed the acquisition

of Irish Life. The closing of this transaction marked

a significant milestone forits companies in Ireland.
Combining the businesses of Irish Life and Canada Life in
Ireland under the Irish Life brand name will help ensure
that the new Irish Life maintains and builds on its leading
positions in the life, pensions and investment management
sectorsin Ireland. Integration is well underway and on

target for completion in mid-2015.

With a continued focus on delivering outstanding

service, Irish Life business continued to grow in 2013.

Life and pension sales and asset management inflows
outperformed the market and the company gained market

share. All business units continue to perform well.
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IGM FINANCIAL

IGM Financial and its operating companies experienced
anincrease in operating earnings and assets under

management in 2013.

Investors Group and Mackenzie Investments, the
company’s principal businesses, continued to generate
business growth through product innovation, improved
sales, pricing enhancements, additional investment
management resources and overall resource management

throughout the year.

IGM Financial is well diversified through its multiple
distribution channels, product types, investment
management units and fund brands. Assets under
management are diversified by country of investment,

industry sector, security type and management style.

Operating earnings available to common shareholders,
excluding other items, were $764 million or $3.02 per share
in 2013, compared with $746 million or $2.92 per share
in2012.
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Net earnings available to common shareholders were

$762 million or $3.02 per share in 2013, compared with
$759 million or $2.97 per share in 2012.

Total assets under management at December 31, 2013
totalled $131.8 billion. This compared with total assets under
management of $120.7 billion at December 31,2012, an

increase of 9.2 per cent.

Dividends were $2.15 per share for the year, unchanged from

the prioryear.

Investors Group continued to expand the number of its
region offices in 2013, for a total of 109 across Canada. Its
consultant network grew by 155 during the same period. As
at December 31, 2013, there were 4,673 consultants working
with clients to help them understand the benefits of long-

term financial planning.

Investors Group continued to respond to the complex
financial needs of its clients by delivering a diverse
range of products and services in the context of

personalized financial advice. In July, itintroduced a



DIRECTORS REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

new series of funds for households with financial assets
in excess of $500,000, which provides separate pricing
forfund management and an advisory fee charged to

client accounts.

Investors Group mutual fund assets under management
were $68.3 billion at the end of 2013, compared with

$60.6 billion at the end of 2012. Mutual fund sales were

$6.7 billion, compared with $5.8 billion in 2012, an increase
of more than 15 per cent. The company’s redemption rate
on long-term mutual funds was 9.4 per cent during 2013,
compared with 10 per cent during 2012. Net sales of mutual

funds in 2013 were $159 million.

Mackenzie undertook several important initiatives in
2013. The company simplified and restructured its product
lineup to be more relevant and launched in-demand funds
to meet the evolving needs of investors and advisors. It
alsointroduced a new series of funds, offering a channel-
appropriate fee structure to "do-it-yourself” investors.
Mackenzie maintained its focus on delivering consistent
long-term investment performance by attracting key
investment management talent and analytical personnel
asitcontinued to supportadvisorsin all aspects of

their business.

Mackenzie's total assets under management were
$65.3 billion at the end of 2013, compared with $61.5 billion at
December 31,2012. Mutual fund assets under management

were $46.0 billion, compared with $40.4 billion at

December 31,2012. Mutual fund gross sales were $6.7 billion,
compared with $5.5 billion in 2012, an increase of 22 per cent,
and reflects Mackenzie's best resultin the last five years.
Mutual fund net redemptions were $0.5 billion in 2013,

compared with net redemptions of $2.0 billion during 2012.

IGM Financial continues to build its business through its
extensive network of distribution opportunities delivering
high-quality advice and innovative, flexible solutions for
investors. Itsinvestment in technology and operations
continue to help the company manage its resources
effectively and develop long-term growth in the business.
The strength of IGM's businesses, combined withiits
association with the Power Financial Corporation group
of companies, gives IGM Financial a strong foundation to

build upon.

PARGESA

Through Belgian holding company Groupe Bruxelles
Lambert (GBL), the Pargesa group holds significant
positions in major companies based in Europe: Imerys, a
producer of mineral-based specialities forindustry; Lafarge,
which produces cement, aggregates and concrete; Total,
inthe oil, gas and alternative energy industry; GDF Suez,

a provider of electricity, natural gas, and energy and
environmental services; Suez Environnement, activein
water and waste management services; Pernod Ricard, a
leader in wines and spirits; and SGS, engaged in testing,

inspection and certification.
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In addition toits strategic holdings, which will still form

most of the portfolio, GBL undertook in 2012 to develop
over time: an incubator portfolio comprising interestsin a
reduced number of listed and unlisted companies—these
investments would be smaller commitments than the
strategic holdings—and investments in private equity and

otherfunds where GBLacts as ananchorinvestor.

Pargesa’s operating earnings were SF251 million in 2013,
compared with SF346 million in 2012. This decrease

is mainly attributable to non-cash charges from: the
increase in value of call options on shares embedded in the
exchangeable and convertible bonds issued by GBLin 2012
and 2013, a lower contribution from Lafarge, and a decrease
in the contribution of GDF Suez following GBLs partial

disposal of that holding.

Including non-operating income consisting primarily of
gainson the partial disposals by GBL of its interest in Total
andin GDF Suez, and of an impairment charge recorded by
GBLonitsinvestmentin GDF Suez, Pargesa’s netincome
in 2013 was SF394 million, compared with SF405 million
in2012.
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At the end of December 2013, Pargesa’s adjusted net
assetvalue was SF8.8 billion. This represents a value of
SF104.2 per Pargesa share, compared with SF90.4 at the end

of 2012, anincrease of 15.3 per cent.

At the next annual meeting of shareholders on May 6, 2014,
Pargesa’s board of directors will propose paying a dividend
of SF2.64 per bearer share, an increase of 2.7 per cent over

lastyear.

PROTECTING AND IMPROVING
THE LONG-TERM FINANCIAL
HEALTH OF CANADIANS

Around the world, countries face the fundamental
challenge of protecting and improving the long-term
financial health of their citizens. The recent period of
economic uncertainty and market volatility has provided
a powerful reminder of the importance of careful and
long-term planning, both by governments seeking

to establish appropriate policies and incentives, and

by individuals in their savings and investing choices.
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Achieving retirementincome security requires balancing
important and competing objectives, including income
adequacy, intergenerational equity, responsibility and
individual choice. Itis also defined by the specific social,
demographic, fiscal, and economic circumstances that

each country faces.

In Canada, landmark research by McKinsey & Company to
understand the detailed financial situation and behaviour
of Canadian households continues to yield important
insights. While Canadians appear well prepared for
retirement overall, the level of readiness of individual
households varies. A close look at each segment of society,
analyzed by age and income cohorts, shows that 75 per cent
of Canadian households are well prepared for retirement
and that a smaller group of 25 per cent need to save more.
The 25 per cent who are not ready are the middle and higher

income segments.

Indeed, government programs currently provide significant
income replacement for most lower and middle income
populations. By contrast, higherincome households are
more reliant on workplace and individual savings, and thus
need to save more in order to keep their standard of living
upon retirement. The challenges for these segments of
society are varied but revolve around their willingness to
save, the incentives to do so, and the time period available

to save enough for retirement.

Securing the long-term financial health of Canadians is and
should continue to be an important priority for Canada.
Canada’s retirement system is a successful, well-balanced
blend of publicand private responsibility which offers

a mix of government-provided, employer-sponsored

and individual savings programs. As such, targeted,
incremental changes to the existing system that focus
onfacilitating and incenting savings are a more efficient,
reliable and sustainable way to address Canadians’

many different retirement security challenges than

one-size-fits-all solutions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Robert Gratton will not be standing for re-election to
the Corporation’s Board of Directors at the May 14, 2014
Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Mr. Gratton is Deputy
Chairman of Power Corporation. He served as President
and Chief Executive Officer of Power Financial from

1990 until 2005, and then as Chairman of its Board until
2008. He was Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Power Financial's subsidiary, the Montreal
Trust Company, from1982 until1989. In recognition of his
outstanding contribution to the Power group of companies
over many years, Mr. Gratton will be appointed by the
Board of Directors of Power Corporation as Deputy

Chairman Emeritus.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Aswe enter 2014, the global economy continues to show
signs of progress, anchored by solid improvementin the
United States and increased stability in Europe. Interest
rates have begun moving up from their historic lows
and investors have become more confident in their

investment choices.

More fundamental than any short-term economic outlook,

however, is the strong and growing long-term need of
people across the markets where we operate to achieve
financial security. The companies in our group are in the
business of helping millions of people meet their financial

needs through the different stages of their lives. They do

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Signed, Signed,

R.Jeffrey Orr

President and
Chief Executive Officer

March19, 2014
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Paul Desmarais, Jr., 0.c., 0.Q.
Co-Chairman of the Board

so by helping clients through a one-on-one relationship
with a financial advisor or through savings and retirement

programs at their place of employment.

Excellence and innovation in products and services
and value to the customer are critical factors in clients’
selections. Financial strength and the ability to honour
long-term commitments will be equally important.
Our companies are focused upon delivering on each of

these dimensions.

Your Directors wish to express gratitude on behalf of
the shareholders for the important contribution of the
management and employees of our Corporation andits
associated companies to the successful results achieved

in2013.

Signed,

André Desmarais, 0.C., 0.Q.
Co-Chairman of the Board



The Honourable Paul Desmarais, p.C.,C.C., 0.Q.:

A TRIBUTE

On October 8, 2013, the entire Power group was deeply
saddened by the death of Paul Desmarais at the age

of 86. We at Power Financial and Power Corporation
lost a devoted father, leader, colleague and friend.

We were most privileged to have known and worked
with this remarkable man, whom we respected and

loved so dearly.

Mr. Desmarais gained control of Power Corporation
in1968 and served as its Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer until1996. At the time of his death, hewas a
Director of Power Financial and of Power Corporation;
he was also Chairman of the Executive Committee

of Power Corporation and its controlling shareholder.
His service to Power spanned nearly 50 years and his
visionary leadership has left an indelible mark on the

entire Power group.

A memorial service held December 3 in Montréal drew
hundreds of friends and business colleagues from
across Canada and around the world and celebrated
the many contributions Paul Desmarais made to his

family, to business and to his country.

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

2013 ANNUAL REPORT



RESPONSIBLE
MANAGEMENT

Responsible management has been a guiding principle for the Corporation for many

years. We view responsible management, and all that it entails, as an effective means

to mitigate risk and as a catalyst for long-term value creation. It has been and continues

to be fundamental to our success, enabling us to earn the confidence of our customers,

business partners, shareholders, employees and the communities where we are present.

Ourresponsible managementapproach is predicated on
our core values of integrity, trust, respect and corporate
citizenship. These values have guided the development of
our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and our Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Statement. Because we act

as owners of the companies in which we have major
investments, we recognize our responsibility to lead by
example and live up to the high standards of ethical conduct

expected of us.

In 2013, we updated our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
to provide greater clarity on what we deem to be ethical
behaviourand theindividual decisions and actions such
behaviour demands. To ensure the Code and its purpose is
relevant to employeesin their daily work, we will introduce
business conduct and ethics training for our staff later

thisyear.

Alsoin 2013, we formalized the Corporation’s Global Anti-
Bribery Policy, aimed at preventing all possible forms of
corruption under applicable laws, and revised our CSR
Statement to confirm our commitment to supportand
respect the protection of internationally proclaimed

human rights.
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CREATING VALUE THROUGH OUR ACTIVE
OWNERSHIP APPROACH

Power Financial has a strong governance model through
which we become an active ownerin the companiesin

which we invest.

By having our executives sit on the boards of our portfolio
companies, Power Financial exercises its active ownership
through regularengagement with senior management. It
allows Power Financial to ascertain that the investmentis
being managed in a manner consistent with our responsible
management philosophy, including our CSR Statementand
our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

The Governance and Nominating Committee of the Board
has formal responsibility for CSR. The committee reviews
atleastannually theimplementation and performance
of our CSRinitiatives. The Board has delegated leadership
on CSRinitiatives to the Vice-President, General Counsel

and Secretary.

In 2013, we continued to meet regularly with our publicly
traded subsidiaries to align our commitments and to share
knowledge on CSR initiatives.



INVESTING IN SUSTAINABLE COMPANIES WITH
LONG-TERM GROWTH PROSPECTS

We invest in quality companies with sustainable franchises
and attractive growth prospects that demonstrate they

are managed in aresponsible manner. We take a prudent
approach torisk, and incorporate analysis of environmental,
social and governance (ESG) factors into ourinvestment

process whenever relevant.

Companies in the Power Financial portfolio share our
philosophy and commitment to acting responsibly and
ethically, and to serving the community. Given the mainstay
of ourinvestmentsarein financial services, we believe we
represent a positive force in society. Our portfolio companies
offer lifeand health insurance, retirement savings programs
and a broad range of investment vehicles, including socially
responsible investment funds. We effectively enable our

customers to manage their retirementand healthcare needs,

accumulate wealth and achieve financial security through
savings. In the course of selling customers financial products
and services, our companies also foster financial literacy,
animportant part of our contribution to a prosperous,

empowered society.

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

Responsible management also defines the mannerin which
we recruit and develop our employees. Our people typically
fulfill the role of trusted advisor to our customers, helping
them address their financial and insurance needs. We hire
individuals who are skilled at building these “relationships
of trust”and creating bonds of professionalism and mutual
respect. Inturn, we provide them with challenging and
rewarding careers, give them the resources to develop their
expertise and leadership skills, and support their volunteer
efforts within the communities where we operate. A
well-balanced, involved and motivated workforce gives us

significant competitive advantage.

STRENGTHENING RELATIONSHIPS AND MAKING
A DIFFERENCE

We are a large corporate group with a number of well-
known brands. We recognize that our actions attract the
interest of a broad cross-section of stakeholders. Again, as
an element of our responsible management philosophy,
we will continue to communicate meaningful information
onour CSR activities via our website and other means.
Where appropriate, we will also engage directly with

key stakeholders.

Companies in the Power Financial group have arich
tradition of acting ina responsible mannerand of being
actively presentin the communities where they operate. We
value our reputation asa good corporate citizen and have
recently taken steps to raise public awareness of some of
our CSR activities which are conducted through our parent
company, Power Corporation. In 2013, Power Corporation
established a community investment microsite to showcase
some of the exceptional work being done by organizations
thatit supports financially. These organizations, many of
them run by innovative social entrepreneurs, work in the
areas of health, education, arts and culture, community
development, and the environment. The microsite will

be updated onaregular basis to highlight our ongoing
community investments and to support employees’

volunteering initiatives.

We operate our business in an efficientand environmentally
responsible manner. As a holding company, we have limited
direct environmental impact. Our head office has no
production, manufacturing or service operations. Despite
this limited impact, we work continuously to improve
ourenvironmental performance in the areas of resource
conservation, energy efficiency and waste management. In
2013, we formalized and strengthened our environmental
policy. We also reported to the Carbon Disclosure Project for
the secondyearinarow and received a ranking consistent

with our efforts to improve our ongoing performance.

A LONG-TERM AND SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

Responsible managementis a business strategy that allows
us to generate long-term value and sustainable growth.

By upholding the principles and values that responsible
management demands, we are confident that our
investments have robust business models, we have excellent
relationships with our stakeholders and, mostimportantly,
the potential to create sustained earnings year afteryear for
Power Financial's shareholders, while contributing to the
broader good of society at large.
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2013 Operating
earnings attributable
to common
shareholders

2013 Return
on shareholders’
equity!

Total assets under
administration

OPERATING EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE
TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS

(in millions of Canadian dollars)

$2,052 MiLLion 15.0% $758 siLLion 1627 1819 1898 1946 2052
2009 2010 201 2012 2013
CGAAP
SUBSIDIARIES
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%"*
GREAT-WEST LONDON CANADA LIFE IRISH LIFE GREAT-WEST PUTNAM
LIFE LIFE FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

[1] Returnon shareholders equity is calculated using operating earnings.
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CANADA

Great-West Life is a leading Canadian insurer, with interests

GREAT‘WEST |_|FE in life insurance, health insurance, investment, savings and

LONDON LIFE

retirement income and reinsurance businesses, primarily in

Canada and Europe.

CANADA LIFE

In Canada, Great-West Life and its subsidiaries, London Life and
Canada Life, offer a broad portfolio of financial and benefit plan
solutions and serve the financial security needs of more than

12 million people.

PRODUCTS
& SERVICES

Life, disability, health and critical iliness insurance for individuals, business owners and families
Retirement savings and income plans for individuals and groups

Asset management, investment management and advisory services

Benefit solutions for small, medium and large employer groups

Creditorinsurance, including life, disability, job loss and critical illness coverage

Life, health, accident and critical illness insurance for members of affinity groups

DISTRIBUTION
CHANNELS

Gold Key financial security advisors associated with Great-West Life

Freedom 55 Financial™ and Wealth & Estate Planning Group financial security advisors
associated with London Life

Independent brokers associated with Canada Life
National accounts advisors, including Investors Group, associated with Canada Life

Great-West Life group insurance and retirement sales and service staff in offices across
Canada that support independent advisors, brokers and benefit consultants distributing its
group products

MARKET
POSITION

[1] AsatSeptember 30,2013
[2] AsatDecember 31,2013
[3] AsatDecember 31,2012
[4] Asatjune 30,2013

Serves the financial security needs of more than 12 million Canadians
32% market share of individual life insurance measured by premium
24% market share of individual living benefits measured by premium?
27% market share of individual segregated funds®

22% market share of group insurance®!

18% market share of group capital accumulation plan assets, serving 1.2 million
member accounts!

Leading market share for creditor insurance revenue premium®

HIGHLIGHTS

No.1ranking of combined life insurance portfolio in Canada by sales premium
Great-West Life: 7961 Gold Key independent advisors and independent brokers

London Life: 3,559 Freedom 55 Financial and Wealth and Estate Planning Group financial
security advisors

Canada Life: 14,066 independent brokers associated with managing general agencies (MGAS),
advisors associated with national accounts, Investors Group consultants who actively sell
Canada Life products, direct brokers and producer groups

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2013 ANNUAL REPORT



FEUROPE Canada Life and its Irish Life subsidiary in Europe provide a broad
CANADA |_| I:E range of protection and wealth management products, including:
| R|SH |_| FE payout annuities, investments and group insurance in the United
Kingdom; investments and individual insurance in the Isle of
Man; insurance, pension and investment products in Ireland; and

pensions, critical illness and disability insurance in Germany.

PRODUCTS > Protection and wealth management products and related services in the United Kingdom, Isle
& SERVICES of Man, Ireland and Germany

> Reinsurance and retrocession business, primarily in the United States and European markets

DISTRIBUTION > Independent financial advisors and employee benefit consultantsin the U.K. and Isle of Man

CHANNELS > Independent brokers, pension and investment consultants, direct sales force and tied bank
distributionin Ireland

> Independent brokers and multi-tied agents in Germany
> Independent reinsurance brokers; direct placements

MARKET UK. > Market leader in the group life market, with 27% sharel!
POSITION > 21% share of group income protection market®!
> Among the top insurersin payout annuities, with 8% market share"

ISLE OF MAN > Amarket-leading offshore life company selling into the U.K. market,
with 21% sharel!

IRELAND > Market leaderin life assurance, with 34% market share?
> Market leader in asset management, with 38% market share
> Market leaderin corporate pensions, with 43% market share

GERMANY > One of the top two insurers in the independent intermediary unit-
[1] AsatSeptember 30,2013 linked marketﬂ]

2] A D ber 31,2013 . P
[2] Asat December 31, > Among the top seven in the overall unit-linked market!!

[3] AsatDecember 31,2012

[4] Asatjune30,2013 REINSURANCE > Among top ten life reinsurers in the U.S. by assumed businesst!

HIGHLIGHTS*

$188.0 $99 $159 1

BILLION BILLION BILLION MILLION
TOTAL ASSETS 2013 INSURANCE & ANNUAL IRISH LIFE AND CANADA
UNDER ADMINISTRATION  ANNUITIES SALES PREMIUMS LIFE CUSTOMERS

AND DEPOSITS INIRELAND

*Including Irish Life, which became part of Great-West Lifeco’s group of companies on July 18, 2013
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UNITED STATES

Great-West Financial® is a leading provider of employer-sponsored

G REAT‘W EST retirement savings plans. It offers fund management, investment

FINANCIAL

and advisory services as well as record-keeping and administrative
services for other retirement plan providers. Great-West Financial
also offers executive benefits products, individual retirement
accounts, lifeinsurance and annuities. It markets its products and
services nationwide through its sales force and distribution partners.
Great-West Financial® is a registered mark of Great-West Life &

Annuity Insurance Company.

PRODUCTS
& SERVICES

Employer-sponsored defined contribution plans

Administrative and record-keeping services for financial institutions and retirement plans
Fund management, investment and advisory services

Individual retirement accounts, life insurance, annuities and executive benefits products

DISTRIBUTION

Brokers, consultants, advisors and third-party administrators

CHANNELS > Financial institutions

> Sales and service staff and specialized consultants
MARKET > Great-West Financial serves 5.4 million customers
POSITION > Nearly 30,000 defined contribution plans

[1] AsatDecember 31,2013
[2] AsatSeptember 30,2013

>

25% market share of state and local government deferred compensation planst!
23% market share of individual life insurance sold through the retail bank channel

6% market share of executive benefits markets life insurance purchased by
financial institutions®”

Great-West Lifetime Funds are the14th largest target date fund offering in the United States!"

HIGHLIGHTS

[3] Plan Adviser magazine 2013 survey

VOTED

US$243  4th 2nd No. |

BILLION
2013 ASSETS UNDER LARGEST DEFINED LARGEST UNDERWRITER BY 401(K) ADVISORS FOR
ADMINISTRATION CONTRIBUTION OF BANK LIFE PREMIUM BEST VALUE AND BEST
RECORD KEEPER IN THE U.S. WHOLESALERSH!
IN THE U.S.
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UNITED STATES > EUROPE Putnam Investments is a U.S.-based global asset manager and

> ASIA

PUTNAM

retirement plan provider, offering investment management services

across arange of domestic and international asset classes.

| N \/ ESTM E NTS Putnam, including its subsidiary PanAgora Asset Management, Inc.

distributes services largely through intermediaries and its
institutional sales force via its offices and strategic alliances in

North America, Europe, and Asia.

PRODUCTS
& SERVICES

> Putnam provides global asset management offering mutual funds, institutional portfolios,

college savings plans, 401(k)s, IRAs and other retirement plans.

> Investment capabilities include U.S. and global fixed income and equities; global asset

allocation; and alternatives, including absolute return, risk allocation, low-volatility equity and
hedge funds.

DISTRIBUTION

> Putnam services global institutional, domestic retail, defined contribution, and registered

CHANNELS investment advisor markets.
MARKET > Putnam has nearly 4.5 million shareholders and retirement plan participants as well as
POSITION 200 institutional clients around the world.
> More than 160,000 advisors distribute Putnam products.
> Putnam provides services to approximately 350 defined contribution plans.
> Assets under management increased 17% year-over-year in 2013 to US$150 billion.
AWARDS > Putnamwas ranked No. 2 out of 64 fund families based on total returns across asset classes
in 2013 by Barron's in its highly respected industry ranking. Putnam also ranked No. 2 out of
55 fund families assessed over five years.
> Three Putnam funds—Capital Spectrum Fund, International Capital Opportunities Fund, and
International Value Fund—received 2013 Lipper Fund Awards.
HIGHLIGHTS

US$I50 200+ 100+ /o+

BILLION
ASSETS UNDER INVESTMENT MUTUAL FUNDS YEARS OF INVESTMENT
MANAGEMENT PROFESSIONALS AVAILABLE EXPERIENCE
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2013 Operating
earnings available
to common
shareholders

2013 Return
on shareholders’
equity

TOTAL ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

as at December 3] (in billions of dollars)

Total assets under

management
$764 wiLLion 17.3% $132 siLLion 12) 129 19 12 132
2009 2010 201 2012 2013
SUBSIDIARIES OPERATING EARNINGS
For the financial year (in millions of dollars)
100% 100% 975%
INVESTORS MACKENZIE INVESTMENT
GROUP INVESTMENTS PLANNING
COUNSEL 619 759 833 746 764
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
CGAAP

[1] Returnon shareholders equity is calculated using operating earnings.
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INVESTORS
GROUP

Investors Group is committed to comprehensive planning delivered
through long-term clientand consultantrelationships. The company
provides advice and services through a network of over 4,600

consultants to nearly one million Canadians.

PRODUCTS >
& SERVICES >

Integrated financial advice and planning for individual Canadians
Family of exclusive mutual funds, segregated funds and other investment vehicles
Insurance, securities, Solutions Banking™, mortgages and other financial services

Symphony Strategic Investment Planning™ supports consultants in building optimized risk-
adjusted portfolios for clients

Enhancements to iProfile™ Managed Asset Program in 2013 provide options for capital gains
deferral and regular monthly cash flow

DISTRIBUTION >
CHANNELS

Financial products, services and advice offered through an exclusive network of
4,673 consultants

MARKET >
POSITION >

$68.3 billion in assets under management

Significant market position in mutual fund management, with approximately 7% of industry
long-term mutual fund assets under management

Among Canada’s leading providers of financial planning services

HIGHLIGHTS

$6.7 $68.3 109 4,673

BILLION BILLION
MUTUAL FUND TOTAL ASSETS OFFICES CONSULTANTS
SALES UNDER ACROSS

MANAGEMENT CANADA

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION = 2013 ANNUAL REPORT



MAC KENZ| E Mackenzie provides investment management services through
| N\/ESTM ENTS multiple product offerings utilizing proprietary investment research

and experienced investment professionals. The company distributes
its investment services through industry distribution channels to

both retail and institutional investors.

PRODUCTS
& SERVICES

Offers mutual funds, pooled funds, segregated accounts and separate accounts

Significantly revitalized product lineup in 2013 with 27 fund mergers including a number of fund
enhancements, changes to fund investment objectives and the launch of a number of new
products to serve investor needs

In 2013, launched the Mackenzie Private Wealth Program, designed for households with more
than $100,000 to invest

Created Series D of its funds for the discount brokerage channel

DISTRIBUTION

Distribution of products through retail, strategic alliances and institutional channels

CHANNELS Investment products offered through 30,000 independent financial advisors, retail brokers,
insurance agents, banks, pension consulting firms and financial institutions

MARKET $65.3 billion in assets under management

POSITION Significant market position in mutual fund management, with approximately 4.5% of industry
long-term mutual fund assets under management
43% of Mackenzie fund assets were rated 4 or 5 Star by Morningstartand 72% were in the first or
second quartile relative to their peers over the most recent 10-year period

HIGHLIGHTS

$6.7

$65.3

/8%

BILLION BILLION

MUTUAL FUND TOTAL ASSETS OF MACKENZIE FUND

SALES UNDER ASSETS RATED 3,4 OR 5
MANAGEMENT STAR BY MORNINGSTAR

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2013 ANNUAL REPORT
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PARGESA

50.0%"

GROUPE
BRUXELLES LAMBERT

IMERYS LAFARGE TOTAL GDF SUEZ SUEZ
56.2% 21.0% 3.6% 2.4% ENVIRONNEMENT
7.2%

[1] Representing 52% of the voting rights.
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2013 Operating
earnings

SF251 miLLion

Net asset value

SF8.8 siLLion



IMERYS

Imerys extracts, transforms, and processes a unique range of minerals to provide
functionalities that are vital to its customers’' products and production processes.
These speciality products have a very wide range of uses and are developing in many
growth markets.

Value of investment

€2,709 million

Capital/voting rights
56.2%/71.4%

KEY 2013 FINANCIAL DATA

Market capitalization
Turnover

4,819
3,698

LAFARGE

Lafargeisa global leader in cement, aggregates and readymix concrete. The group
has two strategic priorities: the growing cement market and innovation, particularly
in relation to sustainable construction.

Value of investment

€3,285 million

Capital/voting rights
21.0%/27.2%

KEY 2013 FINANCIAL DATA

Market capitalization
Turnover

15,653
15,198

TOTAL

Total is one of the leading international oil and gas groups. The company operates
in more than 130 countries and covers every oil industry sector, from upstream to
downstream. Total is also a major player in chemicals and is committed to the
development of renewable energy.

Value of investment

€3,818 million

Capital/voting rights
3.6%/3.3%

KEY 2013 FINANCIAL DATA

Market capitalization
Turnover

105,878
189,542

GDF SUEZ

Created from the merger between Suez and Gaz de France in 2008, GDF Suez covers
the whole energy chain, in electricity, natural gas and services. Its acquisition

of International Power in 2011 gives it a leading position in the international

energy market.

Value of investment

€935 milliont

Capital/voting rights
2.4%[2.4%

KEY 2013 FINANCIAL DATA

Market capitalization
Turnover

41,247
81,278

Value at€18.32 per share, based on the value of the convertible

bondissuedin 2013

SUEZ ENVIRONNEMENT

Suez Environnement holds a leading position in the global environmental market and
operates in more than 36 countries. The group is active across all water and waste
cycles, serving both local authorities and private sector operators.

Value of investment

€401 million

Capital/voting rights
7.2%17.2%

KEY 2013 FINANCIAL DATA

Market capitalization
Turnover

6,646
14,644

Value at€11.45 per share, based on thevalue of the convertible

bondissuedin 2013

PERNOD RICARD

Sinceits founding in 1975, Pernod Ricard has achieved significant organic growth and
made numerous acquisitions, in particular Seagram in 2001, Allied Domecq in 2005
and Vin&Sprit in 2008, thus becoming the world's co-leader in the wine and spirits
market.

Value of investment

€1,647 million

Capital/voting rights
7.5%/6.9%

KEY 2013 FINANCIAL DATA

Market capitalization
Turnover

22,611
8,575

June 30, 2013 year-end

SGS

Based in Geneva, Switzerland, SGS is the world's leading inspection, verification,
testing and certification company, recognized as the global benchmark for quality
and integrity. With more than 80,000 employees, SGS operates a network of more
than 1,650 offices and laboratories around the world.

Key 2013 financial data in millions of euros, unless otherwise noted

Value of investment

€1,962 million

Capital/voting rights
15.0%/15.0%

KEY 2013 FINANCIAL DATA

Market capitalization (SF million)

Turnover (SF million)

16,052
5,830
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

All tabularamounts are in millions of canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted.

MARCH 19, 2014

This Annual Reportisintended to provide interested shareholders and others with selected information concerning Power Financial Corporation. For further
information concerning the Corporation, shareholders and otherinterested persons should consult the Corporation's disclosure documents, such asits Annual
Information Form and Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). Copies of the Corporation’s continuous disclosure documents can be obtained at
www.sedar.com, on the Corporation’s website at www.powerfinancial.com, or from the office of the Secretary at the addresses shown at the end of this report.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS » Certain statements in this document,
other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements based
on certain assumptions and reflect the Corporation’s current expectations, or
with respect to disclosure regarding the Corporation’s public subsidiaries, reflect
such subsidiaries’ disclosed current expectations. Forward-looking statements
are provided for the purposes of assisting the reader in understanding the
Corporation's financial performance, financial position and cash flows as at
and for the periods ended on certain dates and to present information about
management's current expectationsand plansrelating to the futureand the reader
is cautioned that such statements may not be appropriate for other purposes.
These statements may include, without limitation, statements regarding the
operations, business, financial condition, expected financial results, performance,
prospects, opportunities, priorities, targets, goals, ongoing objectives, strategies
and outlook of the Corporationandits subsidiaries, as wellas the outlook for North
American and international economies for the current fiscal year and subsequent
periods. Forward-looking statements include statements that are predictive in
nature, depend upon orrefer to future events or conditions, orinclude words such
as‘expects”, "anticipates”, "plans’, "believes”, "estimates”, "seeks”, “intends”, "targets”,
“projects”, "forecasts” or negative versions thereof and other similar expressions,
or future or conditional verbs such as "may”, “will", “should”, "would" and “could”.

By its nature, this information is subject to inherent risks and uncertainties that
may be general or specificand which give rise to the possibility that expectations,
forecasts, predictions, projections or conclusions will not prove to be accurate,
that assumptions may not be correct and that objectives, strategic goals and
priorities will not be achieved. A variety of factors, many of which are beyond the
Corporation’s and its subsidiaries’ control, affect the operations, performance
and results of the Corporation andits subsidiaries and their businesses, and could
cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations of estimated
oranticipated events or results. These factors include, but are not limited to: the
impactorunanticipated impact of general economic, political and market factors
in North America and internationally, interest and foreign exchange rates, global
equity and capital markets, management of market liquidity and funding risks,

changes in accounting policies and methods used to report financial condition
(including uncertainties associated with critical accounting assumptions and
estimates), the effect of applying future accounting changes, business competition,
operationaland reputationalrisks, technological change, changesin government
regulation and legislation, changesin tax laws, unexpected judicial or regulatory
proceedings, catastrophic events, the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries ability
to complete strategic transactions, integrate acquisitions and implement other
growth strategies, and the Corporation'sand its subsidiaries'successinanticipating
and managing the foregoing factors.

The reader is cautioned to consider these and other factors, uncertainties and
potential events carefully and not to put undue reliance on forward-looking
statements. Information contained in forward-looking statements is based
upon certain material assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or
making aforecastor projection, including management's perceptions of historical
trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other
considerations thatare believed to be appropriate in the circumstances, including
that the list of factors in the previous paragraph, collectively, are not expected
to have a material impact on the Corporation and its subsidiaries. While the
Corporation considers these assumptions to be reasonable based on information
currently available to management, they may prove to be incorrect.

Other than as specifically required by applicable Canadian law, the Corporation
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect
events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made, or
to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, whether as a result of new
information, future events or results, or otherwise.

Additional information about the risks and uncertainties of the Corporation’s
business and material factors or assumptions on which information contained
in forward-looking statements is based is provided in its disclosure materials,
including its most recent MD&A and its most recent Annual Information
Form, filed with the securities regulatory authorities in Canada and available
atwww.sedar.com.

Readers are reminded that a list of the abbreviations used throughout can be found at the beginning of this Annual Report. In addition, the following abbreviations are used
in the Review of Financial Performance and in the Financial Statements and Notes thereto: Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Power Financialand Notes thereto
for the year ended December 31, 2013 (the 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements or the Financial Statements); International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS); previous

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (previous Canadian GAAP).
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OVERVIEW

Power Financial, a subsidiary of Power Corporation, is a holding company
with substantial interests in the financial services sector in Canada, the
United States and Europe, through its controlling interests in Lifeco and
IGM. Power Financial also holds, together with the Frére Group of Belgium,
acontrollinginterestin Pargesa.

Lifeco (TSX: GWO) and IGM (TSX: IGM) are public companies listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange. Pargesa is a public company listed on the Swiss
Stock Exchange (SIX: PARG).

As at December 31, 2013, Power Financial and IGM held 67.0% and 4.0%,
respectively, of Lifeco's common shares, representing approximately 65.0%
of the voting rights attached to all outstanding Lifeco voting shares. As at
December 31,2013, Power Financial and Great-West Life, a subsidiary of Lifeco,
held 58.6% and 3.6%, respectively, of IGM’'s common shares.

On July 18, 2013, Lifeco completed its €1.3 billion acquisition of Irish Life.
Established in 1939, Irish Life is the largest life and pensions group and
investment managerin Ireland.

Funding for the transaction included the net proceeds of theissuance by Lifeco
of approximately $1.25 billion of subscription receipts completed on March 12,
2013, of which the Corporation subscribed for $550 million. On completion
of the acquisition of Irish Life on July 18, 2013, the 48,660,000 subscription
receipts were automatically exchanged on a one-for-one basis for common
shares of Lifeco.

On April 18, 2013, Lifeco issued €500 million of 10-year bonds denominated
in euros with an annual coupon of 2.50%. The bonds, rated A+ by Standard &
Poor's Ratings Services, are listed on the Irish Stock Exchange. The issuance
of euro-denominated debt results in a natural hedge of a portion of Lifeco’s
netinvestmentin euro-denominated foreign operations.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation have been
preparedinaccordance with IFRS and are presented in Canadian dollars.

Lifeco and IGM are controlled by Power Financial and their financial
statements are consolidated with those of Power Financial. Consolidated
financial statements present, as a single economic entity, the assets,
liabilities, revenues, expenses and cash flows of the parent company and
its operating subsidiaries (consolidation of financial statements consists
of adding, on a line-by-line basis, the different components of the financial
statements of Power Financial (parent) and Lifeco and IGM (its subsidiaries)
and eliminating intercompany balances and transactions).

Power Financial's investment in Pargesa is held through Parjointco.
Parjointco’s only investment is its joint controlling interest in Pargesa. The
investment in Parjointco is accounted for by Power Financial in accordance
with the equity method of accounting as the Corporation has joint control
over its relevant activities. The equity method is a method of accounting
whereby theinvestmentisinitially recognised at costand adjusted thereafter
for the post-acquisition change in the investor's share of the investee's net
assets (shareholders' equity). The investor's profit orloss includes its share of
the investee’s profit or loss and the investor’s other comprehensive income
includes its share of the investee’'s other comprehensive income.

The purchase price of €1.3 billion has all been allocated to assets and liabilities
of Irish Life, primarily based on their fair values at the acquisition date of July 18,
2013. As at December 31, 2013, the valuation of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed s substantially complete. The excess of the purchase price over the
fairvalue of net assetsacquired of $378 million has beenallocated to goodwill.

The integration of the business is progressing well and remains on track to
deliver cost synergies of €40 million per year with a total cost of integration
of €60 million.

Power Financial Europe B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of Power Financial,
and the Frére Group of Belgium each hold a 50% interestin Parjointco, which,
asat December 31,2013, held a 55.6% interest in Pargesa, representing 75.4%
of thevoting rights of that company.

Pargesa’s holdings in major companies based in Europe are held through its
affiliated Belgian holding company, GBL, whichislisted on the Brussels Stock
Exchange (BEL20: GBLB). Asat December 31,2013, Pargesa held a50% interest
in GBL, representing 52% of the voting rights.

As at December 31, 2013, Pargesa’s portfolio was substantially composed
of investments in: Imerys (mineral-based specialties for industry); Lafarge
(cement aggregates and concrete); Total (oil, gas and alternative energies);
GDF Suez (electricity, natural gas, and energy and environmental services);
Suez Environnement (water and waste management services); Pernod Ricard
(wines and spirits); and SGS (testing, inspection and certification).

In addition to its strategic participations, which will still form most of the
portfolio, GBL undertookin 2012 to develop over time:

[i] Anincubatorportfolio comprised of interestsinareduced number of listed
and unlisted companies. The investments would be smaller in size than
the strategic participations;

[ii] investments in private equity and other funds where GBL acts as an
anchorinvestor.

Additional information on GBL is available on GBL's website (www.gbl.be).

Asdescribed above, the Pargesa portfolio consists primarily of investmentsin
Imerys, Lafarge, Total, GDF Suez, Suez Environnement, Pernod Ricard and SGS,
which are all held through GBL. GBLs financial statements are consolidated
with Pargesa’s financial statements.

> GBLholdsa56.2% controllinginterestin Imerys and therefore consolidates
thefinancial statements of Imerys with its own.

> Lafarge, over which GBL has significant influence holding a 21% equity
interest, isaccounted for by GBLusing the equity method and, consequently,
the contribution from Lafarge to GBLs earnings consists of GBL's share of
Lafarge's net earnings.

> Portfolio investments in which GBL holds less than a 20% equity interest
consisting of Total, GDF Suez, Suez Environnement, Pernod Ricard and SGS,
are classified for accounting purposes as available-for-sale investments.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Accounting for the Corporation’s holdings is as follows:

DEGREE OF CONTROL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING EFFECT ON EARNINGS AND OTHER IMPAIRMENT TESTING IMPAIRMENT REVERSAL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Subsidiaries > Operating company > Consolidated with > Goodwill and indefinite life > Goodwillimpairment cannot

subsidiaries

> Consolidation

non-controlling interest

intangible assets areannually
tested forimpairment

v

bereversed

Intangible assetimpairment
isreversed if thereis evidence
of recovery of value

Holdings over which

the Corporation exercises
significantinfluence or
joint control

> Equity method of accounting

v

Earningsand other
comprehensiveincome
recorded represent the
Corporation's share

Entire investment s tested
forimpairment

v

v

Reversed if thereis evidence
theinvestmenthasrecovered
itsvalue

Portfolioinvestments

> Available for sale (AFS)

v

Earnings consist of
dividends received

v

Theinvestments are marked
to market through other
comprehensive income

v

Earnings are reduced by
impairment charges, ifany

v

Impairment testing is done at
theindividual investment level

> Asignificantor prolonged
declinein thevalue of the
investmentresultsinan
impairment charge

>

Cannotbereversed evenif
thereisasubsequentrecovery
of value

Asubsequentdecrease
instock price leads to
afurtherimpairment

This summary of accounting should be read in conjunction with the following
notes to the Corporation’s 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements: Basis of
presentation and summary of significant accounting policies, Investments,
Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate, Goodwill and
intangible assets, and Non-controlling interests.

NON-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES AND PRESENTATIONS

In analyzing the financial results of the Corporation and consistent with
the presentation in previous years, net earnings attributable to common
shareholders are classified in the section "Results of Power Financial
Corporation”as:

> operating earnings attributable to common shareholders; and

> other items or non-operating earnings, which include the after-tax
impact of any item that management considers to be of a non-recurring
nature or that could make the period-over-period comparison of results
from operations less meaningful, and also include the Corporation’s share
of any such item presented in a comparable manner by its subsidiaries
and Pargesa.

RESULTS OF POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

EARNINGS SUMMARY —-CONDENSED

SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

The following table shows a reconciliation of non-IFRS financial measures
used hereinforthe periodsindicated, with the reported resultsinaccordance
with IFRS for net earnings attributable to common shareholders and earnings
per share. In this section, the contributions from Lifeco and IGM, which
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Management uses these financial measuresinits presentationand analysis of
the financial performance of Power Financial, and believes that they provide
additional meaningful information to readers in their analysis of the results
of the Corporation. Operating earnings, as defined by the Corporation,
assists the reader in comparing the current period's results to those of
previous periods as items of a non-recurring nature are not included in this
non-IFRS measure.

Operating earnings attributable to common shareholders and operating
earnings per share are non-IFRS financial measures that do not have a
standard meaning and may not be comparable to similar measures used by
other entities. For a reconciliation of these non-IFRS measures to results
reported in accordance with IFRS, see the "Results of Power Financial
Corporation — Earnings Summary — Condensed Supplementary Statements
of Earnings” below.

In this review of financial performance, a non-consolidated basis of
presentation is also used by the Corporation to present and explain its
results, financial position and cash flows. In this basis of presentation,
Power Financial’s interests in Lifeco and IGM are accounted for using the
equity method. Thisnon-consolidated basis, whichisanon-IFRS presentation,
isusefulasitisolates the parent's corporate activities from those of operating
subsidiaries reflecting their respective contributions.

represent most of the earnings of Power Financial, are accounted for using
theequity method. The contribution to net earnings attributable to common
shareholders as presented in Note 34 — Segmented Information to the 2013
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation is comprised of
operating earnings and otheritems.



NON-CONSOLIDATED BASIS

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Contribution to operating earnings from:
Lifeco 1,391 1,329
IGM 446 433
Pargesa 76 102
1913 1,864
Results from corporate activities (74) (69)
Dividends on perpetual preferred shares (131) 117)
Operating earnings attributable to common shareholders 1,708 1,678
Otheritems
Lifeco 151 (95)
IGM (1) 7
Pargesa 38 28
188 (60)
Net earnings attributable to common shareholders 1,896 1,618
Earnings per share (attributable to common shareholders)
—operating earnings 2.40 2.37
—non-operating earnings 0.27 (0.08)
—netearnings 2.67 2.29

OPERATING EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO

COMMON SHAREHOLDERS

Operating earningsattributable tocommon shareholders for the year ended
December 31, 2013 were $1,708 million or $2.40 per share, compared with
$1,678 million or $2.37 per share in the corresponding period in 2012.

Included in operating earnings are the Corporation'’s share of restructuring
and acquisition costsassociated with the Irish Life acquisition foranamount
of $68 million in 2013 and a charge of $36 million related to the six-month
equity put options on the S&P 500 purchased by Lifeco and Power Financial
(seealso the “Risk Factors”section).

> Operatingearnings attributable to common shareholders excluding these
costs were $1,812 million or $2.55 per share for the twelve-month period
ended December 31, 2013.

CONTRIBUTION TO OPERATING EARNINGS FROM LIFECO, IGM
AND PARGESA

Power Financial's share of operating earnings from Lifeco, IGM and Pargesa
increased by 2.6% for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared with the
same period in 2012, from $1,864 million to $1,913 million.

Lifeco

Lifeco’s contribution to Power Financial's operating earnings for the year
ended December 31,2013, was $1,391 million, compared with $1,329 million for
the corresponding period in 2012. Details are as follows:

> Lifecoreported operating earningsattributable to common shareholders
of $2,052 million or $2.108 per share for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared with $1,946 million or $2.049 per share in the corresponding
periodin 2012, anincrease of 2.9% on a per share basis.

> In2013, Irish Life contributed $85 million (excluding restructuring costs), to
Lifeco's earnings. Included in Lifeco’s earnings for 2013 were restructuring
and acquisition costs of $97 million after tax associated with the Irish
Lifeacquisition.

The following table shows a summary of the results of Lifeco’s operating segments:

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Operating earnings attributable to Lifeco common shareholders

Canada 1,148 1,038

United States 276 321

Europe 701 615

Lifeco Corporate (73) (28)

2,052 1,946
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IGM Financial

IGM's contribution to Power Financial's operating earnings was $446 million
for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared with $433 million for the
corresponding period in 2012. Details are as follows:

> |IGM reported operating earnings available to common shareholders
of $764 million or $3.02 per share for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared with $746 million or $2.92 per share in the same period in 2012,
anincrease of 3.4% on a per share basis.

Operating earnings before interest and taxes (a non-IFRS measure) of IGM's reportable segments are as follows:

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Investors Group 718 693
Mackenzie 251 251
Corporateand other 110 112

1,079 1,056

> Total assets under management were $131.8 billion as at December 31, 2013, the highest year-end level in the history of IGM, compared with $120.7 billion

asat December 31, 2012.

The average daily mutual fund assets under management were as follows:

QUARTERS (IN BILLIONS OF DOLLARS) 2013 2012
First 106.9 103.6
Second 108.4 100.9
Third 110.2 101.0
Fourth 114.6 102.4

> In the second quarter of 2012, Investors Group, a subsidiary of IGM,
announced a number of changes in the pricing of its mutual funds and
product enhancements designed to expand its services to clients. These
changes became fully annualized in the third quarter of 2013.

Pargesa

Pargesa’s contribution to Power Financial's operating earnings was $76 million
for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2013, compared with a
contribution of $102 million in the corresponding period in 2012. Details are
as follows:

> Pargesa’s operating earnings for the twelve-month period ended
December 31,2013 were SF251 million, compared with SF346 million in the
corresponding period in 2012.

> The contribution from Imerys in the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2013 was SF110 million, compared with SF108 million in the
corresponding period of 2012.

> The contribution from Lafarge in the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2013 was SF72 million, compared with SF93 million in the
corresponding period of 2012.

> Asignificant portion of Pargesa’s earnings consists of dividends received
from Total (approved in the second, third and fourth quarter), GDF Suez
(approvedinthe second and third quarter), Suez Environnement (@approved
in the second quarter) and Pernod Ricard (approved in the second and
fourth quarter). SGS, in which a15% interest was acquired in March 2013, did
not contribute to the operating earnings of 2013 since its 2013 dividend was
paid prior to the acquisition. In accordance with IFRS, the Pargesa group
records dividends as earnings in the period they are approved.
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> Pargesa’s share of dividends recorded on these investments was
SF232 million in the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2013,
compared with SF270 million in the corresponding period in 2012. The
decreasein 2013, is mainly due to the partial disposal of GDF Suez shares
in the second quarter of 2013 and, to a lesser extent, the disposal of a
0.3% interestin Total in the fourth quarter.

> Operating earnings for the twelve-month period ended December 31,2013,
include Pargesa’s share of a non-cash chargerecorded by GBLin theamount
of SF83 millionrelated to call options embedded in bonds exchangeablein
Suez Environnement shares (issued in 2012) and GDF Suez shares (issuedin
2013) and on bonds issued by GBL in 2013 convertible into GBL shares. The
lossis theresult of therise of the price of the shares underlying the bonds.

RESULTS OF CORPORATE ACTIVITIES
Results of corporate activities include interest on cash and cash equivalents,
operating expenses, financing charges, depreciation and income taxes.

Corporate activities represented a net charge of $74 million in the twelve-
month period ended December 31, 2013, compared with a net charge of
$69 million in the corresponding period in 2012.

Resultsfrom corporate activitiesinclude a charge of $18 million related to the
six-month equity put options on the S&P 500 purchased by the Corporation
in 2013. (see also the “Risk Factors” section).

Results from corporate activities also include an amount of $9 million
related to the partial recognition of the benefit of loss carry forwards of the
Corporation following the renewal of the taxloss consolidation transactions
with IGM.



OTHER ITEMS

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Lifeco
Litigation provision 151 (96)
Share of IGM otheritems = 1
IGM
Non-cash income tax charge - (4)
Changesin the status of certainincome tax filings = 14
Restructuring and other charges 6) -
Share of Lifeco otheritems 5 3)
Pargesa
Impairment charges on GDF Suez (13) (48)
Gainon partial disposal of GDF Suez 15 -
Gainon partial disposal of Total 38 -
Gainon partial disposal of Pernod Ricard - 46
Gainon disposal of Arkema - 43
Other (charge) income ) (13)
188 (60)

Otheritemsin 2013 mainly comprised the Corporation’s share of:

> Arecovery of $226 million, net of tax, recorded by Lifeco in the fourth
quarter relating to a decision of the Court of Appeal for Ontario on
February 3,2014in regards to the involvement of the participating accounts
of Lifeco subsidiaries London Life and Great-West Life in the financing of

the London Insurance Group Inc. acquisition in1997.

> After-tax restructuring and other charges recorded by IGM in the fourth

quarter foranamount of $6 million.

> An impairment charge recorded by GBL, in the first quarter, on its

investmentin GDF Suez for an amount of $13 million.

> Again recorded by GBL in the second quarter on a partial disposal of its

interest in GDF Suez for an amount of $15 million.

> Thegainrealized by GBLin thefourth quarter on the partial disposal of its

interestin Total foran amount of $38 million.

NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS

Otheritemsin 2012 mainly comprised the Corporation’s share of:

> Acharge reported by Lifeco relating to litigation provision adjustments

of $99 million (of which $3 million was recorded by IGM), net of tax, in the
fourth quarter.

A non-cash charge recorded by IGM in the second quarter resulting from
increases in Ontario corporate income tax rates and their effect on the
deferred income tax liability related to indefinite life intangible assets
arising from prior business acquisitions, as well as the recording in the
fourth quarter of 2012 of a favourable change in income tax provision
estimates related to certain taxfilings.

GBLs impairment of its investment in GDF Suez in the fourth quarter,
representing an amount of $48 million, net of foreign currency gains
recorded by Pargesa and the Corporation.

The gains realized by GBL in the first quarter on the partial disposal of its
interestin Pernod Ricard in the amount of $46 millionand on the disposal
of itsinterestin Arkema in the amount of $43 million.

Goodwillimpairmentand restructuring charges recorded by Lafargein the
firstand second quarters shown in the table as other charge.

Net earnings attributable to common shareholders for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2013 were $1,896 million or $2.67 per share, compared

with $1,618 million or $2.29 per share in the corresponding period in 2012.
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CONDENSED SUPPLEMENTARY BALANCE SHEETS

CONSOLIDATED BASIS

Thefollowing table presents the components of the Corporation’s condensed consolidated balance sheets. The Lifeco and IGM columns are their condensed
consolidated balance sheets and Power Financial’s column isits non-consolidated balance sheet.

POWER FINANCIAL
CONSOLIDATED BASIS

POWER ELIMWAT‘S,C‘; DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 31,
FINANCIAL LIFECO IGM  RECLASSIFICATIONS 2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 925 2,791 1,082 (454) 4,344 3,313
Investments 27 128,574 5,920 389 134,910 123,603
Investmentsin Lifeco and IGM 13,285 350 718 (14,353) — -
Investment in Parjointco 2,437 = = = 2,437 2,121
Investmentsin ajointly controlled corporation and an associate - 227 - - 227 -
Funds held by ceding insurers = 10,832 = = 10,832 10,599
Reinsurance assets = 5,070 = = 5,070 2,064
Intangible assets = 3,456 1,825 = 5,281 4933
Goodwill - 5812 2,656 637 9,105 8,673
Otherassets 120 8,014 679 87) 8,726 7,848
Interest onaccount of segregated fund policyholders - 160,779 - - 160,779 105,432
Total assets 16,794 325,905 12,880 (13,868) 341,711 268,586
LIABILITIES
Insurance and investment contract liabilities = 132,063 = = 132,063 120,712
Obligations to securitization entities = = 5,572 = 5,572 4,701
Debentures and debtinstruments 250 5,740 1,325 (40) 7,275 5,817
Capital trust debentures = 163 = = 163 164
Other liabilities 431 7,161 1,275 (111) 8,756 8,095
Insurance and investment contracts on account of segregated
fund policyholders = 160,779 = = 160,779 105,432
Total liabilities 681 305,906 8,172 (151) 314,608 244,921
EQUITY
Perpetual preferred shares 2,755 2,314 150 (2,464) 2,755 2,255
Common shareholders’ equity 13,358 15,323 4 558 (19,881) 13,358 11,308
Non-controlling interests - 2,362 - 8,628 10,990 10,102
Total equity 16,113 19,999 4,708 (13.,717) 27,103 23,665
Total liabilities and equity 16,794 325,905 12,880 (13,868) 341,711 268,586

The consolidated balance sheets include the Corporation’s assets and  Liabilitiesincreased from $244.9 billion at December 31,2012 to $314.6 billion at
liabilities as well as Lifeco’sand IGM's. December 31,2013, mainly due to Lifeco’'s acquisition of Irish Life.

Total assets of the Corporation increased to $341.7 billion at December 31,2013, >

compared with $268.6 billion at December 31, 2012.

> Lifeco's acquisition of Irish Life resulted in increases in investments and >
otherassets foran amount of $10.2 billion and segregated fund assets for
anamount of $36.3 billion.

> |nvestments at December 31, 2013 were $134.9 billion, an $11.3 billion
increase from December 31, 2012, primarily related to Lifeco. See also the
discussionin the "Cash Flows" section below.
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Insurance and investment contract liabilities increased by $11.4 billion,
primarily due to the $7.0 billion impact of Lifeco's acquisition of Irish Life.

Insurance and investment contract liabilities on account of segregated
fund policyholders increased by $55.3 billion, primarily due to the
$36.3 billion impact of the Irish Life acquisition, market value gains and
investmentincome of $12.9 billion, and the impact of currency movements
of $7.2 billion.



NON-CONSOLIDATED BASIS

In the non-consolidated basis of presentation, Lifeco and IGM are accounted for by the Corporation using the equity method. This non-consolidated basis
of presentation, which is not in accordance with IFRS, enhances the review of financial performance and assists the reader by identifying changes in
Power Financial's non-consolidated balance sheets which includes its investments in Lifecoand IGM at equity.

DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
ASSETS

Cashand cash equivalents™ 925 984
Investments 27 -
Investments in subsidiaries at equity 13,285 11,042
Investmentin Parjointco at equity 2,437 2,121
Otherassets 120 102
Total assets 16,794 14,249
LIABILITIES

Debentures 250 250
Other liabilities 431 436
Total liabilities 681 686
EQUITY

Perpetual preferred shares 2,755 2,255
Common shareholders equity 13,358 11,308
Total equity 16,113 13,563
Total liabilities and equity 16,794 14,249

[1] Non-consolidated basis of presentation — cash equivalents include $454 million (5625 million at December 31, 2012) of fixed income securities with maturities
of more than 90 days. In the 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements, thisamountis classified in investments.

Cashand cash equivalents held by Power Financialamounted to $925 million
at December 31,2013, compared with $984 million at the end of December 2012
(see the“Cash Flows — Non-consolidated Basis” section below for details). The
amount of quarterly dividends declared by the Corporation but not yet paid
was $282 million at December 31, 2013. Dividends declared by IGM but not yet
received by the Corporation were $80 million at December 31, 2013.

In managing its cash and cash equivalents, Power Financial may hold cash
balancesorinvestin short-term paperorequivalents. As well, Power Financial
holds deposits denominated in foreign currencies and can be exposed to
fluctuations in exchange rates. To mitigate the effect of such fluctuations,
Power Financial may, from time to time, enter into currency hedging
transactions with counterparties having high creditratings. Asat December 31,
2013, approximately 91% of the $925 million of cash and cash equivalents was
denominated in Canadian dollars orinforeign currencies with currency hedges
inplace.

The carrying value of Power Financial'sinvestmentsin Lifeco, IGM and Parjointco increased to $15,722 million at December 31,2013, compared with $13,163 million

at December 31,2012, as outlined in the following table:

LIFECO IGM PARJOINTCO TOTAL
Carryingvalue, at the beginning of the year 8,488 2,554 2,121 13,163
Investmentin subsidiaries 545 - - 545
Share of operating earnings 1,391 446 76 1,913
Share of otheritems 151 (@B)] 38 188
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) 688 39 260 987
Dividends (810) (318) (63) (1,191)
Other, including effect of change in ownership 115 (3) 5 117
Carryingvalue, at December 31,2013 10,568 2,717 2,437 15,722
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SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Perpetual preferred shares On February 28, 2013, the Corporation issued
12,000,000 4.80% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series S, for gross
proceeds of $300 million.

On December 11, 2013, the Corporation issued 8,000,000 4.20% Non-
Cumulative 5-year Rate Reset First Preferred Shares, Series T, for gross
proceeds of $200 million.

On January 31, 2014, the Corporation redeemed all of its $175 million 6.00%
Non-Cumulative 5-year Rate Reset First Preferred Shares, Series M.

Common shareholders’ equity Common shareholders’ equity was
$13,358 million at December 31, 2013, compared with $11,308 million at
December 31,2012. This $2,050 million increase was primarily due to:

> A $1,003 million increase in retained earnings, reflecting mainly net
earnings of $2,027 million, less dividends declared of $1,127 million and
otherincreases of $103 million principally due to a dilution gain related to
the decrease in ownership of Lifeco as a result of Lifeco issuing common
sharesin the third quarter of 2013.

> Anincreaseinreserves (other comprehensiveincome and amounts related
to share-based compensation) of $990 million, consisting of:

> Anincrease of $296 million due to actuarial gains related to pension
plans of the Corporation and of its subsidiaries.

> Positive foreign currency translation adjustments of $566 million.

> Adecreaseof $127 million related to the Corporation and its subsidiaries’
available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges.

CASH FLOWS

CONSOLIDATED BASIS (CONDENSED)

> Anincrease of $270 million mainly related to the Corporation’s share of
other comprehensive income of Pargesa.

> Anetdecrease of $S15millionin 2013 related to share-based compensation
of the Corporation andits subsidiaries.

> Inthetwelve-month period ended December 31,2013, 2,069,600 common
shares (930,400 in the corresponding period of 2012) were issued by the
Corporation pursuant to the Corporation’s Employee Stock Option Plan
foranaggregate consideration of $57 million (25 million in 2012), including
an amount of $12 million ($5 million in 2012) representing the cumulative
expensesrelated to these options.

Asaresult of theabove, the book value per common share of the Corporation
was $18.78 at December 31, 2013, compared with $15.95 at the end of 2012.

OUTSTANDING NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES

As of the date hereof, there were 711,173,680 common shares of the
Corporation outstanding, compared with 709,104,080 as at December 31,
2012. Theincreasein the number of outstanding common shares reflects the
exercise of options under the Corporation’'s Employee Stock Option Plan. As
of the date hereof, options were outstanding to purchase up to an aggregate
of 7,522,386 common shares of the Corporation under the Corporation’s
Employee Stock Option Plan.

The Corporation filed a short-form base shelf prospectus dated November 23,
2012, pursuant to which, fora period of 25 months thereafter, the Corporation
may issue up toanaggregate of $1.5 billion of First Preferred Shares, common
shares and unsecured debt securities, or any combination thereof. This
filing provides the Corporation with the flexibility to access debt and equity
markets on a timely basis to make changes to the Corporation’s capital
structure in response to changes in economic conditions and changes in its
financial condition.

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Cashflow from:

Operating activities 5,651 5,369

Financing activities 618 (561)

Investing activities (5,428) (4,872)
Effect of changesin exchangerates on cash and cash equivalents 190 (8)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,031 (72)
Cash and cash equivalents, at the beginning of the year 3,313 3,385
Cash and cash equivalents, at December 31 4,344 3,313

Onaconsolidated basis, cash and cash equivalentsincreased by $1,031 million
in the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2013, compared with a
decrease of $72 million in the corresponding period of 2012.

Operating activities produced a net inflow of $5,651 million in the twelve-
month period ended December 31, 2013, compared with a net inflow of
$5,369 million in the corresponding period of 2012.

Operating activities during the twelve-month period ended December 31,
2013, compared to the same period in 2012, included:

> Lifeco's cash flow from operations, which was a net inflow of $5,026 million,
compared with a net inflow of $4,722 million in the corresponding period
in2012. Cash provided by operating activitiesis used by Lifeco primarily to
pay policy benefits, policyholder dividends and claims, as well as operating
expensesand commissions. Cash flows generated by operationsare mainly
invested by Lifeco to support future liability cash requirements.
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> Operating activities of IGM which, after payment of commissions,
generated cash flows of $715 million, compared with $710 million in the
corresponding period of 2012.

Cash flows from financing activities, which include dividends paid on the
common and preferred shares of the Corporation, as well as dividends paid
by subsidiaries to non-controlling interests, represented a net inflow of
$618 millionin the twelve-month period ended December 31,2013, compared
with a net outflow of $561 million in the corresponding period of 2012.



Financing activities during the twelve-month period ended December 31,2013,
compared to the same period in 2012, included:

> Lifeco's cash flow from financing activities, representing a net inflow
of $493 million, compared with a net outflow of $1,037 million in the
corresponding period of 2012.

> Financing activities at IGM representing a net inflow of $117 million,
compared with a net inflow of $136 million in the corresponding period
of 2012.

> Dividends paid on common and preferred shares by the Corporation of
$1,123 million, compared with $1105 million in the corresponding period
of 2012.

> Issuance of common shares of the Corporation foran amount of $45 million
pursuant to the Corporation’s Employee Stock Option Plan, compared with
$20 millionin the corresponding period of 2012.

> Issuance of preferred shares by the Corporation for an amount
of $500 million, compared with an issuance of $250 million in the
corresponding period of 2012.

NON-CONSOLIDATED BASIS

Cash flows frominvesting activities resulted in a net outflow of $5,428 million
in the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2013, compared with a net
outflow of $4,872 million in the corresponding period of 2012.

Investing activities during the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2013,
compared to the same period in 2012, included:

> Investing activities at Lifeco resulted in a net outflow of $4,813 million,
compared with a net outflow of $3,838 million in the corresponding period
of 2012.

> Investing activities at IGM resulted in a net outflow of $808 million,
compared with a net outflow of $839 million in the corresponding period
of 2012.

> Inaddition, the Corporation decreased its level of fixed income securities
with maturities of more than 90 days, resulting ina netinflow of $171 million,
compared with an increase in the corresponding period of 2012 for a net
outflow of $195 million.

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings before dividends on perpetual preferred shares 2,027 1,735
Earnings from Lifeco, IGM and Parjointco not received in cash (910) (624)
Other 11) 8
1,106 1,119

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid on common and preferred shares (1,123) (1,105)
Issuance of perpetual preferred shares 500 250
Issuance of common shares 45 20
Shareissue costs (14) 7)
(592) (842)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Lifeco common shares (545) -
Purchase of investment (26) -
Other (2) -
(573) -
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (59) 277
Cash and cash equivalents, at the beginning of the year 984 707
Cash and cash equivalents, at December 31 925 984

Power Financialis a holding company —corporate cash flows from operating
activities, before payment of dividends on preferred shares and on common
shares, are principally made up of dividends received from Lifeco, IGM
and Parjointco and income from investments, less operating expenses,
financing charges, and income taxes. The ability of Lifeco and IGM, which
are also holding companies, to meet their obligations and pay dividends
dependsin particular upon receipt of sufficient funds from their subsidiaries.
The payment of interest and dividends by Lifeco’s principal subsidiaries is
subject to restrictions set out in relevant corporate and insurance laws and
regulations, which require that solvency and capital ratios be maintained. The
payment of dividends by IGM's principal subsidiaries is subject to corporate
laws and regulations which require that solvency standards be maintained.
In addition, certain subsidiaries of IGM must also comply with capital and
liquidity requirements established by regulatory authorities.

Dividends declared by Lifeco and IGM during the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2013 on their common shares amounted to $1.23 and $2.15 per
share, respectively, the same as in the corresponding period in 2012. In the
twelve-month period ended December 31, 2013, the Corporation recorded
dividends from Lifeco and IGM of $810 million (5797 million in 2012) and
$318 million (the same as in 2012), respectively.

Pargesa declares and pays an annual dividend in the second quarter ending
June 30. The dividend paid by Pargesa to Parjointco in 2013 amounted to
SF2.57 per bearer share, the same as in 2012. The Corporation received
dividends from Parjointco of SF59 million in 2013 (SF60 million in 2012).

Inthe twelve-month period ended December 31,2013, dividends declared on
the Corporation'scommon shares amounted to $1.40 per share, the same as
in the corresponding period of 2012.
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SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

In the preparation of the financial statements, management of the
Corporation and of its subsidiaries — Lifeco and IGM — are required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the assets, liabilities, net earnings
and related disclosures. Significant judgments made by management
of the Corporation and of its subsidiaries and key sources of estimation
uncertainty are: to entities to be consolidated, insurance and investment
contract liabilities, fair value measurement, investment impairment,
goodwilland intangible assets, income taxes, employee future benefits and
deferred selling commissions. They are described in the notes to the 2013
Consolidated Financial Statements. The major critical accounting estimates
are summarized below.

CONSOLIDATION

Management of the Corporation consolidates all subsidiaries and entitiesin
whichitis determined that the Corporation has control. Controlis evaluated
on the ability of the Corporation to direct the activities of the subsidiary or
otherstructured entity in order to derivevariablereturns. Management of the
Corporationand each of its subsidiaries apply judgment to determineifithas
control of the investee when it has less than a majority of the voting rights.

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Insurance and investment contract liabilities represent the amounts
required, in addition to future premiums and investment income, to provide
for future benefit payments, policyholder dividends, commission and policy
administrative expenses for all insurance and annuity policies in force
with Lifeco. The Appointed Actuaries of Lifeco’s subsidiary companies are
responsible for determining theamount of theliabilities to make appropriate
provisions for Lifeco’s obligations to policyholders. The Appointed Actuaries
determine the insurance and investment contract liabilities using generally
accepted actuarial practices, according to the standards established by the
Canadian Institute of Actuaries. The valuation of insurance contracts uses the
Canadian Asset Liability Method (CALM). This method involves the projection
of future eventsin order to determine theamount of assets that must be set
aside currently to provide for all future obligations and involves a significant
amount of judgment.

In the computation of insurance contract liabilities, valuation assumptions
have been made regarding rates of mortality and morbidity, investment
returns, levels of operating expenses, rates of policy termination and rates of
utilization of elective policy options or provisions. The valuation assumptions
use best estimates of future experience together with a margin for adverse
deviation. These margins are necessary to provide for possibilities of mis-
estimation and/or future deterioration in the best estimate assumptions
and provide reasonable assurance that insurance contract liabilities
cover a range of possible outcomes. Margins are reviewed periodically for
continued appropriateness.

Additional detail regarding these estimates can be found in Note 13 to the
Corporation’s 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Financialinstrument carrying values necessarily reflect the prevailing market
liquidity and theliquidity premiums embedded in the market pricing methods
that the Corporation, Lifecoand IGM rely upon. The following is a description
of the methodologies used to determine fair value.

Bonds at fair value through profit or loss and available for sale — Fair values for
bonds classified as fair value through profit or loss or available for sale are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices primarily provided by
third-party independent pricing sources. The Corporation andits subsidiaries
maximize the use of observableinputsand minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fairvalue. The Corporation and its subsidiaries obtain
quoted prices in active markets, when available, for identical assets at the
balance sheet date to measure bonds at fair value in its fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale portfolios. Where prices are not quoted
inanormally active market, fair values are determined by valuation models.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries estimate the fair value of bonds not
tradedinactive markets by referring to actively traded securities with similar
attributes, dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, discounted cash
flow analyses and/orinternal valuation models. This methodology considers
such factorsas theissuer'sindustry, the security's rating, term, coupon rate
and positionin the capital structure of theissuer, as well asyield curves, credit
curves, prepayment rates and other relevant factors. For bonds that are not
tradedinactive markets, valuations are adjusted to reflect illiquidity, and such
adjustmentsare generally based on available market evidence. In the absence
of such evidence, management'’s best estimate is used.

Shares at fair value through profit or loss and available for sale — Fair values for
publicly traded shares are generally determined by the last bid price for the
security from the exchange whereitis principally traded. Fairvalues for shares
forwhich thereis no active market are determined by discounting expected
future cash flows. The Corporation and its subsidiaries maximize the use
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The Corporation and its subsidiaries obtain quoted
prices in active markets, when available, foridentical assets at the balance
sheets dates to measure shares at fairvalue in its fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale portfolios.

Mortgages and other loans, and Bonds classified at fair value through profit or
loss and, loans and receivables — Fair values for mortgages and other loans
designated at fairvalue through profit orloss arevalued using market interest
rates for loans with similar credit risk and maturity. For disclosure purposes
only, fairvalues for bonds, and mortgages and otherloans, classified asloans
and receivables, are determined by discounting expected future cash flows
using current market rates. Valuation inputs typically include benchmark
yields and risk-adjusted spreads based on current lending activities and
market activity.

Investment properties — Fair values forinvestment properties are determined
using independent qualified appraisal services and include adjustments
for material changes in property cash flows, capital expenditures or
general market conditions in the interim period between appraisals. The
determination of the fair value of investment property requires the use of
estimates including future cash flows (such as future leasing assumptions,
rental rates, capital and operating expenditures) and discount, reversionary
and overall capitalization rates applicable to the asset based on current
market conditions. Investment properties under construction are valued
at fair value if such values can be reliably determined; otherwise, they are
recorded at cost.



INVESTMENT IMPAIRMENT

Investments are reviewed reqgularly on an individual basis to determine
impairment status. The Corporation and its subsidiaries consider various
factors in the impairment evaluation process, including, but not limited to,
the financial condition of the issuer, specific adverse conditions affecting
an industry or region, decline in fair value not related to interest rates,
bankruptcy or defaults, and delinquency in payments of interest or principal.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale shares are recorded if the loss is
significant or prolonged and subsequent losses are recorded in net earnings.

Investments are deemed to be impaired when thereis nolongerreasonable
assurance of timely collection of the fullamount of the principal and interest
due. Thefairvalue of aninvestmentis not a definitive indicator of impairment,
asitmay besignificantly influenced by otherfactors, including the remaining
term to maturity and liquidity of the asset. However, market price is taken
into consideration when evaluating impairment.

For impaired mortgages and other loans, and bonds classified as loans and
receivables, provisions are established orimpairments recorded to adjust the
carryingvalue to the net realizableamount. Wherever possible the fair value of
collateralunderlying theloans or observable market priceis used to establish
net realizable value. For impaired available-for-sale bonds, recorded at fair
value, theaccumulated lossrecorded in the investment revaluation reserves
is reclassified to net investment income. Impairments on available-for-sale
debtinstrumentsarereversedif thereisobjective evidence thata permanent
recovery hasoccurred. All gainsand losses on bonds classified or designated as
fairvaluethrough profitorloss are already recorded in net earnings, therefore,
areduction due toimpairment of these assets will be recorded in net earnings.
As well, when determined to be impaired, contractual interest is no longer
accrued and previous interest accruals are reversed.

Fairvalue movement on the assets supporting insurance contract liabilities
isa major factor in the movement of insurance contract liabilities. Changes
in the fair value of bonds designated or classified as fair value through
profit or loss that supportinsurance contract liabilities are largely offset by
corresponding changes in the fair value of liabilities, except when the bond
has been deemed impaired.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES IMPAIRMENT TESTING
Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events indicate that impairment may have
occurred. Intangible assets that were previously impaired are reviewed
at each reporting date for evidence of reversal. In the event that certain
conditions have been met, there would be a requirement to reverse the
impairment charge ora portion thereof.

Goodwill has been allocated to groups of cash generating units (CGU),
representing the lowest level in which goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes. Goodwill is tested for impairment by comparing the
carrying value of the groups of CGU to the recoverable amount to which the
goodwill has been allocated. Intangible assets are tested forimpairment by
comparing the asset's carryingamount to its recoverable amount.

Animpairmentlossisrecognized for theamount by which theasset's carrying
amountexceeds its recoverableamount. The recoverableamountis the higher
of theasset's fairvalue less cost to sell orvaluein use, which is calculated using
the presentvalue of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated.

INCOME TAXES

Theincome tax expense forthe period represents the sum of currentincome
tax and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognized as an expense or
income in the statements of earnings except to the extent that it relates to
items thatare not recognized in the statements of earnings (whetherin other
comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case the income tax is
alsorecognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax — Current income tax is based on taxable income for the
year. Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation
authorities using therates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
atthe balance sheetdate. Currenttaxassetsand currentincome taxliabilities
are offset, ifalegally enforceableright exists to offset the recognized amounts
and the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

A provision for tax uncertainties which meet the probable threshold for
recognitionis measured based on the probability weighted average approach.

Deferred income tax — Deferred income tax is the tax expected to be payable
orrecoverable on differencesarising between the carryingamounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statementsand the corresponding tax basis used
in the computation of taxable income and on unused tax attributes and is
accounted forusing the balance sheet liability method. Deferred taxliabilities
are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
taxassetsarerecognized to theextentthatitis probable thatfuture taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences and
unused tax attributes can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates expected to
applyintheyearwhentheassetisrealized or the liability is settled, based on
taxratesand taxlaws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assetsand deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to net current tax assets against current
income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

The carryingamount of deferred taxassetsis reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
future taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset tobeutilized. Unrecognized deferred taxassetsarereassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in the subsidiaries, jointly controlled corporations
and associate, except where the group controls the timing of the reversal of
thetemporary differenceanditis probable that the temporary difference will
notreversein the foreseeable future.
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PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS

The Corporation and its subsidiaries maintain funded defined benefit pension
plans for certain employeesandadvisors, unfunded supplementary employee
retirement plans for certain employees, and unfunded post-employment
health, dental and life insurance benefits to eligible employees, advisors
and their dependants. The Corporation’s subsidiaries also maintain defined
contribution pension plans for eligible employees and advisors. The defined
benefit pension plans provide pensions based on length of service and final
average earnings.

The cost of the defined benefit plans earned by eligible employees and advisors
is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method prorated
on service based upon management of the Corporation and its subsidiaries’
assumptions about discount rates, compensation increases, retirement
ages of employees, mortality and expected health care costs. Any changes
intheseassumptions willimpact the carryingamount of pension obligations.
The Corporation and its subsidiaries’ accrued benefit liability in respect of
defined benefit plansis calculated separately foreach plan by discounting the
amount of the benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in current and prior periods and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The Corporation and its subsidiaries determine the net interest component
of the pension expense for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the accrued benefitliability at the beginning of the annual period to
the net accrued benefit liability. The discount rate used to value liabilities is
determined using ayield curve of AA-rated corporate debt securities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS

OnJanuary1,2013, the Corporation andits subsidiaries adopted revised IAS19
(IAS19R), Employee Benefits. In accordance with the required transitional
provisions, the Corporation and its subsidiaries retrospectively applied the
revised standard. The 2012 comparative financial information in the financial
statements and related notes has been restated accordingly.

The amendments made to IAS 19 include the elimination of the corridor
approach for actuarial gains and losses which resulted in those gains and
losses being recognized immediately through other comprehensive income.
Asaresult, the net pension asset or liability reflects the funded status of the
pension plans on the consolidated balance sheets. In addition, all service
costs, including curtailments and settlements, are recognized immediately
innetearnings.

Additionally, the expected return on plan assetsisnolongerapplied to thefair
value of the assets to calculate the benefit cost. Under the revised standard,
the same discount rate must be applied to the benefit obligation and the
planassets to determine the netinterest cost. This discount rate for the net
interest cost is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on high quality corporate bonds.
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If the plan benefits are changed, ora planis curtailed, any past service costs
or curtailment gains or losses are recognized immediately in net earnings.
Current service costs, past service costs and curtailment gains or losses are
included in operating and administrative expenses.

Remeasurementsarising from defined benefit plansrepresentactuarial gains
and lossesand theactual returnonplanassets, lessinterest calculated at the
discount rate. Remeasurements are recognized immediately through other
comprehensiveincome and are not reclassified to net earnings.

The accrued benefit asset (liability) represents the plan surplus (deficit) and
isincluded in otherassets or other liabilities.

Payments to the defined contribution plans are expensed asincurred.

DEFERRED SELLING COMMISSIONS

Commissions paid on the sale of certain mutual fund products are deferred
and amortized overa maximum period of seven years. IGM regularly reviews
thecarryingvalue of deferred selling commissions with respect to any events
or circumstances that indicate impairment. Among the tests performed by
IGM to assess recoverability is the comparison of the future economic benefits
derived from the deferred selling commission assetin relation toits carrying
value. At December 31, 2013, there were no indications of impairment to
deferred selling commissions.

Further, the revised standard includes changes to how the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of the plan assets and the components of the
pension expense are presented and disclosed within the financial statements
ofanentity, including the separation of the totalamount of the pension plans
and other post-employment benefits expense between amounts recognized
inthe statements of earnings (service costsand netinterest costs)and in the
statements of comprehensive income (remeasurements). Disclosures relating
to retirement benefit plansinclude discussions concerning the pension plan
risk, sensitivity analysis, an explanation of items recognized in the financial
statements and descriptions of the amount, timing and uncertainty of the
future cash flows.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IAS 19R, this change has
been applied retroactively, which resulted in a decrease to opening equity at
January1, 2012 of $474 million (decrease of $311 million in shareholders’ equity
and $163 million in non-controlling interests), with an additional decrease
to equity of $233 million (decrease of $155 million in shareholders’equity and
$78 million in non-controlling interests) at December 31, 2012.

The financial statement items restated due to IAS19R include other assets,
otherliabilities, investmentsin jointly controlled corporations and associate,
retained earnings, reserves (other comprehensive income) and non-
controlling interests disclosed in the financial statements.



The impact of the change in accounting policy on consolidated net earningsis as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012
Net earnings as previously reported 2,940
Adjustment to netearnings
Operating and administrative expenses (12)
Share of earnings of investment in jointly controlled corporation 4
Income tax 4
(12)
Net earnings restated 2,928

Due to the changein consolidated net earnings in 2012, basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31,2012 decreased by $0.01.

IFRS 10—CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS On January 1, 2013,
the Corporation and its subsidiaries adopted IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements (IFRS 10). The Corporation and its subsidiaries have evaluated
whetherornottoconsolidatean entity based on a revised definition of control.
The standard defines control as dependent on the power of the investor to
direct therelevantactivities of the investee, the ability of theinvestor to derive
variable benefits fromits holdingsin theinvestee, and a direct link between the
power to direct activities and receive benefits.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries assessed the impact of the adoption
of IFRS 10 on all its holdings and other investees, resulting in the following
adjustments:

Insurance and investment contracts on account of segregated fund
policyholders — Lifeco assessed the revised definition of control for the
segregated fundsfor therisk of policyholders and concluded that the revised
definition of control was not significantly impacted. Lifeco will continue
to present the segregated funds for the risk of policyholders as equal and
offsettingamounts with assets and liabilities within the balance sheets and
has expanded disclosure on the nature of these entities and the related risks.

In addition, in circumstances where the segregated fund is invested in
structured entities and is deemed to control this entity, Lifeco has presented
the non-controlling ownership interest within the segregated funds for the risk
of policyholders as equal and offsetting amounts with assets and liabilities. This
changedid notimpact the netearningsand equity of the Corporation, however
it resulted in an increase to segregated funds for the risk of policyholders as
equal and offsettingamounts on the balance sheets with assets and liabilities
of $484 million at December 31,2012 and $403 million at January1, 2012.

The application of IFRS 10 for segregated funds for the risk of policyholders
may continue to evolve as European insurers are required to adopt IFRS 10
on January 1, 2014. Lifeco will continue to monitor these and other IFRS 10
developments.

See Note 12 to the Corporation’s 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information on the presentationand disclosure of these structures.

Capital trust securities — Canada Life Capital Trust and Great-West Life
Capital Trust (the capital trusts) were consolidated by Lifeco under IAS 27,
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. The capital trusts will no
longer be consolidated in the Corporation's financial statements as Lifeco's
investment in the capital trusts does not have exposure to variable returns
and therefore does not meet the revised definition of control in IFRS10.

The changein consolidationdid notimpact the net earnings and equity of the
Corporation, however the deconsolidation resulted inanincrease to bonds of
$45 million at December 31,2012 and $282 million at January 1, 2012, both with
correspondingincreasesto the capital trust debentures on the balance sheets.

Other — Also as a result of the adoption of IFRS 10, Lifeco reclassified on the
balance sheets $47 million between shares and investment properties at
December 31, 2012 and $48 million at January 1, 2012. The Corporation also
reclassified $41 million of bonds, and debentures and debt instruments at
December 31,2012 and $39 million at January1, 2012.

IFRS11—)JOINT ARRANGEMENTS Onjanuary1,2013, the Corporationand
its subsidiaries adopted the guidance in IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements (IFRS 1),
which separates jointly controlled entities between joint operations and
joint ventures. The standard eliminates the option of using proportionate
consolidationinaccounting for theinterestsinjointventures with requiring
entities to use the equity method inaccountingforinterestsinjointventures.
The Corporation concluded that Parjointco constitutes a joint venture as
the contractual arrangement provides the parties to the joint arrangement
with arighttothenetassetsinstead of theindividualassetsand obligations.
Consequently, the Corporation will continue to record its investment in
this jointly controlled corporation using the equity method of accounting.
The adoption of this standard had no impact on the financial statements of
the Corporation.

IFRS12—DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES OnJanuary1,
2013, the Corporation and its subsidiaries adopted the guidance of IFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. The standard requires enhanced
disclosure, including how control was determined and any restrictions that
might exist on consolidated assetsand liabilities presented from subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates, and structured entities. The adoption of
this standard increased the disclosure concerning the subsidiaries, joint
arrangements and investments in associate by the Corporation but had no
impact on the financial results of the Corporation.

IFRS13—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OnJanuary1,2013, the Corporation
and its subsidiaries adopted IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The standard
consolidates the fair value measurement and disclosure guidance into one
standard. Fairvalueis defined as the price that would be received on the sale of
anasset or paid to transfera liability inan orderly transaction between market
participants. The standard had no significantimpact on the measurement of
the Corporation’sassets and liabilities but does require additional disclosure
related to fair value measurement (see Note 28 to the Corporation’s 2013
Consolidated Financial Statements). The standard has been applied on a
prospective basis.

IAS 1—PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS On January 1, 2013,
the Corporation and its subsidiaries adopted the guidance of the amended
IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. Under the amended standard,
other comprehensive income is classified by nature and grouped according
toitems that will be reclassified subsequently to net earnings (when specific
conditions are met) and those that will not be reclassified. This revised
standard relates only to presentation and has not impacted the financial
results of the Corporation. Theamendments have been applied retroactively.

IFRS7—FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: DISCLOSURE OnJanuary1,2013, the
Corporationandits subsidiaries adopted the guidance in theamendments to
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure, which introduces financial instrument
disclosuresrelated torights of offsetand related arrangements under master
nettingagreements. Thisrevised standard relates only to disclosureand has
not impacted the financial results of the Corporation (see Note 27 to the
Corporation’s 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements).

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2013 ANNUAL REPORT 39



REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES

The Corporation and its subsidiaries continuously monitor the potential
changes proposed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and analyze the effect that changes in the standards may have on their
consolidated financial statements when they become effective.

IAS 32—FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PRESENTATION  Effective January 1,
2014, the Corporation and its subsidiaries will adopt the guidance in the
amendments to IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. The amended
standard clarifies the requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. The Corporation has evaluated theimpact of this standard and has
determined thatitwill notimpact the presentation of its financial statements.

IFRS 4—INSURANCE CONTRACTS In June 2013, the IASB issued a
revised IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts exposure draft proposing changes to the
accounting standard for insurance contracts. The revised proposals aim to
address measurement, presentation and transitional issues identified in
the initial exposure draft issued in July 2010 through consultation with the
insurance industry and financial statement users. The revised proposals
would expand upon the building block measurement model requiring an
insurer to measure insurance liabilities usinga model focusing on theamount,
timing, and uncertainty of future cash flows associated with fulfilling its
insurance contracts.

The proposed standard differs significantly from Lifeco’s current accounting
and actuarial practices under CALM. Current accounting practices closely
link the accounting valuations of insurance liabilities and the specific assets
used to support those liabilities, thereby minimizing accounting mismatches
when liabilities and assets are well-matched economically. The IASB proposals
would measure mostinsurance contract liabilities based on currentinterest
rates, and, under March 2013 proposed amendments to IFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, investment assets in certain debt securities would also be
carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). As
a result, changes in the carrying value of both insurance liabilities and
investment assets as a result of interest rate changes would be reflected in
other comprehensive income rather thanin profit orloss. While this proposal
would excludeinterest rate-related volatility from profit or loss, certain other
assetsused tosupportinsurance liabilities do not qualify for FVOCI treatment,
such as loans and receivables, which would be measured at amortized cost,
and other assets such as equity investments, which would be measured at
fairvalue through profitorloss.

The IASB's revised proposals will also affect the calculation of insurance
contract liabilities, as well as change the presentation of insurance contract
revenue being recognized during the period and disclosure within the
financial statements.
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On October 25, 2013, Lifeco submitted a comment letter responding to the
IASB exposure draft raising concerns that users of the financial statements
will not obtain the faithful representation of the financial results of an insurer.
The exposure draft is expected to produce more volatile financial results
that, in Lifeco's opinion, do not reflect how insurance contracts truly affect
an entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The
Accounting Standards Board's (AcSB) November 1, 2013 response to the IASB
exposuredraftincluded proposed amendments to reduce the volatility of the
financial results of an insurer. The IASB is currently deliberating comments
received on the exposure draft.

On January 6, 2014, Lifeco submitted a comment letter responding to the
ACSB's Exposure Draft ED/2013/7 on Insurance Contracts which posed the
question“Is the Draft Standard appropriate for Canadian entities?”

Lifeco continues to actively monitor developmentsin thisareaand thatit will
continue to measureinsurance contract liabilities under current accounting
and actuarial policies, including CALM, untila new IFRS forinsurance contract
measurementisissued and effective.

IFRS 9—FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS The IASB issued IFRS 9, Financial
Instruments in 2010 to replace IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. The IASB intends to make further changes in financial
instrumentsaccounting, and has separated its project toamend IFRS 9 into
three phases: classification and measurement, impairment methodology
and hedge accounting.

> ThelASBreleasedaproposaltoamend the classificationand measurement
provisions of IFRS 9 with an additional limitedamendment to the standard
introducing a new category for classification of certain financial assets of
FVOCI. The IASB intends to release a final IFRS on this phase in the first
half of 2014.

> The IASB released a revised exposure draft in March 2013 on the expected
loss impairment method to be used for financial assets. The IASB intends
toreleaseafinal IFRS on this phasein the first half of 2014.

> The IASB has finalized deliberations on the criteria for hedge accounting
and measuring effectiveness and released the final hedge accounting
phase in November 2013. The Corporation is evaluating the impact this
standard will have on the presentation of its financial statements.

The full impact of IFRS 9 on the Corporation and its subsidiaries will be
evaluated after the remaining stages of the IASB's project to replace IAS 39.
In July 2013, the IASB tentatively decided to defer the mandatory effective
date of IFRS 9, which will not be set until the finalization of the impairment
methodology and classificationand measurement requirements phases. The
Corporation and its subsidiaries continue to actively monitor this standard.
In the case of Lifeco, this is done in combination with the monitoring of
developmentsto IFRS 4.



RISK FACTORS

There are certain risks inherent in an investment in the securities of the
Corporationandin the activities of the Corporation, including the following
and otherrisks discussed elsewhere in thisdocument, which investors should
carefully consider before investing in securities of the Corporation. This
description of risks does notinclude all possible risks, and there may be other
risks of which the Corporationis not currently aware.

Power Financial is a holding company that holds substantial interests in the
financial services sector throughits controlling interestin each of Lifecoand
IGM. Asaresult, investorsin Power Financial are subject to therisks affecting
its subsidiaries, including those that Power Financial has as the principal
shareholder of each of Lifeco and IGM. Pargesa, a holding company, is also
subject to risk due to the nature of its activities and also those of its direct
subsidiary GBL and indirect subsidiary Imerys. These risks relate to credit,
liquidity and market risk as described in Pargesa’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2013.

As a holding company, Power Financial's ability to pay interest and other
operating expenses and dividends, to meet its obligations and to complete
current or desirable future enhancement opportunities or acquisitions
generally depends upon receipt of sufficient dividends from its principal
subsidiaries and other investments and its ability to raise additional capital.
The likelihood that shareholders of Power Financial will receive dividends
will be dependent upon the operating performance, profitability, financial
position and creditworthiness of the subsidiaries of Power Financial and
on their ability to pay dividends to Power Financial. The payment of interest
and dividends by certain of these principal subsidiaries to Power Financial is
also subject to restrictions set forth in insurance, securities and corporate
laws and regulations which require that solvency and capital standards be
maintained by such companies.

If required, the ability of Power Financial to arrange additional financing
in the future will depend in part upon prevailing market conditions as well
as the business performance of Power Financial and its subsidiaries. There

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

GUARANTEES

Inthe normal course of their operations, the Corporation andits subsidiaries
may enter into certain agreements, the nature of which precludes the
possibility of making a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential
amount the Corporation or subsidiary could be required to pay third parties,
as some of these agreements do not specify a maximum amount and the
amounts are dependent on the outcome of future contingent events, the
nature and likelihood of which cannot be determined.

can be no assurance that debt or equity financing will be available, or,
togetherwith internally generated funds, will be sufficient to meet or satisfy
Power Financial's objectives or requirementsor, if the foregoing are available
to Power Financial, that they will be on terms acceptable to Power Financial.
The inability of Power Financial to access sufficient capital on acceptable
terms could have a material adverse effect on Power Financial's business,
prospects, dividend paying capability and financial condition, and further
enhancement opportunities or acquisitions.

The market price for Power Financial's securities may be volatile and
subject to fluctuations in response to numerous factors, many of which
are beyond Power Financial's control. Economic conditions may adversely
affect Power Financial and its subsidiaries, including fluctuations in foreign
exchange, inflation and interestrates, as wellas monetary policies, business
investment and the health of capital markets in Canada, the United States,
Europe and Asia. In recent years, financial markets have experienced
significant price and volume fluctuations that have affected the market
prices of equity securities held by the Corporationand its subsidiaries and that
have often been unrelated to the operating performance, underlying asset
values or prospects of such companies. These factors may cause decreases
in asset values that are deemed to be significant or prolonged, which may
result in impairment charges. In periods of increased levels of volatility and
related market turmoil, Power Financial's subsidiaries’ operations could be
adverselyimpacted and the trading price of Power Financial's securities may
be adversely affected.

The Corporation from time to time uses derivative financial instruments
for purposes of risk management. On October 16, 2013, the Corporation
purchased six-month equity put options on the S&P 500 with a notional
amount of $3.4 billion for consideration of $21 million asa macro capital hedge
against a severe decline in equity markets asa result of political uncertainty
regarding the status of the borrowing authority of the United States
government (See also the "Derivative Financial Instruments” section below).

LETTERS OF CREDIT

Inthe normal course of Lifeco's reinsurance business, its subsidiaries provide
letters of credit to other parties or beneficiaries. A beneficiary will typically
hold a letter of credit as collateral in order to secure statutory credit for
insurance and investment contract liabilities ceded to or amounts due
from Lifeco's subsidiaries. A letter of credit may be drawn upon demand. If
an amount is drawn on a letter of credit by a beneficiary, the bank issuing
the letter of credit will make a payment to the beneficiary for the amount
drawn, and Lifeco's subsidiaries will become obligated to repay thisamount
to the bank.

Lifeco has disclosed that, through certain of its operating subsidiaries,
it has provided letters of credit to both external and internal parties,
which are described in Note 32 to the Corporation’s 2013 Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Corporation and its subsidiaries are from time to time subject to legal
actions, including arbitrations and classactions, arising in the normal course
of business. It is inherently difficult to predict the outcome of any of these
proceedings with certainty, and it is possible that an adverse resolution
could have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of

COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

the Corporation. However, based on information presently known, itis not
expected that any of the existing legal actions, either individually or in the
aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position of the Corporation.

LESSTHAN MORE THAN

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD TOTAL 1YEAR 1-5YEARS SYEARS
Long-term debt™ 7,275 658 966 5,651
Deposits and certificates 187 171 11 5
Obligations to securitization entities 5,572 890 4649 33
Operating leases® 708 155 428 125
Purchase obligations®! 197 61 103 33
Contractual commitmentst 466 466 - -
Total 14,405 2,401 6,157 5,847

Letters of credit®®

1

Please refer to Note 15 to the Corporation’s 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements for furtherinformation.

[2] Includes office space and equipment used in the normal course of business. Lease payments are charged to operations in the period of use.

[3] Purchase obligations are commitments of Lifeco to acquire goods and services, essentially related to information services.

[4] Representscommitments by Lifeco. These contractual commitments are essentially commitments of investment transactions made in the normal course
of operations, inaccordance with its policies and guidelines, which are to be disbursed upon fulfilment of certain contract conditions.

[5] Pleasereferto Note 32 to the Corporation’s 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In the normal course of business, Great-West Life enters into various
transactions with related companies which include providing insurance
benefits and sub-advisory services to other companies within the
Power Financial Corporation group of companies. In all cases, transactions
areat market terms and conditions.

Lifeco provides reinsurance, asset managementand administrative services
for employee benefit plans relating to pension and other post-employment
benefits foremployees of Power Financial.

IGM also enters into transactions with subsidiaries of Lifeco. These
transactionsare in the normal course of operations and include (i) providing
certain administrative services, (ii) distributing insurance products and
(iii) the sale of residential mortgages to Great-West Life and London Life for
$204 million in 2013 ($232 million in 2012).
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On January 7, 2014, the Corporation renewed its tax loss consolidation
transactions with IGM. The Corporation acquired $1.67 billion of 4.50%
secured debentures of IGM. As sole consideration for the debentures, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Power Financial issued $1.67 billion of 4.51% preferred
sharesto IGM. The Corporation haslegally enforceablerights to settle these
financialinstruments on a net basis and the Corporation intends to exercise
theserights.



FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of the
Corporation'sfinancial assets and financial liabilities. The table distinguishes
betweenthosefinancialinstruments recorded at fairvalue and those recorded
atamortized cost. The table also excludes fair value information for financial
assetsandfinancial liabilities not measured at fairvalue if the carryingamount
is a reasonable approximation of fair value. These items include cash and
cash equivalents, dividends, interest and accounts receivable, income tax
receivable, loans to policyholders, certain other financial assets, accounts

payable, repurchase agreements, dividends payable, interest payable, income
tax payable and certain other financial liabilities. Fair value represents the
amount that would be exchanged in an arm’s-length transaction between
willing parties and is best evidenced by a quoted market price, if one exists.
Fairvalues represent management's estimates and are generally calculated
using market information and at a specific point in time and may not
reflect future fair values. The calculations are subjective in nature, involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment (please refer to Note 28
to the Corporation’s 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements).

2013 2012
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
AS AT DECEMBER 31 VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
FINANCIALASSETS
Financial assets recorded at fair value
Bonds
Fairvalue through profit or loss 70,104 70,104 65,050 65,050
Available for sale 8,370 8,370 7,407 7,407
Mortgages and otherloans
Fairvalue through profit or loss 324 324 249 249
Shares
Fairvalue through profit orloss 7,297 7,297 5,949 5,949
Available for sale 117 117 138 138
Investment properties 4288 4,288 3,572 3,572
Derivative instruments 654 654 1,060 1,060
Otherassets 396 396 285 285
91,550 91,550 83,710 83,710
Financial assets recorded at amortized cost
Bonds
Loans and receivables 11,855 12,672 10,934 12,438
Mortgages and otherloans
Loans and receivables 24,591 25,212 22,548 23,859
Shares
Available for sale 632 632 674 674
37,078 38,516 34,156 36,971
Total financial assets 128,628 130,066 117,866 120,681
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities recorded at fair value
Investment contract liabilities (889) (889) (739) (739)
Derivative instruments (779) (779) (413) (413)
Otherliabilities (20) (20) (141) (141)
(1,688) (1,688) (1,293) (1,293)
Financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost
Obligation to securitization entities (5,572) (5,671) (4,701) (4,787)
Debentures and debt instruments (7,275) (8,066) (5,817) 6,779)
Capital trust debentures (163) (205) (164) (216)
Deposits and certificates (187) (188) (163) (165)
(13,197) (14,130) (10,845) (11,947)
Total financial liabilities (14,885) (15,818) (12,138) (13,240)
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the course of their activities, the Corporation and its subsidiaries use
derivative financial instruments. When using such derivatives, they only act
aslimited end-usersand not as market-makersin such derivatives.

The use of derivatives is monitored and reviewed on a regular basis by
senior management of the respective companies. The Corporation and its
subsidiaries have each established operating policies and processes relating
to the use of derivative financial instruments, which in particularaim at:

> prohibiting the use of derivative instruments for speculative purposes;

> documenting transactions and ensuring their consistency with risk
management policies;

> demonstrating the effectiveness of the hedging relationships; and
> monitoring the hedging relationship.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries have policies, guidelines or procedures
relating to the identification, measurement, monitoring, mitigating and
controlling of risks associated with financial instruments. The key risks
related to financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(currency, interest rate and equity price risk).

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

There were no major changes to the Corporation'sand its subsidiaries’ policies
and procedures with respect to the use of derivative instruments in the
twelve-month period ended December 31, 2013. There has been an increase
in the notional amount outstanding (528,559 million at December 31, 2013,
compared with $17178 million at December 31, 2012) and a decrease in the
exposure to credit risk (5654 million at December 31, 2013, compared with
$1,060 million at December 31,2012) that represents the market value of those
instruments, whichareinagain position. See Note 27to the Corporation’s 2013
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the type of
derivative financial instruments used by the Corporation and its subsidiaries.

On October 16, 2013, Lifeco purchased six-month equity put options on the
S&P 500 withanotionalamount of $6.8 billion for consideration of $41 million
asamacro capital hedge against a severe decline in equity marketsasaresult
of political uncertainty regarding the status of the borrowing authority
of the United States government. On October 16, 2013, the Corporation
also purchased similar six-month equity put options on the S&P 500 with a
notional amount of $3.4 billion for consideration of $21 million.

Based ontheirevaluations as of December 31,2013, and subject to the limitation described under the "Lifeco’s Limitation on Disclosure Controls and Procedures
& Internal Control over Financial Reporting” section below, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Corporation'’s

disclosure controls and procedures were effective as at December 31, 2013.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting is designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with IFRS. The Corporation’s management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting. All internal control systems have inherent limitations and may
become ineffective because of changesin conditions. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance
with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

The Corporation's management, under the supervision of the Chief Executive
Officerand the Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the
Corporation'sinternal control over financial reporting as at December 31,2013,

based on the Internal Control — Integrated Framework (COSO Framework)
published in 1992 by The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation and subject to the
limitation described under the “Lifeco’s Limitation on Disclosure Controls
and Procedures & Internal Control over Financial Reporting” section below,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded
thatthe Corporation’sinternal control overfinancial reporting was effective
asat December 31,2013.

In2013, there have been no changesin the Corporation'sinternal control over
financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting.

LIFECO’S LIMITATION ON DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES & INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Lifeco's management, as permitted by securities legislation, for the period
ended December 31, 2013, has limited the scope of its design of Lifeco’s
disclosure controls and procedures and Lifeco’s internal control over financial
reporting to exclude controls, policies and procedures of Irish Life, which
Lifeco acquired onjuly 18, 2013.
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Since the date of acquisition to December 31, 2013, Irish Life had revenue
of $526 million and net earnings of $85 million (excluding $11 million
of restructuring costs incurred by Irish Life). At December 31, 2013 Irish
Life's total assets were $48.4 billion, including investments on account of
segregated fund policyholders of $38.2 billion. Total liabilities for Irish Life were
$46.3 billion, including $38.2 billion of investment and insurance contracts on
account of segregated fund policyholders.



RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

On February 3, 2014, the Court of Appeal for Ontario released a decision in
regard to the involvement of the participating accounts of Lifeco subsidiaries
London Lifeand Great-West Life in the financing of the acquisition of London
Insurance Group Inc. in1997. This decision overturned the Ontario Superior
Court's January 24, 2013 decision regarding the amounts to be reallocated to
the participatingaccount surplus. The Court of Appeal reduced the previously

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION

ordered amount of $285 million to $52 million ($27 millionin respect of London
Lifeand $25 millionin respect of Great-West Life). During the subsequent event
period, in response to the Court of Appeal’s decision, Lifeco recorded, in the
fourth quarter of 2013, the recovery which positively impacted net earnings
attributable to common shareholders of Lifeco by $226 million, after tax.
Power Financial's share of thisamount was $156 million.

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012 20110
Total revenuel 28,830 32,934 32,433
Operating earnings attributable to common shareholderst 4 1,708 1,678 1,729
per share —basic 2.40 2.37 2.44
Net earnings attributable to common shareholderst 1,896 1,618 1,722
per share —basic 2.67 2.29 2.43
per share —diluted 2.63 2.27 2.41
Earnings from continuing operations attributable
tocommon shareholders 1,896 1,618 1,684
per share — basic 2.67 2.29 2.38
per share —diluted 2.63 2.27 2.36
Consolidated assets!? 3 341,711 268,586 252,678
Total financial liabilities 3! 14,885 12,138 15,184
Debenturesand debtinstruments 7,275 5,817 5,888
Shareholders’ equity 16,113 13,563 13,521
Book value per share 18.78 15.95 16.26
Number of common shares outstanding [millions] 711.2 709.1 708.2
Dividends per share [declared]
Common shares 1.4000 1.4000 1.4000
First preferred shares
Series A 0.5250 0.5250 0.5250
Series D 1.3750 1.3750 1.3750
Series E 1.3125 1.3125 1.3125
Series F 1.4750 1.4750 1.4750
SeriesH 1.4375 1.4375 1.4375
Series| 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000
Series K 1.2375 1.2375 1.2375
Series L 1.2750 1.2750 1.2750
Series M®! 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000
Series O 1.4500 1.4500 1.4500
Series P 1.1000 1.1000 1.1000
Series Rl 1.3750 1.2837
Series SV 1.1006
Series Tl

E

include revenues from discontinued operations.

The 2011 figures have not been adjusted to reflect current period reclassifications and new and revised IFRS adopted on January 1, 2013. The 2011 figures also

[2] Duringthevyear, the Corporation reclassified comparative figures for presentation adjustments.

[3] The 2012 figures, whereimpacted, have been restated for the retroactive impact of new and revised IFRS during 2013, most notably IAS 19R, Employee Benefits
and IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements.The 2011 figures also include earnings from discontinued operations of $38 million ($0.05 per share).

[4] Operating earnings and operating earnings per share are non-IFRS financial measures.

[5] Redeemedon)anuary 31, 2014.
[6] Issuedin February 2012.

CONRS)

Issuedin February 2013. The first payment of dividend was made on April 30, 2013 in the amount of $0.2006 per share. Regularannual dividend is $1.2000 per share.
Issued in December 2013. The first payment of dividend will be made on April 30, 2014 in the amount of $0.4027 per share. Regularannual dividend is $1.0500 per share.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS]

DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER 31,2012

JANUARY 1, 2012

[RESTATED — NOTE 3]

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents [Note 5] 4,344 3,313 3,385
Investments [Note 6]

Bonds 90,329 83,391 79,002

Mortgages and otherloans 24,915 22,797 21,518

Shares 8,046 6,761 6,360

Investment properties 4,288 3,572 3,249

Loans to policyholders 7,332 7,082 7,162

134,910 123,603 117,291

Funds held by ceding insurers [Note 7] 10,832 10,599 9,978
Reinsurance assets [Note 13] 5,070 2,064 2,061
Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate [Note 8] 2,664 2,121 2,205
Owner-occupied properties and capital assets [Note 9] 925 791 738
Derivative financial instruments [Note 27] 654 1,060 1,056
Otherassets [Note10] 5,907 4,774 4,281
Deferred tax assets [Note 18] 1,240 1,223 1,230
Intangible assets [Note11] 5,281 4,933 5,023
Goodwill [Note11] 9,105 8,673 8,786
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders [Note 12] 160,779 105,432 96,985
Total assets 341,711 268,586 253,019
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities [Note 13] 131,174 119,973 114,785
Investment contract liabilities [Note 13] 889 739 782
Obligation to securitization entities [Note 14] 5,572 4,701 3,827
Debentures and debt instruments [Note 15] 7,275 5,817 5,849
Capital trust debentures [Note 16] 163 164 815
Derivative financial instruments [Note 27] 779 413 427
Other liabilities [Note17] 6,898 6,664 6,088
Deferred tax liabilities [Note 18] 1,079 1,018 1,120
Insurance and investment contracts on account of segregated fund

policyholders [Note 12] 160,779 105,432 96,985
Total liabilities 314,608 244921 230,678
EQUITY
Stated capital [Note19]

Perpetual preferred shares 2,755 2,255 2,005

Common shares 721 664 639
Retained earnings 12,204 11,201 10,804
Reserves 433 (557) (238)
Total shareholders' equity 16,113 13,563 13,210
Non-controlling interests [Note 21] 10,990 10,102 9,131
Total equity 27,103 23,665 22,341
Total liabilities and equity 341,711 268,586 253,019

Approved by the Board of Directors

Signed,
Raymond Royer

Director
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Signed,
R. Jeffrey Orr

Director



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS] [RESTATED - NOTE 3]
REVENUES
Premium income
Gross premiums written 23,441 22,276
Ceded premiums (3,205) (3,019)
Total net premiums 20,236 19,257
Net investment income [Note 6]
Regular netinvestmentincome 5,635 5,700
Changein fairvalue through profit and loss (2,974) 2,675
2,661 8,375
Feeincome 5,933 5,302
Total revenues 28,830 32,934
EXPENSES
Policyholder benefits
Insurance and investment contracts
Gross 18,464 17,854
Ceded (1,744) (1,457)
16,720 16,397
Policyholder dividends and experience refunds 1,371 1,437
Changeininsurance andinvestment contract liabilities (280) 5,041
Total paid or credited to policyholders 17,811 22,875
Commissions 2,590 2,487
Operating and administrative expenses [Note 24] 4,474 3,806
Financing charges [Note 25] 400 409
Total expenses 25,275 29,577
3,555 3,357
Share of earnings of investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate [Note 8] 134 130
Earnings beforeincome taxes 3,689 3,487
Income taxes [Note 18] 678 559
Net earnings 3,011 2,928
Attributable to
Non-controlling interests [Note 21] 984 1,193
Perpetual preferred shareholders 131 117
Common shareholders 1,896 1,618
3,011 2,928
Earnings per common share [Note 30]
Net earnings attributable to common shareholders
- Basic 2.67 2.29
- Diluted 2.63 2.27
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS] [RESTATED — NOTE 3]
Netearnings 3,011 2,928
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to net earnings
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale assets
Unrealized gains (losses) (156) 85
Income tax (expense) benefit 35 (25)
Realized (gains) losses transferred to net earnings (70) (126)
Income tax expense (benefit) 15 31
(176) (35)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges
Unrealized gains (losses) (85) 14
Income tax (expense) benefit 33 (5)
Realized (gains) losses transferred to net earnings 2 2
Income tax expense (benefit) @ D)
(51) 10
Net unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) on translation of foreign operations
Unrealized gains (losses) on translation arising during the year 858 (78)
Unrealized gains (losses) on euro debt designated as hedge of net assets
of foreign operations (52) -
806 (78)
Share of other comprehensive income (losses) of jointly controlled corporations
and associate 251 (100)
Total —items that may be reclassified 830 (203)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to net earnings
Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit pension plans 633 (297)
Income tax (expense) benefit (174) 83
Share of other comprehensive income (losses) of jointly controlled corporations
and associate 23 7)
Total —items that will not be reclassified 482 (221)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 1,312 (424)
Total comprehensive income 4,323 2,504
Attributable to
Non-controlling interests 1,298 1,087
Perpetual preferred shareholders 131 117
Common shareholders 2,894 1,300
4,323 2,504
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

STATED CAPITAL

RESERVES

PERPETUAL COMPREHSIJ;\E/E NON-

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 PREFERRED COMMON RETAINED SHARE-BASED INCOME CONTROLLING TOTAL
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS] SHARES SHARES EARNINGS COMPENSATION [NOTE 29] TOTAL INTERESTS EQUITY
Balance, beginning of year

As previously reported 2,255 664 11,148 110 (148) (38) 10,343 24,372

Changesinaccounting policy [Note 3] - - 53 - (519) (519) (241) (707)
Asrestated 2,255 664 11,201 110 (667) (557) 10,102 23,665
Net earnings = = 2,027 = = = 984 3,011
Other comprehensive income = = = = 998 998 314 1,312
Total comprehensive income = = 2,027 = 998 998 1,298 4,323
Issue of perpetual preferred shares 500 - - - - - - 500
Dividends to shareholders

Common shares - - (996) - - - = (996)

Perpetual preferred shares = = (131) = = - - (131)
Dividends to non-controlling interests — — — — — — (685) (685)
Share-based compensation - - - 11 - 11 4 15
Stock options exercised - 57 - (26) - (26) 6) 25
Effects of changes in ownership,

capital and other = = 103 = 7 7 277 387
Balance, end of year 2,755 721 12,204 95 338 433 10,990 27,103

STATED CAPITAL RESERVES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 PERPETUAL COMPREH(E)J;\E/E NON-
(RESTATED — NOTE 3) PREFERRED COMMON RETAINED SHARE-BASED INCOME CONTROLLING TOTAL
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS] SHARES SHARES EARNINGS COMPENSATION [NOTE 29] TOTAL INTERESTS EQUITY
Balance, beginning of year

As previously reported 2,005 639 10,743 111 23 134 9,294 22,815

Changes in accounting policy [Note 3] = - 61 = (372) (372) (163) (474)
As restated 2,005 639 10,804 111 (349) (238) 9,131 22,341
Net earnings - - 1,735 - - - 1,193 2,928
Other comprehensive income - - - - (318) (318) (106) (424)
Total comprehensive income - - 1,735 - (318) (318) 1,087 2,504
Issue of perpetual preferred shares 250 - - - - - - 250
Dividends to shareholders

Common shares - - (992) - - - - (992)

Perpetual preferred shares - - 117) - - - - 117)
Dividends to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (659) (659)
Share-based compensation - - - 9 - 9 4 13
Stock options exercised - 25 - (10) - (10) 3) 12
Effects of changes in ownership,

capital and other - - (229) - - - 542 313
Balance, end of year 2,255 664 11,201 110 (667) (557) 10,102 23,665
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS] [RESTATED — NOTE 3]

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Earnings beforeincome taxes 3,689 3,487
Income tax paid, net of refunds received (426) (414)

Adjusting items

Changeininsurance andinvestment contract liabilities (567) 5,034
Changeinfunds held by ceding insurers 269 196
Changeinfunds held under reinsurance contracts (99) 203
Changeinreinsurance assets 321 42
Changein fairvalue through profit or loss 2,974 (2,675)
Other (510) (504)
5,651 5,369

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

By subsidiaries to non-controlling interests (685) (659)
Perpetual preferred shares (128) (114)
Common shares (995) (991)
(1,808) (1,764)
Issue of common shares by the Corporation [Note19] 45 20
Issue of perpetual preferred shares by the Corporation [Note 19] 500 250
Issue of common shares by subsidiaries 742 44
Issue of preferred shares by subsidiaries = 650
Repurchase of common shares by subsidiaries (122) (215)
Repurchase of preferred shares by subsidiaries (230) -
Changes in debt instruments 183 1)
Issue of euro-denominated debt [Note 4] 659 -
Changeinobligations related to assets sold under repurchase agreements (225) 2)
Changein obligations to securitization entities 873 874
Redemption of capital trust debentures - (409)
Other 1 (8)
618 (561)
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Bond salesand maturities 28,776 24,516
Mortgage loan repayments 1,910 2,071
Sale of shares 2,158 2,152
Changeinloans to policyholders 70 (57)
Change in repurchase agreements = (23)
Acquisition of Irish Life Group Limited, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired [Note 4] (1,234) -
Investmentin bonds (31,252) (27,716)
Investment in mortgage loans (3,541) (3,394)
Investmentin shares (2,048) (2,162)
Investment ininvestment properties and other (267) (259)
(5,428) (4,872)
Effect of changesin exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 190 ®)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,031 (72)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,313 3,385
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 4,344 3,313

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDES
Interest and dividends received 4,965 5,062
Interest paid 490 492
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ALLTABULAR AMOUNTS ARE IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Power Financial Corporation (Power Financial or the Corporation) is a
publicly listed company (TSX: PWF) incorporated and domiciled in Canada.
The registered address of the Corporation is 751 Victoria Square, Montréal,
Québec, Canada, H2Y 2J3.

Power Financial is a diversified international management and holding
company that holds interests, directly or indirectly, in companies in the
financial services industry in Canada, the United States and Europe and,
throughitsindirectinvestmentin Pargesa, a holding company with diversified
interestsin Europe-based companiesactiveinvarious sectors: minerals-based

specialties forindustry; cementaggregates concrete; oil, gasand alternative
energies; electricity, natural gas, and energy and environmental services;
water and waste management services; wines and spirits; and testing,
inspection and certification.

The Consolidated Financial Statements (financial statements) of
Power Financial for the year ended December 31, 2013 were approved by
the Board of Directors on March 19, 2014. The Corporation is controlled by
171263 Canada Inc., which is wholly owned by Power Corporation of Canada.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Power Financial at December 31, 2013 have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements include the accounts of Power Financial and all
its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis after elimination of intercompany
transactionsand balances. Subsidiaries are entities the Corporation controls
which meansthat the Corporation has power over the entity, itis exposed, or
hasrights, tovariablereturnsfromitsinvolvement and has the ability to affect
those returns through its use of power over the entity. Subsidiaries of the
Corporation are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Corporation obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. The Corporation will reassess whether or
notitcontrolsanentityiffactsand circumstancesindicate thereare changes
to one or more of the elements of control listed above.

The principal subsidiaries of the Corporation, whose accounts are included
onaconsolidated basis, are:

> Great-West Lifeco Inc., a public company (direct interest of 67.0% (2012 —
68.2%)), whose major operating subsidiary companies are The Great-West
Life Assurance Company, Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company,
London Life Insurance Company, The Canada Life Assurance Company, Irish
Life Group Limited and Putnam Investments, LLC.

> |IGM Financial Inc., a public company (direct interest of 58.6% (2012 - 58.7%)),
whose major operating subsidiary companies are Investors Group Inc. and
Mackenzie Financial Corporation.

> The Great-West Life Assurance Company holds 3.6% (2012 — 3.7%) of the
common shares of IGM Financial Inc., and IGM Financial Inc. holds 4.0%
(2012 - 4.0%) of the common shares of Great-West Lifeco Inc.

These financial statements include the results of Great-West Lifeco Inc.
and IGM Financial Inc. on a consolidated basis; the amounts shown in
the consolidated balance sheets, consolidated statements of earnings,
consolidated statements of comprehensiveincome, consolidated statements
of changesinequityand consolidated statements of cash flows are from the
publicly disclosed consolidated financial statements of Great-West Lifeco Inc.
and IGM Financial Inc., both as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013,
and the comparative year. The notes to Power Financial'sfinancial statements
are prepared using the notes to the financial statements of Great-West
Lifeco Inc. and IGM Financial Inc.

Jointly controlled corporations are entities in which unanimous consent
is required relating to decisions about the relevant activities. Associate is
an entity in which the Corporation exercises significant influence over the
entity's operating and financial policies, without exercising control or joint
control. Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate are

accounted forusing the equity method. Under the equity method, the share
of netearnings, other comprehensiveincome and the changesin equity of the
jointly controlled corporationsand associate arerecognized in the statements
of earnings, statements of comprehensive income and statements of changes
inequity, respectively.

The Corporation holds a 50% (2012 — 50%) interest in Parjointco N.V,,
a jointly controlled corporation that is considered to be a joint venture.
Parjointco holds a 55.6% (2012 — 55.6%) equity interest in Pargesa Holding SA.
Accordingly, the Corporation accountsforitsinvestmentin Parjointco using
the equity method.

The following abbreviations are used throughout this report: Great-West
Life & Annuity Insurance Company (Great-West Financial or Great-West Life
& Annuity); Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco); IGM Financial Inc. (IGM); Investors
Group Inc. (Investors Group); Irish Life Group Limited (Irish Life); London
Life Insurance Company (London Life); Mackenzie Financial Corporation
(Mackenzie); Pargesa Holding SA (Pargesa); Parjointco N.V. (Parjointco);
Putnam Investments, LLC (Putnam); The Canada Life Assurance Company
(Canada Life); The Great-West Life Assurance Company (Great-West Life);
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

USE OF SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS,

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In the preparation of the financial statements, management of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries are required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, net
earningsand related disclosures. Significant judgments have been made and
key sources of estimation uncertainty have been made in certain areas and,
arediscussed throughout the notes in these financial statements, including:

> Theactuarial assumptions made by Lifeco, such as mortality and morbidity
of policyholders, used in the valuation of insurance and investment
contract liabilities under the Canadian Asset Liability Method (Note 13).

> Inthedetermination of thefairvalue of financialinstruments, management
of the Corporation andits subsidiaries exercise judgmentin the fairvalue
inputs, particularly thoseitems categorized within Level 3 of the fairvalue
hierarchy (Note 28).

> Management consolidates all subsidiaries and entities which it is
determined that the Corporation controls. Control is evaluated according
totheability of the Corporation to direct the activities of the subsidiary or
otherstructured entitiesin order to derive variable returns. Management
appliesjudgmenttodetermineifithas control of theinvesteewhenithas
less than a majority of the voting rights.
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> Thecarryingvalue of goodwill and intangible assetsis based upon the use
of forecastsand futureresults uponinitial recognition. Managementof the
Corporationandits subsidiaries evaluate the synergies and future benefit
for recognition of goodwill and intangible assets (Note11).

> Cashgenerating unitsforgoodwill have been determined by management
of the Corporation andits subsidiaries as the lowest levelin which goodwill
ismonitored forinternal reporting purposes (Note11).

> The actuarial assumptions used in determining the expense for pension
plans and other post-employment benefits. Management of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries review the previous experience of their
plan members in evaluating the assumptions used in determining the
expense for the current year (Note 26).

> The Corporationanditssubsidiaries operate withinvarious taxjurisdictions
wheresignificantjudgments and estimates are required wheninterpreting
the relevant tax laws, regulations and legislation in the determination
of the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries tax provisions and the carrying
amounts of its tax assets and liabilities (Note 18).

> The determination by IGM of whether financial assets are derecognized
is based on the extent to which the risk and rewards of ownership are
transferred (Note14).

> Legalandotherprovisionsarerecognized resulting froma past event which,
in the judgment of management of the Corporation and its subsidiaries,
has resulted in a probable outflow of economic resources which would
be passed onto a third party to settle the obligation. Management of the
Corporationandits subsidiaries evaluate the possible outcomes and risks
in determining the best estimate of the provision at the balance sheet
date (Note 31).

> Lifeco uses judgments, estimates and independent, qualified appraisal
services to adjust for material changes in property cash flows, capital
expenditures or general market conditions in determining the fair value
of investment properties (Note 6).

> The estimated useful lives of deferred selling commissions made by IGM
(Note).

> Judgmentsare used by Lifecoin determining whether deferred acquisition
costsand deferredincomereserves can berecognized on the consolidated
balance sheets. Deferred acquisition costs are recognized if Lifeco's
management determines the costs are incremental and related to the
issuance of the investment contract. Deferred income reserves are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the policy.

The results reflect judgments of management of the Corporation and its
subsidiaries regarding the impact of prevailing global credit, equity and
foreign exchange market conditions.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Interestincomeisaccounted foronanaccrual basis using the effectiveinterest
method for bonds, mortgages andloans. Dividend incomeisrecognized when
therighttoreceive paymentis established. Thisis the dividend date for listed
stocks and usually the notification date or date when the shareholders have
approved the dividend for private equity instruments. Interest income and
dividendincome are recorded in netinvestmentincome in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (statements of earnings).

LIFECO

Premiums for all types of insurance contracts and contracts with limited
mortality or morbidity risk are generally recognized as revenue when due
and collectionis reasonably assured.
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Investment propertyincomeincludes rents earned from tenants under lease
agreements and property taxand operating cost recoveries. Rental income
leases with contractual rent increases and rent-free periods are recognized
onastraight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Fee income primarily includes fees earned from the management by Lifeco
of segregated fund assets, proprietary mutual fund assets, fees earned
on administrative services only Group health contracts and fees earned
from management services. Fee income is recognized when the service is
performed, theamountis collectible and can be reasonably estimated.

Lifeco has sub-advisor arrangements where Lifeco retains the primary
obligationwith the client. Asaresult, feeincome earned is reported onagross
basis, with the corresponding sub-advisor expense recorded in operating and
administrative expenses.

IGM FINANCIAL

Management fees are based on the net asset value of mutual fund assets
under management and are recognized on an accrual basis as the service
is performed. Administration fees are also recognized on an accrual basis
as theserviceis performed. Distribution fees derived from mutual fund and
securities transactions are recognized on a trade-date basis. Distribution
fees derived from insurance and other financial services transactions are
recognized on an accrual basis. These management, administration and
distribution fees are included in fee income in the statements of earnings.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, current operating accounts,
overnight bank and term deposits with original maturities of three months
orless, and fixed income securities with an original term to maturity of three
months or less.

INVESTMENTS

Investments include bonds, mortgages and other loans, shares, investment
properties, andloansto policyholders of Lifeco. Investments are classified as
eitherfairvalue through profitorloss, available for sale, held to maturity, loans
and receivables, based on management's intention relating to the purpose
and nature for which the instruments were acquired or the characteristics
of the investments. The Corporation and its subsidiaries currently have not
classified any investments as held to maturity.

Investmentsinbonds and shares normally actively traded ona public market
are either designated or classified as fair value through profit or loss or
classified as available for sale and are recorded on a trade-date basis. Fixed
income securities areincluded in bonds on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
(balance sheets). Fairvalue through profit or loss investments are recognized
at fair value on the balance sheets with realized and unrealized gains and
lossesreportedin the statements of earnings. Available-for-sale investments
are recognized at fair value on the balance sheets with unrealized gains
and losses recorded in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses are
reclassified from other comprehensiveincomeand recorded in the statements
of earnings when theavailable-for-saleinvestmentis sold orimpaired. Interest
income earned on both fairvalue through profitorloss and available-for-sale
bonds is recorded as net investment income in the statements of earnings.

Investments in mortgages and otherloans, and bonds not normally actively
traded on a public market are classified as loans and receivables and are
carried at amortized cost net of any allowance for credit losses. Interest
income earned and realized gains and losses on the sale of investments
classified asloans and receivables are recorded in net investmentincome in
the statements of earnings.
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Investment properties are real estate held to earn rentalincome orfor capital
appreciation. Investment properties are initially measured at cost and
subsequently carried at fair value on the balance sheets. All changes in fair
value arerecorded as net investment income in the statements of earnings.
Fair values for investment properties are determined using independent,
qualified appraisal services. Properties held to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation that have aninsignificant portion thatis owner occupied
or where there is no intent to occupy on a long-term basis are classified
as investment properties. Properties that do not meet these criteria are
classified as owner-occupied properties. Property that is leased that would
otherwise be classified asinvestment property if ownedisalso included with
investment properties.

Loansto policyholders by Lifecoand its subsidiaries are shown at their unpaid
principal balance and are fully secured by the cash surrender values of the
policies. The carrying value of loans to policyholders approximates fair value.

Fairvalue measurement Financialinstrument carryingvalues necessarily
reflect the prevailing market liquidity and the liquidity premiums embedded
in the market pricing methods the Corporation and its subsidiaries rely
upon. Thefollowingisa description of the methodologies used to determine
fair value.

Bonds at fair value through profit or loss and available for sale  Fair values for
bonds classified as fair value through profit or loss or available for sale are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices primarily provided
by third-partyindependent pricing sources. The Corporation maximizes the
use of observableinputsand minimizes the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fairvalue. The Corporation obtains quoted prices inactive markets,
when available, for identical assets at the balance sheet date to measure
bonds atfairvalueinitsfairvalue through profitorloss and available-for-sale
portfolios. Where prices are not quoted ina normally active market, fairvalues
are determined by valuation models.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries estimate the fair value of bonds not
traded inactive markets by referring to actively traded securities with similar
attributes, dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, discounted cash
flow analyses and/orinternal valuation models. This methodology considers
such factorsas theissuer'sindustry, the security's rating, term, coupon rate
and positionin the capital structure of theissuer, as well asyield curves, credit
curves, prepayment rates and other relevant factors. For bonds that are not
tradedinactive markets, valuations are adjusted to reflect illiquidity, and such
adjustmentsare generally based on available market evidence. In theabsence
of such evidence, management'’s best estimate is used.

Shares at fair value through profit or loss and available for sale Fair values for
publicly traded shares are generally determined by the last bid price for the
security from the exchange where it is principally traded. Fair values for
shares for which there is no active market are determined by discounting
expected future cash flows. The Corporation and its subsidiaries maximize
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value. The Corporation obtains quoted prices in active
markets, when available, for identical assets at the balance sheets dates
to measure shares at fair value in its fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale portfolios.

Mortgages and other loans, and Bonds classified at fair value through profit or
loss and loans and receivables  Fair values for mortgages and other loans
designated at fairvalue through profit orloss arevalued using market interest
rates for loans with similar credit risk and maturity. For disclosure purposes
only, fairvalues forbonds, and mortgagesand otherloans, classified asloans
and receivables, are determined by discounting expected future cash flows
using current market rates. Valuation inputs typically include benchmark
yields and risk-adjusted spreads based on current lending activities and
marketactivity.

Investment properties Fair values forinvestment properties are determined
using independent qualified appraisal services and include adjustments
for material changes in property cash flows, capital expenditures or
general market conditions in the interim period between appraisals. The
determination of the fair value of investment property requires the use of
estimates including future cash flows (such as future leasing assumptions,
rental rates, capitaland operating expenditures) and discount, reversionary
and overall capitalization rates applicable to the asset based on current
market conditions. Investment properties under construction are valued
at fair value if such values can be reliably determined; otherwise, they are
recorded at cost.

Impairment Investments are reviewed regularly on an individual basis to
determineimpairmentstatus. The Corporationand its subsidiaries consider
various factors in the impairment evaluation process, including, but not
limited to, the financial condition of the issuer, specific adverse conditions
affecting an industry or region, decline in fair value not related to interest
rates, bankruptcy or defaults, and delinquency in payments of interest or
principal. Impairment losses on available-for-sale shares are recorded if
the loss is significant or prolonged and subsequent losses are recorded in
netearnings.

Investments are deemed to be impaired when thereis nolonger reasonable
assurance of timely collection of the fullamount of the principal and interest
due. Thefairvalue of aninvestmentis nota definitive indicator of impairment,
asitmay besignificantly influenced by otherfactors, including the remaining
term to maturity and liquidity of the asset. However, market price is taken
into consideration when evaluating impairment.

Forimpaired mortgages and other loans, and bonds classified as loans and
receivables, provisions are established or impairments recorded to adjust
the carrying value to the net realizable amount. Wherever possible, the fair
value of collateral underlying the loans or observable market price is used to
establish netrealizablevalue. Forimpaired available-for-sale bonds, recorded
at fair value, the accumulated loss recorded in the investment revaluation
reservesisreclassified to netinvestmentincome. Impairmentson available-
for-sale debt instruments are reversed if there is objective evidence that a
permanent recovery has occurred. All gains and losses on bonds classified
or designated as fair value through profit or loss are already recorded in
net earnings, therefore, a reduction due to impairment of these assets
will be recorded in net earnings. As well, when determined to be impaired,
contractual interest is no longer accrued and previous interest accruals
arereversed.

Fairvalue movement on the assets supporting insurance contract liabilities
isamajor factor in the movement of insurance contract liabilities. Changes
in the fair value of bonds designated or classified as fair value through
profit or loss that supportinsurance contract liabilities are largely offset by
corresponding changes in the fair value of liabilities, except when the bond
has been deemed impaired.
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TRANSACTION COSTS

Transaction costsare expensed asincurred for financialinstruments classified
or designated as fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs for
financial assets classified as available for sale or loans and receivables are
added to the value of the instrument at acquisition, and taken into net
earnings using the effective interest method for those allocated to loans and
receivables. Transaction costs for financial liabilities classified as other than
fairvalue through profit orloss are deducted from the value of the instrument
issued and taken into net earnings using the effective interest method.

FUNDS HELD BY CEDING INSURERS /

FUNDS HELD UNDER REINSURANCE CONTRACTS

Under certain forms of reinsurance contracts, it is customary for the ceding
insurer to retain possession of the assets supporting the liabilities ceded.
Lifecorecordsanamountreceivable from the ceding insurer or payable to the
reinsurerrepresenting the premiumdue. Investment revenue on these funds
withheld is credited by the ceding insurer.

REINSURANCE CONTRACTS

Lifeco, in the normal course of business, is both a user and a provider of
reinsurance in order to limit the potential for losses arising from certain
exposures. Assumed reinsurance refers to the acceptance of certaininsurance
risks by Lifeco underwritten by another company. Ceded reinsurance refers
to the transfer of insurance risk, along with the respective premiums, to
one or more reinsurers who will share the risks. To the extent thatassuming
reinsurers for Lifeco insurance risks are unable to meet their obligations,
Lifeco remains liable to its policyholders for the portion reinsured.
Consequently, allowances are made for reinsurance contracts which are
deemed uncollectible.

Assumed reinsurance premiums, commissions and claim settlements, as
well as the reinsurance assets associated with insurance and investment
contracts, are accounted for in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the underlying reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are reviewed for
impairment on a regular basis for any events that may trigger impairment.
Lifeco considers various factors in the impairment evaluation process,
including, but not limited to, collectability of amounts due under the terms
of the contract. The carrying amount of a reinsurance asset is adjusted
through an allowance account with any impairment loss being recorded in
the statements of earnings.

Any gainsorlosses on buying reinsurance are recognized in the statement of
earningsimmediately at the date of purchase and are not amortized.

Premiums and claims ceded for reinsurance are deducted from premiums
earnedandinsurance and investment contract benefits. Assetsand liabilities
related toreinsurance arereported onagross basisin the balance sheets. The
amount of liabilities ceded to reinsurers is estimated in a manner consistent
with the claim liability associated with reinsured risks.

OWNER-OCCUPIED PROPERTIES AND CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets and property held for own use are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairments. Depreciation is charged to write
off the cost of assets, using the straight-line method, over their estimated
usefullives, which vary from 3 to 50 years.

> Building, owner-occupied properties 10-50years
> Equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-17years
> Othercapital assets 3-10years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at least
annually and adjusted if necessary. Capital assets are tested forimpairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

54 POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS,

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
Goodwill represents the excess of purchase consideration over the fairvalue
of netassetsacquired. Following initial recognition, goodwillis measured at
costlessany accumulated impairmentlosses.

Intangible assets comprise finite life and indefinite life intangible assets.
Finitelifeintangible assetsinclude thevalue of software acquired orinternally
developed, some customer contracts, distribution channels, distribution
contracts, deferred selling commissions, technology and property leases.
Finite life intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-
line basis over theirestimated useful lives, not exceeding a period of 30 years.

Commissions paid by IGM on the sale of certain mutual funds are deferred and
amortized over their estimated useful lives, not exceeding a period of seven
years. Commissions paid on the sale of deposits are deferred and amortized
over their estimated useful lives, not exceeding a period of five years. When
a client redeems units in mutual funds that are subject to a deferred sales
charge, a redemption fee is paid by the client and is recorded as revenue by
IGM. Any unamortized deferred selling commission asset recognized on the
initial sale of these mutual fund unitsis recorded as a disposal. IGM regularly
reviews the carrying value of deferred selling commissions with respect to
any events or circumstances that indicate impairment. Among the tests
performed by IGM to assess recoverability is the comparison of the future
economic benefits derived from the deferred selling commission asset in
relation toits carrying value.

Indefinite lifeintangible assetsinclude brands, trademarks and trade names,
some customer contracts, the shareholders' portion of acquired future
participating account profits and mutual fund management contracts.
Amounts are classified as indefinite life intangible assets when based on an
analysis of all the relevant factors, and when there is no foreseeable limit to
the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows.
The identification of indefinite life intangible assets is made by reference to
relevant factors such as product life cycles, potential obsolescence, industry
stability and competitive position.

Impairment testing Goodwilland indefinite lifeintangible assetsare tested
forimpairmentannually or more frequently if eventsindicate thatimpairment
may have occurred. Intangible assets that were previously impaired are
reviewed at each reporting date for evidence of reversal. In the event that
certain conditions have been met, the Corporation would be required to
reverse the impairment charge ora portion thereof.

Goodwill has been allocated to groups of cash generating units (CGU),
representing the lowest level in which goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes. Goodwill is tested for impairment by comparing the
carrying value of the groups of CGU to the recoverable amount to which the
goodwill has been allocated. Intangible assets are tested forimpairment by
comparing theasset's carryingamount to its recoverable amount.

Animpairmentlossisrecognized for theamount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceedsits recoverableamount. The recoverableamountis the higher
of theasset's fairvalue less cost to sell orvaluein use, whichis calculated using
the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated.
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SEGREGATED FUNDS

Segregated fund assetsand liabilities arise from contracts where all financial
risks associated with the related assets are borne by policyholders and
are presented separately in the balance sheets at fair value. Investment
income and changes in fair value of the segregated fund assets are offset by
corresponding changes in the segregated fund liabilities.

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Contractclassification Lifeco's productsare classifiedat contractinception
asinsurance contractsorinvestment contracts, depending on the existence
of significant insurance risk. Significant insurance risk exists when Lifeco
agrees to compensate policyholders or beneficiaries of the contract for
specified uncertain future events that adversely affect the policyholder and
whose amount and timing is unknown.

When significant insurance risk exists, the contract is accounted for as an
insurance contract in accordance with IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4).
Refer to Note 13 for a discussion of insurance risk.

In the absence of significant insurance risk, the contract is classified as an
investment contract. Investment contracts with discretionary participating
featuresareaccountedforinaccordance with IFRS 4 andinvestment contracts
withoutdiscretionary participating featuresare accounted forinaccordance
with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Lifeco has
not classified any contracts as investment contracts with discretionary
participating features.

Investment contracts may be reclassified as insurance contracts after
inception if insurance risk becomes significant. A contract that is classified
asaninsurance contractatcontractinception remainsassuch untilall rights
and obligations under the contract are extinguished or expire.

Investment contracts are contracts that carry financial risk, which is the
risk of a possible future changein one or more of the following: interest rate,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, or credit rating. Refer to Note 23 for
a discussion on risk management.

Measurement Insurance contract liabilities represent the amounts
required, inaddition to future premiums and investmentincome, to provide
for future benefit payments, policyholder dividends, commission and policy
administrative expenses for all insurance and annuity policies in force
with Lifeco. The Appointed Actuaries of Lifeco’s subsidiary companies are
responsible for determining theamount of the liabilities to make appropriate
provisions for Lifeco’s obligations to policyholders. The Appointed Actuaries
determine the liabilities for insurance and investment contracts using
generally accepted actuarial practices, according to the standards established
by the Canadian Institute of Actuaries. The valuation uses the Canadian
Asset Liability Method (CALM). This method involves the projection of
future events in order to determine the amount of assets that must be set
aside currently to provide for all future obligations and involves a significant
amount of judgment.

Insurance contract liabilities are computed with theresult that benefitsand
expenses are matched with premium income. Under fair value accounting,
a movement in the fair value of the supporting assets is a major factor in
the movement of insurance contract liabilities. Changes in the fair value of
assetsare largely offset by corresponding changes in the fair value of liabilities.

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value through profit and
loss, except for certain annuity products measured at amortized cost.

DERECOGNITION

IGM enters into transactions where it transfers financial assets recognized
on its balance sheets. The determination of whether the financial assets
are derecognized is based on the extent to which the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred.

If substantially all of the risks and rewards of a financial asset are not retained,
IGM derecognizes the financial asset. The gains or losses and the servicing
fee revenue for financial assets that are derecognized are reported in net
investmentincome in the statements of earnings.

If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, the financial assets
are not derecognized and the transactions are accounted for as secured
financing transactions.

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Accounts payable, current income taxes, and deferred income reserves, are
measured at amortized cost. Deferred income reserves are amortized on a
straight-line basis to recognize theinitial policy fees over the policy term, not
to exceed 20 years.

Debentures and debt instruments, and capital trust debentures are initially
recorded on the balance sheets at fair value and subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method with amortization
expense recorded in the statements of earnings. These liabilities are
derecognized when the obligation is cancelled or redeemed.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Lifeco entersintorepurchase agreements with third-party broker-dealersin
which Lifeco sells securities and agrees to repurchase substantially similar
securities at a specified date and price. As substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are retained, Lifeco does not derecognize
theassets. Such agreements are accounted forasinvestment financings.

PENSION PLANS AND OTHER

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Corporation andits subsidiaries maintain funded defined benefit pension
plans for certain employeesandadvisors, unfunded supplementary employee
retirement plans for certain employees, and unfunded post-employment
health, dental and life insurance benefits to eligible employees, advisors
and their dependants. The Corporation’s subsidiaries also maintain defined
contribution pension plans for eligible employees and advisors.

The defined benefit pension plans provide pensions based on length of service
and final average earnings.

The cost of the defined benefit plans earned by eligible employees and advisors
is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method prorated
on service, based upon management of the Corporation andits subsidiaries’
assumptions about discount rates, compensation increases, retirement
ages of employees, mortality and expected health care costs. Any changes
intheseassumptions willimpact the carryingamount of pension obligations.
The Corporation and its subsidiaries’ accrued benefit liability in respect of
defined benefit plansis calculated separately foreach plan by discounting the
amount of the benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in current and prior periods and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The Corporation and its subsidiaries determine the net interest component
of the pension expense for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the accrued benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period
to the net accrued benefit liability. The discount rate used to value liabilities
is determined using a yield curve of AA corporate debt securities.
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If the plan benefitsare changed, ora planis curtailed, any past service costs
or curtailment gains or losses are recognized immediately in net earnings.
Current service costs, past service costs and curtailment gains or losses are
included in operating and administrative expenses.

Remeasurementsarising from defined benefit plansrepresentactuarial gains
andlossesandtheactual returnonplanassets, lessinterest calculated at the
discount rate. Remeasurements are recognized immediately through other
comprehensiveincome and are not reclassified to net earnings.

The accrued benefit asset (liability) represents the plan surplus (deficit) and
isincluded in otherassets orotherliabilities.

Payments to the defined contribution plans are expensed asincurred.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation and its subsidiaries use derivative products as risk
management instruments to hedge or manage asset, liability and capital
positions, including revenues. The Corporation and its subsidiaries’ policy
guidelines prohibit the use of derivative instruments for speculative
trading purposes.

All derivatives are recorded at fair value on the balance sheets. The method
of recognizing unrealized and realized fair value gains and losses depends
on whether the derivatives are designated as hedging instruments. For
derivatives that are not designated as hedging instruments, unrealized
and realized gains and losses are recorded in net investment income on the
statements of earnings. For derivatives designated as hedging instruments,
unrealized and realized gains and losses are recognized according to the
nature of the hedged item.

Derivativesarevalued using market transactions and other market evidence
whenever possible, including market-based inputs to models, broker or dealer
quotations or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price
transparency. When models are used, the selection of a particular model
to value a derivative depends on the contractual terms of, and specific risks
inherent in the instrument, as well as the availability of pricing information
in the market. The Corporation and its subsidiaries generally use similar
models to value similar instruments. Valuation models require a variety of
inputs, including contractual terms, market prices and rates, yield curves,
credit curves, measures of volatility, prepayment rates and correlations of
such inputs.

To qualify for hedge accounting, the relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument must meet several strict conditions on
documentation, probability of occurrence, hedge effectiveness and reliability
of measurement. If these conditions are not met, then the relationship
does not qualify for hedge accounting treatment and both the hedged item
and the hedging instrument are reported independently, as if there was no
hedging relationship.

Where a hedging relationship exists, the Corporation and its subsidiaries
documentall relationships between hedginginstrumentsand hedged items,
aswellasitsriskmanagement objectivesand strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. This processincludeslinking derivatives thatare usedin
hedging transactions to specificassets and liabilities on the balance sheets
orto specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions. The Corporation
and its subsidiaries also assess, both at the hedge’s inception and on an
ongoing basis, whether derivatives thatare used in hedging transactionsare
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
Hedge effectivenessis reviewed quarterly through correlation testing.
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Fair value hedges For fair value hedges, changes in fair value of both the
hedging instrument and the hedged item are recorded in net investment
income and consequently any ineffective portion of the hedge is recorded
immediately in netinvestmentincome.

Cash flow hedges Forcashflow hedges, theeffective portion of the changes
infairvalue of the hedginginstrumentis recorded in the same manneras the
hedgeditemineither netinvestmentincome or other comprehensiveincome,
while the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in net investment
income. Gains and losses on cash flow hedges that accumulate in other
comprehensive income are recorded in net investment income in the same
period the hedged item affects net earnings. Gains and losses on cash flow
hedgesareimmediately reclassified from other comprehensive income to net
investmentincome if and when it is probable that a forecasted transaction
isnolongerexpected to occur.

Net investment hedges For net investment hedges the effective portion
of changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded in
other comprehensive income while the ineffective portion is recognized
immediately in net investment income. Hedge accounting is discontinued
when the hedging no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

An embedded derivative is a component of a host contract that modifies
the cash flows of the host contract in a manner similar to a derivative,
according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, foreign
exchangerate, underlyingindex or othervariable. Embedded derivativesare
treated as separate contractsandare recorded at fairvalue if theireconomic
characteristicsand risks are not closely related to those of the host contract
andthe host contractis notitself recorded at fair value through the statement
of earnings. Embedded derivatives that meet the definition of an insurance
contractareaccounted forand measured as an insurance contract.

EQUITY

Financialinstrumentsissued by Power Financial are classified as stated capital
if they representaresidual interestin theassets of the Corporation. Preferred
sharesare classified as equity if they are non-redeemable, or retractable only
atthe Corporation’soptionandanydividends are discretionary. Costs thatare
directly attributable to theissue of share capital are recognized asa deduction
from retained earnings, net of income tax.

Reserves are composed of share-based compensation and other
comprehensive income. Share-based compensation reserves represent the
vesting of share options less share options exercised. Other comprehensive
income represents the total of the unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses)
on translation of foreign operations, the unrealized gains (losses) on available-
for-sale assets, the unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges, and the
share of other comprehensive income of jointly controlled corporations
and associate.

Non-controlling interest represents the proportion of equity that is
attributable to minority shareholders.



BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES conrinuep)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The fair value-based method of accounting is used for the valuation of
compensation expense for options granted to employees. Compensation
expenseisrecognizedasanincrease to operatingand administrative expenses
inthe statementsof earnings over the period that the stock options vest, with
a corresponding increase in share-based compensation reserves. When the
stock options are exercised, the proceeds, together with theamountrecorded
inshare-based compensationreserves, areadded to the stated capital of the
entity issuing the corresponding shares.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries recognize a liability for cash-settled
awards, including those granted under Performance Share Unit plans and
the Deferred Share Unit plans. Compensation expense is recognized as
an increase to operating and administrative expenses in the statement of
earnings, net of related hedges, and a liability is recognized on the balance
sheets over the period, if any. The liability is remeasured at fair value at each
reporting period with the change in the liability recorded in operating and
administrative expenses.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The Corporation and its subsidiaries operate with multiple functional
currencies. The Corporation’s financial statements are prepared in Canadian
dollars, whichis thefunctionaland presentation currency of the Corporation.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into each entity’s functional currency at exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet dates for monetary items and at exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction date for non-monetary items. Revenues and expenses
denominatedin foreign currencies are translated into each entity’s functional
currency atanaverage of daily rates. Realized and unrealized exchange gains
andlossesareincludedin netinvestmentincomeand are not material to the
financial statements of the Corporation.

Translation of net investment in foreign operations For the purpose of
presenting financial statements, assets and liabilities are translated into
Canadiandollarsat therate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates
and all revenues and expenses are translated at an average of daily rates.
Unrealized foreign currency translation gainsand losses on the Corporation'’s
netinvestmentin its foreign operations and jointly controlled corporations
andassociateare presented asa component of other comprehensiveincome.
Unrealized foreign currency translation gains and losses are recognized in
earnings when there has been a disposal of a foreign operation or a jointly
controlled corporation.

POLICYHOLDER BENEFITS

Policyholder benefitsinclude benefitsand claims onlife insurance contracts,
maturity payments, annuity payments and surrenders. Gross benefits and
claims forlifeinsurance contracts include the cost of all claims arising during
theyearand settlement of claims. Death claimsand surrenders are recorded
on the basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments are
recorded when due.

INCOME TAXES

Theincome tax expense forthe period represents the sum of currentincome
tax and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognized as an expense or
income in the statements of earnings, except to the extent that it relates
to items that are not recognized in the statements of earnings (whether in
other comprehensive income ordirectly in equity), in which case theincome
taxisalsorecognizedin other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax Current income tax is based on taxable income for
the year. Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation
authorities using the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
atthebalance sheetdate. Currenttaxassetsand currentincome tax liabilities
areoffset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset the recognized amounts
and the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle theliabilities simultaneously.

A provision for tax uncertainties which meet the probable threshold for
recognitionis measured based on the probability weighted average approach.

Deferredincometax Deferredincometaxisthetaxexpectedto be payable
orrecoverable on differences arising between the carryingamounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statementsand the corresponding tax basis used
in the computation of taxable income and on unused tax attributes and is
accounted forusing the balance sheetliability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
taxassetsarerecognized to theextent thatitis probable thatfuture taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences and
unused tax attributes can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates expected to
applyintheyearwhentheassetisrealized or the liability is settled, based on
taxratesand tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred taxassets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to net current tax assets against current
taxliabilitiesand the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Thecarryingamount of deferred taxassetsis reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet dateandarerecognized to the extent thatit has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
berecovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in the subsidiaries, jointly controlled corporations
and associate, except where the group controls the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2013 ANNUAL REPORT 57



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES conrinuep)

LEASES

Leasesthatdo nottransfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases,
where the Corporation and its subsidiaries are the lessee, are charged to net
earnings over the period of use.

Where the Corporationandits subsidiaries are the lessor underan operating
leaseforitsinvestment property, the assets subject to theleasearrangement
are presented within the balance sheets. Income from these leases is
recognized in the statements of earnings on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic earnings per common share is determined by dividing net earnings
available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the year. Diluted earnings per common share
is determined using the same method as basic earnings per common share,
except that the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
includes the potential dilutive effect of outstanding stock options granted
by the Corporation and its subsidiaries, as determined by the treasury
stock method.

FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES

The Corporation and its subsidiaries continuously monitor the potential
changes proposed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and analyze the effect that changes in the standards may have on their
consolidated financial statements when they become effective.

IAS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation Effectivejanuary1,2014, the
Corporation will adopt the guidance in the amendments to IAS 32, Financial
Instruments: Presentation. The amended standard clarifies the requirements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PENSION PLANS AND OTHER

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

OnJanuary1,2013, the Corporation adopted revised IAS19 (IAS19R), Employee
Benefits. In accordance with the required transitional provisions, the
Corporationandits subsidiaries retrospectively applied the revised standard.
The 2012 comparative financial information in the financial statements and
related notes has been restated accordingly.

The amendments made to IAS 19 include the elimination of the corridor
approach for actuarial gains and losses which resulted in those gains and
losses being recognized immediately through other comprehensive income.
Asaresult, the net pension asset or liability reflects the funded status of the
pension plans on the balance sheets. In addition, all service costs, including
curtailments and settlements, are recognized immediately in net earnings.

Additionally, the expected returnon planassetsisnolongerapplied to the fair
value of the assets to calculate the benefit cost. Under the revised standard,
the same discount rate must be applied to the benefit obligation and the
planassets to determine the netinterest cost. This discount rate for the net
interest cost is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on high quality corporate bonds.
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for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The Corporation has
evaluated the impact of this standard and has determined that it will not
impact the presentation of its financial statements.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments ThelASBissued IFRS9, Financial Instruments
in 2010 to replace IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
TheIASBintends to make further changesin financial instrumentsaccounting,
and has separatedits project toamend IFRS 9into three phases: classification
and measurement, impairment methodology and hedge accounting.

> ThelASBreleasedaproposaltoamend the classificationand measurement
provisions of IFRS 9 with an additional limitedamendment to the standard
introducing a new category for classification of certain financial assets
of fair value through other comprehensive income. The IASB intends to
release a final IFRS on this phasein the first half of 2014.

> The IASB released a revised exposure draft in March 2013 on the expected
lossimpairment method to be used for financial assets. The IASB intends
toreleaseafinal IFRS on this phasein the first half of 2014.

> The IASB has finalized deliberations on the criteria for hedge accounting
and measuring effectiveness and released the final hedge accounting
phase in November 2013. The Corporation is evaluating the impact this
standard will have on the presentation of its financial statements.

The full impact of IFRS 9 on the Corporation and its subsidiaries will be
evaluated after the remaining stages of the IASB's project to replace IAS 39.
In July 2013, the IASB tentatively decided to defer the mandatory effective
date of IFRS 9, which will not be set until the finalization of the impairment
methodology and classificationand measurement requirements phases. The
Corporation and its subsidiaries continue to actively monitor this standard.
In the case of Lifeco, this is done in combination with the monitoring of
developmentsto IFRS 4.

Further, the revised standard includes changes to how the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of the plan assets and the components of the
pension expense are presented and disclosed within the financial statements
of anentity, including the separation of the totalamount of the pension plans
and other post-employment benefits expense between amounts recognized
inthe statements of earnings (service costs and net interest costs) and in the
statements of comprehensive income (remeasurements). Disclosures relating
toretirement benefit plansinclude discussions concerning the pension plan
risk, sensitivity analysis, an explanation of items recognized in the financial
statements and descriptions of the amount, timing and uncertainty of the
future cash flows.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IAS 19R, this change has
beenapplied retroactively, which resulted in a decrease to opening equity at
January1, 2012 of $474 million (decrease of $311 million in shareholders'equity
and $163 million in non-controlling interests), with an additional decrease
to equity of $233 million (decrease of $155 million in shareholders' equity and
$78 million in non-controlling interests) at December 31, 2012.

The financial statement items restated due to IAS19R include other assets,
otherliabilities, investmentsinjointly controlled corporationsand associate,
retained earnings, reserves (other comprehensive income) and non-
controlling interests disclosed in the financial statements.



CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

The impact of this change in accounting policy on total comprehensive income is as follows:

DECEMBER 31 2012
Total comprehensive income as previously reported 2,737
Adjustment to net earnings
Operating and administrative expenses 12)
Share of earnings of investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate (4)
Income taxes 4
(12)
Adjustment to other comprehensive income
Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit pension plans (297)
Income taxes 83
Share of other comprehensive income of investmentsin jointly controlled corporations and associate @)
(221)
Restated total comprehensive income 2,504

Theimpact of this changein accounting policy on the balance sheets is as follows:

DECEMBER 31,2012 JANUARY 1, 2012
ASSETS
Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate (28) 17)
Other assets (285) (257)
Deferred taxassets 53 23
Total assets (260) (251)
LIABILITIES
Other liabilities 642 361
Deferred tax liabilities (195) (138)
Total liabilities 447 223
EQUITY
Retained earnings 53 61
Reserves (other comprehensive income) (519) (372)
Total shareholders' equity (466) (311)
Non-controlling interests (241) (163)
Total equity (707) (474)
Total liabilities and equity (260) (251)

Due to the changein consolidated net earnings in 2012, basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31,2012 decreased by $0.01.

IFRS 10 — CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS On January 1, 2013,
the Corporation adopted IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements (IFRS 10).
The Corporation has evaluated whether or not to consolidate an entity based
onarevised definition of control. The standard defines control as dependent
on the power of the investor to direct the relevant activities of the investee,
the ability of the investor to derive variable benefits from its holdings in
the investee, and a direct link between the power to direct activities and
receive benefits.

The Corporation assessed the impact of the adoption of IFRS 10 on all its
holdings and otherinvestees, resulting in the following adjustments:

Insurance and investment contracts on account of segregated
fund policyholders Lifecoassessed the revised definition of control for the
segregated fundsfortherisk of policyholdersand concluded that the revised
definition of control was not significantly impacted. Lifeco will continue
to present the segregated funds for the risk of policyholders as equal and
offsettingamounts with assets and liabilities within the balance sheets and
has expanded disclosure on the nature of these entities and the related risks.

In addition, in circumstances where the segregated fund is invested in
structured entities and is deemed to control this entity, Lifeco has presented
the non-controlling ownership interest within the segregated funds for
the risk of policyholders as equal and offsetting amounts with assets and
liabilities. This change did not impact the net earnings and equity of the
Corporation, however it resulted in an increase to segregated funds for the
risk of policyholders as equal and offsetting amounts on the balance sheets
with assetsand liabilities of $484 million at December 31,2012 and $403 million
atjanuary1, 2012

The application of IFRS 10 for segregated funds for the risk of policyholders
may continue to evolve as European insurers are required to adopt IFRS 10
on January 1, 2014. Lifeco will continue to monitor these and other IFRS 10
developments.

See Note 12 for additional information on the presentation and disclosure of
these structures.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Capital trust securities Canada Life Capital Trust and Great-West Life
Capital Trust (the capital trusts) were consolidated by Lifeco under IAS 27,
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. The capital trusts will no
longer be consolidated in the Corporation’s financial statements as Lifeco’s
investment in the capital trusts does not have exposure to variable returns
and therefore does not meet the revised definition of controlin IFRS10. The
change in consolidation did not impact the net earnings and equity of the
Corporation, however the deconsolidationresulted inanincrease to bonds of
$45 million at December 31,2012 and $282 million at January1,2012, both with
correspondingincreasesto the capital trust debentures on the balance sheets.

Other Alsoasaresult of the adoption of IFRS10, Lifeco reclassified on the
balance sheets $47 million between shares and investment properties at
December 31, 2012 and $48 million at January 1, 2012. The Corporation also
reclassified $41 million of bonds, and debentures and debt instruments at
December 31,2012 and $39 million at January1,2012.

IFRS 11— JOINT ARRANGEMENTS On January 1, 2013, the Corporation
adopted the guidancein IFRST, joint Arrangements (IFRS11), which separates
jointly controlled entities between joint operations and joint ventures. The
standard eliminates the option of using proportionate consolidation in
accounting for interests in joint ventures and requires entities to use the
equity method of accounting forinterestsinjoint ventures. The Corporation
concluded that Parjointco constitutes a joint venture as the contractual
arrangement provides the parties to thejointarrangement with right to the
netassetsinstead of theindividual assetsand obligations. Consequently, the
Corporation will continue to record its investment in this jointly controlled
corporation using the equity method of accounting. The adoption of this
standard had noimpact on the financial statements of the Corporation.

IFRS12 - DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES OnJanuaryT,
2013, the Corporation adopted the guidance of IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities. The standard requires enhanced disclosure, including how
controlwasdetermined and any restrictions that might exist on consolidated
assetsand liabilities presented by subsidiaries, jointarrangements, associates,

IRISH LIFE GROUP LIMITED ACQUISITION

On July 18, 2013, Lifeco, through its wholly owned subsidiary Canada Life
Limited, completed the acquisition of all of the shares of Irish Life.

Thelife and pension operations of Lifeco’s Irish subsidiary, Canada Life (Ireland),
are being combined with the operations of Irish Life, retaining the Irish Life
brand name. Irish Life has a strong brand with a broad product offering, and
a wide, multi-channel distribution network, similar to Lifeco's operations
in Canada.

This in-market acquisition is expected to transform Lifeco's business in
Ireland into a market leader in the life insurance, pension and investment
management sectors. Irish Life employs a similar and consistent strategy
to Lifeco in that it aims to maximize shareholder returns in a low risk and
capital-efficient manner.

Fundingforthe transaction included the net proceeds of the February19, 2013
issuance by Lifeco of approximately $1.25 billion subscription receipts,
completed on March 12, 2013. That offering comprised a $650 million
bought deal public offering as well as concurrent private placements of
subscription receipts by Power Financial of $550 million and by IGM of
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andstructured entities. The adoption of this standard increased the disclosure
concerning the subsidiaries, joint arrangements and investments in
associate by the Corporation but had no impact on the financial results of
the Corporation.

IFRS13 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OnJanuary1,2013, the Corporation
adopted IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The standard consolidates the fair
value measurement and disclosure guidance into one standard. Fair value is
defined as the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to
transferaliability in an orderly transaction between market participants. The
standard had no significantimpact on the measurement of the Corporation’s
assets and liabilities but does require additional disclosure related to fair
value measurement (see Note 28). The standard has been applied on a
prospective basis.

IAS1—- PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS On January 1, 2013,
the Corporation adopted the guidance of the amended IAS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements. Under the amended standard, other comprehensive
income is classified by nature and grouped according to items that will be
reclassified subsequently to net earnings (when specific conditions are met)
and those that will not be reclassified. This revised standard relates only to
presentation and has not impacted the financial results of the Corporation.
Theamendments have been applied retroactively.

IFRS7-FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS: DISCLOSURE OnJanuary1,2013, the
Corporation adopted the guidance in the amendments to IFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosure which introduces financial instrument disclosures
related to rights of offset and related arrangements under master netting
agreements. This revised standard relates only to disclosure and has not
impacted the financial results of the Corporation (see Note 27).

OTHER COMPARATIVE FIGURES During the year, the Corporation and
its subsidiaries reclassified other comparative figures for presentation
adjustments (Notes 6, 10, 13,17 and 24). The reclassifications had no impact
on the equity or net earnings.

$50 million. With the closing of the acquisition of Irish Life by Lifeco on July 18,
2013, the subscription receipts were exchanged on a one-for-one basis for
48,660,000 common shares of Lifeco, of which 21,410,000 and 1,950,000 were
issued to Power Financial and IGM, respectively. The balance of the funding for
the transaction came from a euro-denominated debt issuance and internal
cashresources.

On April18, 2013 Lifeco issued €500 million of 10-year bonds denominated in
euros with an annual coupon of 2.50%. The bonds, rated A+ by Standard &
Poor’s Ratings Services, are listed on the Irish Stock Exchange. The euro-
denominated debt has beendesignated asa hedge againsta portion of Lifeco's
net investment in euro-denominated foreign operations with changes in
foreign exchange on the debt instrument recorded in other comprehensive
income. Lifeco has also entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to
fixthe euro to the British pound rate on approximately €300 million of the net
investmentin Irish Life, which has been designated as a hedge.



IRISH LIFE GROUP LIMITED ACQUISITION continuep)

The amounts assigned by Lifeco to the assets acquired, goodwill, and liabilities assumed on July 18, 2013, reported as at December 31, 2013, are below:

Acquisition consideration 1,788
ASSETS ACQUIRED
Cash and cash equivalents 554
Invested assets 4,883
Reinsurance assets 2,963
Intangible assets 247
Otherassets 508
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders 36,348
Total assets acquired 45,503
LIABILITIES ASSUMED
Insurance contract liabilities 6,160
Investment contract liabilities 194
Subordinated debentures and debt instruments 443
Other liabilities 948
Insurance and investment contract liabilities on account of segregated fund policyholders 36,348
Total liabilities assumed 44 093
Net value of assets acquired 1,410
Goodwill 378

During the fourth quarter of 2013, Lifeco substantially completed its
comprehensive evaluation of the fair value of the net assets acquired from
Irish Life and the purchase price allocation. As a result, initial goodwill of
$554 million, recognized upon the acquisition of Irish Life on July 18, 2013
in the Irish Group Limited Acquisition note to the September 30, 2013
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements, has been
adjusted in the fourth quarter of 2013, as a result of valuations received

during the measurement period. Adjustments were made to the provisional
amounts disclosed in the September 30, 2013 unaudited interim condensed
consolidated financial statements for the recognition and measurement
of intangible assets, contingent liabilities and other provisions, changes
in actuarial assumptions used in determining the fair value for insurance
contract liabilities, and the related deferred taxes.

Thefollowing provides the changein the carrying value of the goodwill on the acquisition of Irish Life to December 31, 2013:

Initial Irish Life goodwill, July 18, 2013, previously reported 554
Recognition and measurement of intangible assets (247)
Adjustment to contingent liabilities and other provisions 30
Adjustment to insurance contract liabilities 15
Deferred taxliability on adjustments to purchase price allocation 26

Adjusted balance, July 18,2013 378

The goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value
of the net assets, representing the synergies or future economic benefits
arising from other assets acquired that are not individually identified and
separately recognized in the acquisition of Irish Life. Goodwill is not deductible
fortax purposes.

Lifeco will finalize the purchase accounting for the Irish Life acquisition in
the first six months of 2014. Balance sheet items that are incomplete are
insurance contract liabilities. Lifeco is completing experience studies on
certaininsurance contract liabilities. As a result, the excess of the purchase
price over thefairvalue of the net assetsacquired representing goodwill could
be adjusted for these insurance contract liabilities retrospectively during
futurereporting periods in the first six months of 2014. The audited financial
statementsat December 31, 2013 reflect Lifeco management's best estimate
of the purchase price allocation.

From date of acquisition to December 31, 2013, Irish Life contributed
$526 million in revenue and $85 million in net earnings (excludes after-tax
restructuring expensesincurred by Irish Life). Theseamountsareincluded in
the statements of earningsand comprehensive income for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2013.

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2013, Lifeco incurred
restructuring and acquisition expenses related to Irish Life of $94 million
(Note 24).

Supplemental pro-forma revenue and net earnings for the combined entity,
as though the acquisition date for this business combination had been as
of the beginning of the annual reporting period, has not been included as
itisimpracticable, since Irish Life had a different financial reporting basis
than Lifeco.

Lifeco has recognized $48 million of contingent liabilities for Irish Life

within other liabilities. The potential outcome of these matters is not
yetdeterminable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER 31,2012

JANUARY 1, 2012

Cash 1,930 1,152 912
Cash equivalents 2,414 2,161 2,473
Cash and cash equivalents 4,344 3,313 3,385

At December 31,2013, cash amounting to $112 million was restricted for use by the subsidiaries ($34 million at December 31,2012 and $41 million

atJjanuary1,2012).

INVESTMENTS

CARRYING VALUES AND FAIR VALUES
Carrying values and estimated fair values of investments are as follows:

DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER 31,2012

JANUARY 1, 2012

CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE

Bonds
Designated as fair value through profit or loss!!! 68,051 68,051 62,937 62,937 60,087 60,087
Classified as fairvalue through profit or loss™ 2,053 2,053 2,113 2,113 1,853 1,853
Available for sale 8,370 8,370 7,407 7,407 7,318 7,318
Loansand receivables 11,855 12,672 10,934 12,438 9,744 10,785
90,329 91,146 83,391 84,895 79,002 80,043

Mortgages and otherloans

Loans and receivables 24,591 25,212 22,548 23,859 21,226 22,514
Designated as fair value through profit or lossl! 324 324 249 249 292 292
24,915 25,536 22,797 24,108 21,518 22,806

Shares
Designated as fair value through profit or loss!! 7,297 7,297 5,949 5,949 5,454 5,454
Available for sale 749 749 812 812 906 906
8,046 8,046 6,761 6,761 6,360 6,360
Investment properties 4,288 4,288 3,572 3,572 3,249 3,249
Loans to policyholders 7,332 7,332 7,082 7,082 7,162 7,162
134,910 136,348 123,603 126,418 117,291 119,620

[1] Investments can be categorized as fair value through profit or loss in two ways: designated as fair value through profit or loss at the option of management,
or classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are actively traded for the purpose of earning investment income.
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BONDS AND MORTGAGES
Carrying value of bonds and mortgages due over the currentand non-current term is as follows:

CARRYING VALUE

TERM TO MATURITY

DECEMBER 31,2013 1YEAR OR LESS 1-SYEARS OVER 5 YEARS TOTAL
Bonds 9,571 17,774 62,616 89,961
Mortgage loans 2,465 11,472 10,635 24,572

12,036 29,246 73,251 114,533

CARRYING VALUE

TERM TO MATURITY

DECEMBER 31, 2012 1YEAR ORLESS 1-5YEARS OVER 5 YEARS TOTAL
Bonds 8,351 16,899 57,789 83,039
Mortgage loans 2,057 10,069 10,401 22,527

10,408 26,968 68,190 105,566

CARRYING VALUE

TERM TO MATURITY

JANUARY 1, 2012 1YEAR ORLESS 1-5YEARS OVER 5 YEARS TOTAL
Bonds 7,627 17,450 53,649 78,726
Mortgage loans 2,042 8,916 10,249 21,207

9,669 26,366 63,398 99,933

The table shown above excludes the carrying value of impaired bonds and mortgages, as the ultimate timing of collectability is uncertain.

IMPAIRED INVESTMENTS, ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES, INVESTMENTS WITH RESTRUCTURED TERMS

Carryingamount of impaired investmentsis as follows:

DECEMBER 31,2013 DECEMBER 31,2012 JANUARY 1, 2012

Impaired amounts by type
Fairvalue through profitorloss 384 365 290
Available for sale 19 27 51
Loans and receivables 34 41 36
Total 437 433 377

The allowance for credit losses and changes in the allowance for credit losses related to investments classified as loans and receivables are as follows:

DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year 22 37
Net provision (recovery) for credit losses 2 9)
Write-offs, net of recoveries - (5)
Other (including foreign exchange rate changes) 2 1)
Balance, end of year 26 22

The allowance for credit losses is supplemented by the provision for future credit losses included in insurance contract liabilities.
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INVESTMENTS continueD)

NET INVESTMENT INCOME

MORTGAGE
AND OTHER INVESTMENT
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 BONDS LOANS SHARES PROPERTIES OTHER TOTAL
Regular netinvestmentincome:
Investmentincome earned 3,733 927 242 276 461 5,639
Net realized gains (losses) (available for sale) 64 - 8 - - 72
Net realized gains (losses) (other classifications) 30 55 - - - 85
Net recovery (provision) for credit losses (loans and receivables) - 2) - - - 2)
Otherincome (expenses) - 3) - (68) (88) (159)
3,827 977 250 208 373 5,635
Changes in fair value on fair value through profit or loss assets:
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses)
(classified fair value through profit or loss) (68) 3 2 - - (63)
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses)
(designated fair value through profit or loss) (3,783) - 858 152 (138) (2,911)
(3,851) 3 860 152 (138) (2,974)
Net investmentincome (24) 980 1,110 360 235 2,661
MORTGAGE
AND OTHER INVESTMENT
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 BONDS LOANS SHARES PROPERTIES OTHER TOTAL
Regular netinvestmentincome:
Investmentincome earned 3,687 946 230 255 532 5,650
Net realized gains (losses) (available for sale) 124 - 4 - - 128
Net realized gains (losses) (other classifications) 10 46 - - 1 57
Net recovery (provision) for credit losses (loans and receivables) 1 8 - - - 9
Otherincome (expenses) - (12) - (63) (69) (144)
3,822 988 234 192 464 5,700
Changes in fair value on fair value through profit or loss assets:
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses)
(classified fair value through profit or loss) 22 5 - - 2 29
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses)
(designated fair value through profit or loss) 2,181 - 389 104 (28) 2,646
2,203 5 389 104 (26) 2,675
Netinvestmentincome 6,025 993 623 296 438 8,375

During theyear, Lifeco reclassified certain regular netinvestmentincome to fair value through profit or loss for presentation adjustments.

Investment income earned comprises income from investments that are:  distributions. Investment propertiesincome includes rental income earned
i) classified as available for sale, loans and receivables; and ii) classified or  on investment properties, ground rent income earned on leased and sub-
designated as fair value through profit or loss. Investment income from  leasedland, feerecoveries, lease cancellationincome, and interestand other
bondsand mortgages and otherloansincludesinterestincomeand premium  investmentincome earned on investment properties.

and discount amortization. Income from shares includes dividends and
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INVESTMENTS continueD)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The carrying value of investment properties and changes in the carrying value of investment properties are as follows:

DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year 3,572 3,249
Acquisition of Irish Life 248 -
Additions 182 166
Changeinfairvalue through profit or loss 152 104
Disposals (82) -
Foreign exchange rate changes 216 53
Balance, end of year 4,288 3,572

TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

Lifeco engages in securities lending to generate additional income. Lifeco's
securities custodians are used as lending agents. Collateral, which exceeds
the market value of the loaned securities, is deposited by the borrower
with Lifeco's lending agent and maintained by the lending agent until the
underlying security has been returned. The market value of the loaned
securities is monitored on a daily basis by the lending agent, who obtains
or refunds additional collateral as the fair value of the loaned securities

FUNDS HELD BY CEDING INSURERS

Included in funds held by ceding insurers of $10,832 million at December 31, 2013
(510,599 million at December 31,2012 and $9,978 million at January 1, 2012) is
an agreement with Standard Life Assurance Limited (Standard Life). During
2008, Canada Life International Re Limited (CLIRE), Lifeco’s indirect wholly
owned Irish reinsurance subsidiary, signed an agreement with Standard Life,
a U.K.-based provider of life, pension and investment products, to assume
by way of indemnity reinsurance a large block of payout annuities. Under

fluctuates. Included in the collateral deposited with Lifeco's lending agent
is cash collateral of $20 million as at December 31, 2013 ($141 million as at
December 31,2012). In addition, the securities lending agent indemnifies Lifeco
against borrowerrisk, meaning that thelending agent agrees contractually to
replace securities not returned due to a borrower default. Asat December 31,
2013, Lifeco had loaned securities with a market value of $5,204 million
(85,930 million as at December 31, 2012).

the agreement, CLIRE is required to put amounts on deposit with Standard
Lifeand CLIRE hasassumed the creditrisk on the portfolio of assetsincluded
in the amounts on deposit. These amounts on deposit are included in funds
held by ceding insurers on the balance sheets. Income and expenses arising
fromtheagreementareincludedin netinvestmentincome on the statements
of earnings.

At December 31,2013 CLIRE had amounts on deposit of $9,848 million ($9,951 million at December 31, 2012 and $9,411 million at January 1, 2012). The details of

the funds on deposit and related credit risk on the funds are as follows:

CARRYING VALUES AND ESTIMATED FAIR VALUES

DECEMBER 31,2013 DECEMBER 31,2012 JANUARY 1, 2012
RV wie VaLe wie | AL vALUE
Cash and cash equivalents 70 70 120 120 49 49
Bonds 9,619 9,619 9,655 9,655 9,182 9,182
Otherassets 159 159 176 176 180 180
9,848 9,848 9,951 9,951 9,411 9,411

Supporting:
Reinsurance liabilities 9,402 9,402 9,406 9,406 9,082 9,082
Surplus 446 446 545 545 329 329
9,848 9,848 9,951 9,951 9,411 9,411
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FUNDS HELD BY CEDING INSURERS (conTinueD)

CARRYING VALUE OF BONDS BY ISSUER AND INDUSTRY SECTOR

The following table provides details of the carrying value of bonds included in the funds on deposit by issuer and industry sector:

DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER 31,2012

JANUARY1,2012

Bondsissued or guaranteed by:

Canadian federal government 75 71 -
Provincial, state and municipal governments 17 16 88
U.S. treasury and other U.S. agencies 22 16 -
Otherforeign governments 2,097 2,455 3,074
Government-related 508 443 369
Supranationals 185 172 128
Asset-backed securities 249 258 242
Residential mortgage-backed securities 91 87 73
Banks 1,944 2,070 1,807
Other financial institutions 1,033 1,007 747
Basic materials 70 58 21
Communications 138 224 239
Consumer products 704 617 404
Industrial products/services 108 31 26
Natural resources 354 320 220
Real estate 540 475 381
Transportation 196 145 117
Utilities 1,190 1,119 1,135
Miscellaneous 98 71 111
Total bonds 9,619 9,655 9,182

ASSET QUALITY
Thefollowing table provides details of the carrying value of the bond portfolio by credit rating:

BOND PORTFOLIO BY CREDIT RATING DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER 31,2012

JANUARY1,2012

AAA 2,669 3,103 3,520
AA 2,382 2,183 1,819
A 3,666 3,539 3,116
BBB 546 507 468
BB and lower 356 323 259
Total bonds 9,619 9,655 9,182
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED CORPORATIONS AND ASSOCIATE

Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate are composed  Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate also include
principally of the Corporation’s 50% interest in Parjointco. As at December31,  Lifeco’s30.4% investment, held through Irish Life, in Allianz Ireland, an unlisted
2013, Parjointco held a 55.6% equity interest in Pargesa (55.6% as at December31,  general insurance company operating in Ireland.

2012), representing 75.4% of the voting rights.

Carrying value of the investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate is as follows:

DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Carryingvalue, beginning of year 2,121 2,205
Acquisition of Irish Life 207 -
Share of earnings 134 130
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) 274 (107)
Dividends (78) (65)
Other 6 (42)
Carryingvalue, end of year 2,664 2,121

Thenetassetvalue of the Corporation’'sindirectinterestin Pargesais approximately $2,927 million as at December 31, 2013. The carrying value of the investment
in Pargesa is $2,437 million, or $1,902 million excluding the unrealized net gains of its underlying investments. Pargesa’s financial information asatand for the
year ended December 31,2013 can be obtained inits publicly available information.

OWNER-OCCUPIED PROPERTIES AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The carrying value of owner-occupied properties and capital assets and the changes in the carrying value of owner-occupied properties and capital assets
are asfollows:

2013 2012
OWNER- OWNER-
OCCUPIED CAPITAL OCCUPIED CAPITAL

DECEMBER 31 PROPERTIES ASSETS TOTAL PROPERTIES ASSETS TOTAL
Cost, beginning of year 607 907 1,514 577 846 1,423
Acquisition of Irish Life 49 30 79 - - -
Additions 23 85 108 33 93 126
Disposal/retirements - (66) (66) - (32) (32)
Changein foreign exchange rates 14 12 26 (3) - (3)
Cost, end of year 693 968 1,661 607 907 1,514
Accumulated amortization, beginning of year (43) (680) (723) (36) (649) (685)
Amortization (9) (53) (62) 7) (52) (59)
Impairment = (2) 2) - - -
Disposal/retirements = 54 54 - 24 24
Change in foreign exchange rates = (3) (3) - (3) (3)
Accumulated amortization, end of year (52) (684) (736) 43) (680) (723)
Carryingvalue, end of year 641 284 925 564 227 791

Thefollowing table provides details of the carrying value of owner-occupied properties and capital assets by geographic location:

DECEMBER 31,2013 DECEMBER 31, 2012 JANUARY 1, 2012

Canada 613 589 536
United States 188 172 175
Europe 124 30 27
925 791 738
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OTHER ASSETS

DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER 31,2012

JANUARY 1, 2012

Premiums in course of collection, accounts receivable

and interest receivable 3,435 2,955 2,661
Deferred acquisition costs 687 541 529
Pension benefits [Note 26] 408 202 199
Income taxes receivable 199 204 209
Trading accountassets 376 144 141
Prepaid expenses 115 120 129
Other 687 608 413

5,907 4774 4,281
Total otherassets of $4,772 million as at December 31, 2013 are to be realized within 12 months.
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
GOODWILL
The carrying value of the goodwill and changes in the carrying value of the goodwill are as follows:
2013 2012
ACCUMULATED CARRYING ACCUMULATED CARRYING
DECEMBER 31 COST IMPAIRMENT VALUE COST IMPAIRMENT VALUE
Balance, beginning of year 9,563 (890) 8,673 9,703 (917) 8,786

Acquisition of Irish Life [Note 4] 378 - 378 - - -

Additions 17 = 17 - - -

Changein foreign exchange rates 100 63) 37 (31) 27 (4)

Other = = = (109) - (109)
Balance, end of year 10,058 (953) 9,105 9,563 (890) 8,673

ALLOCATION TO CASH GENERATING UNITS
Goodwill has been assigned to cash generating units as follows:

DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER 31,2012

JANUARY 1, 2012

LIFECO
Canada
Group 1,142 1,142 1,142
Individual insurance / wealth management 3,028 3,028 3,028
Europe
Insurance and annuities 1,970 1,563 1,563
Reinsurance 1 1 1
United States
Financial services 131 123 127
IGM
Investors Group 1,443 1,443 1,500
Mackenzie 1,250 1,250 1,302
Otherand corporate 140 123 123
9,105 8,673 8,786
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS continuen)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The carrying value of the intangible assets and changes in the carrying value of the intangible assets are as follows:

INDEFINITE LIFE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

SHAREHOLDERS'
PORTION OF
ACQUIRED
FUTURE BRANDS,
CUSTOMER PARTICIPATING TRADEMARKS MUTUALFUND
CONTRACT- ACCOUNT AND TRADE MANAGEMENT
DECEMBER 31, 2013 RELATED PROFITS NAMES CONTRACTS TOTAL
Cost, beginning of year 2,264 354 1,002 740 4,360
Acquisition of Irish Life [Note 4] - - 131 - 131
Additions - - - 1 1
Changeinforeign exchange rates 134 - 45 - 179
Cost, end of year 2,398 354 1,178 741 4,671
Accumulated impairment, beginning of year (802) - (91) - (893)
Impairment = = (34) = (34)
Changein foreign exchange rates and other (56) - @) - (63)
Accumulated impairment, end of year (858) - (132) - (990)
Carryingvalue, end of year 1,540 354 1,046 741 3,681
SHAREHOLDERS'
PORTION OF
ACQUIRED
FUTURE BRANDS,
CUSTOMER PARTICIPATING TRADEMARKS MUTUAL FUND
CONTRACT- ACCOUNT AND TRADE MANAGEMENT
DECEMBER 31, 2012 RELATED PROFITS NAMES CONTRACTS TOTAL
Cost, beginning of year 2,321 354 1,011 740 4,426
Changein foreign exchange rates (57) - 9) - (66)
Cost, end of year 2,264 354 1,002 740 4,360
Accumulated impairment, beginning of year (825) - (94) - (919)
Changeinforeign exchange rates 23 - 3 - 26
Accumulated impairment, end of year (802) - (91) - (893)
Carryingvalue, end of year 1,462 354 911 740 3,467
SHAREHOLDERS'
PORTION OF
ACQUIRED
FUTURE BRANDS,
CUSTOMER PARTICIPATING TRADEMARKS MUTUAL FUND
CONTRACT- ACCOUNT AND TRADE MANAGEMENT
JANUARY 1, 2012 RELATED PROFITS NAMES CONTRACTS TOTAL
Cost 2,321 354 1,011 740 4,426
Accumulated impairment (825) - (94) - (919)
Carryingvalue 1,496 354 917 740 3,507
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (conTinueD)

FINITE LIFE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

CUSTOMER TECHNOLOGY DEFERRED

CONTRACT- DISTRIBUTION DISTRIBUTION AND PROPERTY SELLING
DECEMBER 31, 2013 RELATED CHANNELS CONTRACTS LEASES SOFTWARE COMMISSIONS TOTAL
Cost, beginning of year 564 103 110 25 655 1,448 2,905
Acquisition of Irish Life [Note 4] 116 - - - - - 116
Additions - - 2 - 115 237 354
Disposal/redemption = = 1) = (1) (84) (86)
Changeinforeign exchange rates 27 7 = 2 16 = 52
Other, including write-off of assets fully amortized - - - - 13 (222) (209)
Cost, end of year 707 110 111 27 798 1,379 3,132
Accumulated amortization, beginning of year (235) (34) (41) (25) (352) (752) (1,439)
Amortization (39) (3) (8) - (82) (210) (342)
Impairment = = = = (3) = (3)
Disposal/redemption - - - - (1) 49 48
Change in foreign exchange rates 6) 1) - 2) 9) - (18)
Other, including write-off of assets fully amortized = = = = = 222 222
Accumulated amortization, end of year (280) (38) (49) 27) (447) (691) (1,532)
Carryingvalue, end of year 427 72 62 = 351 688 1,600

CUSTOMER TECHNOLOGY DEFERRED

CONTRACT- DISTRIBUTION DISTRIBUTION AND PROPERTY SELLING
DECEMBER 31, 2012 RELATED CHANNELS CONTRACTS LEASES SOFTWARE COMMISSIONS TOTAL
Cost, beginning of year 571 100 107 25 545 1,551 2,899
Additions - - 3 - 105 212 320
Disposal/redemption - - - - (19) (103) (122)
Changein foreign exchange rates @) 3 - - (3) - 7)
Other, including write-off of assets fully amortized - - - - 27 (212) (185)
Cost, end of year 564 103 110 25 655 1,448 2,905
Accumulated amortization, beginning of year (204) (29) (33) (22) (295) (800) (1,383)
Amortization 31) (5) 8 (3) (72) (223) (342)
Disposal/redemption - - - - 15 59 74
Other, including write-off of assets fully amortized - - - - - 212 212
Accumulated amortization, end of year (235) (34) (41) (25) (352) (752) (1,439)
Carryingvalue, end of year 329 69 69 - 303 696 1,466

CUSTOMER TECHNOLOGY DEFERRED

CONTRACT- DISTRIBUTION DISTRIBUTION AND PROPERTY SELLING
JANUARY 1, 2012 RELATED CHANNELS CONTRACTS LEASES SOFTWARE COMMISSIONS TOTAL
Cost 571 100 107 25 545 1,551 2,899
Accumulated impairment (204) (29) (33) (22) (295) (800) (1,383)
Carryingvalue, end of year 367 71 74 3 250 751 1,516
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continueD)

The Corporation and its subsidiaries conducted their annual impairment
testings of goodwill and intangible assets which resulted in impairment
charges of $37 million. Lifeco recognized a $34 million intangible asset
impairment which reflects discontinued use of the Canada Life brand in
Ireland as a result of the Irish Life acquisition. This impairment charge has
beenrecorded inrestructuringand acquisition expenses (Note 24). Also, Lifeco
recognized an impairment charge of $3 million on software assets.

RECOVERABLE AMOUNT

Forthe purposes of annual impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
tothe cash generating units which are the units expected to benefitfrom the
synergies of the business combinations.

Any potential impairment of goodwill or intangible assets is identified by
comparing the recoverable amount to its carrying value. The recoverable
amountisdetermined as the higher of fairvalue less cost to sell or value-in-use.

Fairvalueis determined usinga combination of commonly accepted valuation
methodologies, namely comparable trading and transaction multiples
and discounted cash flow analysis. Comparable trading and transaction
multiples methodologies calculate value by applying multiples observed in
the marketagainst historical and projected results approved by management.
Value-in-use is calculated by discounting cash flow projections approved
by management or board of directors covering an initial forecast period of
three to five years. Value beyond the initial period is derived by applying a
terminal value multiple to the final year of the initial projection period. Fora
significant portion of the goodwill and intangible assets, the terminal value
multiple is a function of the discount rate (which ranges from 10% to 12.5%)
and the terminal growth rate (which ranges from1.5% to 3.0%). The discount
rateis reflective of the country-and product-specific cash flow risks and the
terminal growth rate is estimated as the long-term average growth rate of
sales, including inflation in the markets in which the Corporation and its
subsidiaries operate.

SEGREGATED FUNDS AND OTHER STRUCTURED ENTITIES

Lifeco offers segregated fund products in Canada, the U.S. and Europe that
arereferred toas segregated funds, separate accountsand unit-linked funds
in the respective markets. These funds are contracts issued by insurers
to segregated fund policyholders where the benefit is directly linked to
the performance of the investments, the risks or rewards of the fair value
movements and net investment income is realized by the segregated fund
policyholders. The segregated fund policyholders are required to select the
segregated funds that hold a range of underlying investments. While Lifeco
has legal title to the investments, there is a contractual obligation to pass
along theinvestmentresults to the segregated fund policyholders and Lifeco
segregates these investments from those of the corporation itself.

In Canada and the U.S., the segregated fund and separate account assets
are legally separated from the general assets of Lifeco under the terms of
the policyholder agreement and cannot be used to settle obligations of
Lifeco. In Europe, the assets of the funds are functionally and constructively
segregated from those of Lifeco. As a result of the legal and constructive
arrangements of thesefunds, theirassetsand liabilities are presented within
the balance sheetsaslineitemstitled investments on account of segregated
fund policyholders and with an equal and offsetting liability titled insurance
andinvestment contracts onaccount of segregated fund policyholders.

In circumstances where the segregated funds are invested in structured
entities and are deemed to control the entity, Lifeco has presented the non-
controlling ownership interest within the segregated funds for the risk of
policyholdersasequal and offsettingamountsin theassets and liabilities. The
amounts presented within are $772 million at December 31,2013 (5484 million
at December 31,2012 and $403 million at January1, 2012).

Within the statement of earnings, all segregated fund policyholders'income,
including fair value changes and net investment income, is credited to the
segregated fund policyholders and reflected in the assets and liabilities on
accountof segregated fund policyholders within the balance sheets. As these
amounts do not directly impact the revenues and expenses of Lifeco, these
amountsare notincluded separately in the statements of earnings.

SEGREGATED FUNDS AND GUARANTEE EXPOSURE

Lifeco offers retail segregated fund products, variable annuity products and
unitized with profits products that provide for certain guarantees that are
tied to the fair values of the investment funds. While these products are
similar to mutual funds, there is a key difference from mutual funds as the
segregated funds have certain guarantee features that protect the segregated
fund policyholder from market declines in the underlying investments. These
guaranteesare Lifeco's primary exposure on these funds. Lifeco accounts for
these guaranteeswithininsurance and investment contractliabilitiesin the
financial statements. In addition to Lifeco’'s exposure on the guarantees, the
fees earned by Lifeco on these products are impacted by the market value
of these funds.

In Canada, Lifeco offers retail segregated fund products through Great-West
Life, London Life and Canada Life. These products provide guaranteed
minimum death benefits and guaranteed minimum accumulation on
maturity benefits.

Inthe U.S., Lifeco offersvariable annuities with guaranteed minimum death
benefits through Great-West Financial. Most are a return of premium on
death with the guarantee expiring at age 70.

In Europe, Lifeco offers unitized with profits products, which are similar
to segregated fund products, but with pooling of policyholders’ funds and
minimum credited interest rates.

Lifeco also offers guaranteed minimum withdrawal benefits products in
Canada, the U.S. and Europe. These guaranteed minimum withdrawal
benefits products offer levels of death and maturity guarantees. At
December 31,2013, theamount of guaranteed minimum withdrawal benefits
productsinforcein Canada, the U.S., Ireland and Germany was $2,674 million
(5210 million at December 31,2012 and $1,256 million at January 1, 2012).
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SEGREGATED FUNDS AND OTHER STRUCTURED ENTITIES (continueD)

Lifeco's exposure to these guaranteesis set out as follows:

INVESTMENT DEFICIENCY BY BENEFITTYPE

DECEMBER 31, 2013 FAIR VALUE INCOME MATURITY DEATH TOTALM
Canada 26,779 = 32 101 101
United States 8,853 = = 42 42
Europe 8,683 260 16 74 334
Total 44 315 260 48 217 477

INVESTMENT DEFICIENCY BY BENEFITTYPE

DECEMBER 31, 2012 FAIR VALUE INCOME MATURITY DEATH TOTALI
Canada 24192 - 29 181 181
United States 7,272 - - 59 59
Europe 3,665 552 40 71 624
Total 35,129 552 69 311 864

INVESTMENT DEFICIENCY BY BENEFITTYPE

JANUARY 1, 2012 FAIRVALUE INCOME MATURITY DEATH ToTALl
Canada 22,837 - 39 301 301
United States 7,041 1 - 79 80
Europe 3,232 641 124 174 817
Total 33,110 642 163 554 1,198

[1] Apolicy canonly receive a payout for one of the three trigger events (income election, maturity, or death). Total deficiency measures the point-in-time exposure
assuming the most costly trigger event for each policy occurred on December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and January 1, 2012.

The investment deficiency measures the point-in-time exposure toa trigger ~ For further details on Lifeco’s risk and guarantee exposure and the
event (i.e. income election, maturity, or death) assuming it occurred on  management of theserisks, refer to “Risk Management and Control Practices"
December 31,2013. The actual cost to Lifeco will depend on the triggerevent  in the Lifeco section of the Corporation’'s annual Management's Discussion
having occurred and thefairvaluesatthattime. Theactual claims beforetax ~ and Analysis.

associated with these guarantees were approximately $24 million for the year

ended December 31, 2013, with the majority arising in the Europe segment.

INVESTMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF SEGREGATED FUND POLICYHOLDERS

DECEMBER 31,2013 DECEMBER 31,2012 JANUARY 1, 2012

Cash and cash equivalents 11,374 4,837 5,334
Bonds 34,405 24,070 21,594
Mortgage loans 2,427 2,303 2,303
Shares and unitsin unit trusts 62,882 35,154 32,651
Mutual funds 41,555 34,100 31,234
Investment properties 8,284 6,149 5,457
160,927 106,613 98,573

Accrued income 380 239 287
Other liabilities/assets (1,300) (1,904) (2,278)
Non-controlling mutual fund interest 772 484 403
160,779 105,432 96,985
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SEGREGATED FUNDS AND OTHER STRUCTURED ENTITIES (continuep)

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS ON ACCOUNT OF SEGREGATED FUND POLICYHOLDERS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year 105,432 96,985
Additions (deductions):
Policyholder deposits 15,861 13,819
Netinvestmentincome 1,565 1,189
Net realized capital gains on investments 3,419 1,094
Net unrealized capital gains on investments 7,879 4,316
Unrealized gains (losses) due to changes in foreign exchange rates 7,226 (213)
Policyholder withdrawals (17,141) (11,831)
Acquisition of Irish Life [Note 4] 36,348 -
Net transfer from General Fund 67 (8)
Non-controlling mutual fund interest 123 81
55,347 8,447
Balance, end of year 160,779 105,432

INVESTMENT INCOME ON ACCOUNT OF SEGREGATED FUND POLICYHOLDERS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Netinvestmentincome 1,565 1,189
Net realized capital gains oninvestments 3,419 1,094
Net unrealized capital gains on investments 7,879 4,316
Unrealized gains (losses) due to changes in foreign exchange rates 7,226 (213)
Total 20,089 6,386
Changeininsurance and investment contract liabilities on account

of segregated fund policyholders 20,089 6,386
Net - -

INVESTMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF SEGREGATED FUND POLICYHOLDERS
(by fair value hierarchy level)

DECEMBER 31, 2013 LEVEL1 LEVEL2 LEVEL3 TOTAL

Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders 106,144 46,515 9,298 161,957

[1] Excludesother liabilities, net of other assets, of $1,178 million.

During 2013 certain foreign equity holdings valued at $1,780 million have been  Level 2 assets include those assets where fair value is not available from
transferred from Level2to Level1, based on Lifeco's ability to utilize observable,  normal market pricing sources and where Lifeco does not have visibility
quoted pricesin active markets. through to the underlying assets.

The following presents additional information about Lifeco’s investments on account of segregated fund policyholders for which Lifeco has utilized Level
3inputs to determine fair value for the year ended December 31, 2013:

DECEMBER 31 2013
Balance, beginning of year 6,287
Total gainsincluded in segregated fund investmentincome 694
Acquisition of Irish Life 2,326
Purchases 428
Sales (440)
Transfersinto Level 3 4
Transfers out of Level 3 1)
Balance, end of year 9,298
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SEGREGATED FUNDS AND OTHER STRUCTURED ENTITIES (continueD)

Transfers into Level 3 are due primarily to decreased observability of inputs
in valuation methodologies. Transfers out of Level 3 are due primarily to
increased observability of inputs in valuation methodologies as evidenced
by corroboration of market prices with multiple pricing vendors.

In addition to the segregated funds, Lifeco has interests in a number of
structured unconsolidated entities including mutual funds, open-ended
investment companies, and unit trusts. These entities are created as
investment strategies for its unit holders based on the directives of each
individual fund.

Some of these funds are managed by related parties of Lifeco and Lifeco
receives management fees related to these services. Management fees can
bevariable due to the performance of factors —such as markets orindustries —
in which the fund invests. Fee income derived in connection with the
management of investment funds generally increases or decreases in direct
relationship with changes of assets under management, which is affected
by prevailing market conditions, and the inflow and outflow of client assets.

Factors that could cause assets under management and fees to decrease
include declines in equity markets, changes in fixed income markets,
changesininterest rates and defaults, redemptions and other withdrawals,
political and other economic risks, changing investment trends and relative
investment performance. The risk is that fees may vary but expenses and
recovery of initial expenses are relatively fixed, and market conditions may
cause a shiftin asset mix potentially resulting in a changein revenue.

Fee and other income received by Lifeco resulting from Lifeco's interests in
these structured entities was $3,068 million.

Included within other assets (see Note 10) is $306 million of investments by
Lifeco in bonds and stocks of Putnam-sponsored funds and $70 million of
investments in stocks of sponsored unit trusts in Europe.

During 2013, Lifeco has not provided any additional significant financial or
other supportto the structured entities.

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES

GROSS REINSURANCE
DECEMBER 31, 2013 LIABILITY ASSETS NET
Insurance contract liabilities 131,174 5,070 126,104
Investment contract liabilities 889 = 889
132,063 5,070 126,993

GROSS REINSURANCE
DECEMBER 31, 2012 LIABILITY ASSETS NET
Insurance contract liabilities 119,973 2,064 117,909
Investment contract liabilities 739 - 739
120,712 2,064 118,648

GROSS REINSURANCE
JANUARY 1, 2012 LIABILITY ASSETS NET
Insurance contract liabilities 114,785 2,061 112,724
Investment contract liabilities 782 - 782
115,567 2,061 113,506
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INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES continuep)

COMPOSITION OF INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND RELATED SUPPORTING ASSETS
The composition of insurance and investment contract liabilities of Lifeco is as follows:

DECEMBER 31,2013 DECEMBER 31,2012 JANUARY 1, 2012
GROSS REINSURANCE GROSS REINSURANCE GROSS REINSURANCE
LIABILITY ASSETS NET LIABILITY ASSETS NET LIABILITY ASSETS NET
Participating

Canada 29,107 (132) 29,239 27,851 (88) 27,939 26,470 (50) 26,520
United States 9,337 11 9,326 8,942 14 8,928 8,639 18 8,621
Europe 1,247 - 1,247 1,241 - 1,241 1,230 - 1,230

Non-participating
Canada 25,898 521 25,377 27,283 746 26,537 27,099 919 26,180
United States 19,038 238 18,800 17,356 241 17,115 16,657 276 16,381
Europe 47,436 4,432 43,004 38,039 1151 36,888 35,472 898 34,574
132,063 5070 126,993 120712 2,064 118,648 | 115567 2,061 113,506

The composition of the assets supporting liabilities and equity of Lifeco is as follows:

MORTGAGE INVESTMENT

DECEMBER 31, 2013 BONDS LOANS SHARES PROPERTIES OTHER TOTAL
Participating liabilities

Canada 11,907 7,701 4,923 1157 3,419 29,107

United States 4,583 141 = = 4,613 9,337

Europe 852 39 143 35 178 1,247
Non-participating liabilities

Canada 16,157 3,769 1,796 3 4,173 25,898

United States 15,508 2911 = = 619 19,038

Europe 27,273 3,290 225 2,460 14,188 47,436
Other, including segregated funds 9,239 641 96 87 163,780 173,843
Total equity 4,395 571 1,371 546 13116 19,999
Total carrying value 89,914 19,063 8,554 4,288 204,086 325,905
Fairvalue 90,731 19,517 8,720 4,288 204,086 327,342

MORTGAGE INVESTMENT

DECEMBER 31, 2012 BONDS LOANS SHARES PROPERTIES OTHER TOTAL
Participating liabilities

Canada 12,818 6,903 4,221 932 2,977 27,851

United States 4,307 188 - - 4,447 8,942

Europe 874 40 115 66 146 1,241
Non-participating liabilities

Canada 17,519 4,428 1,565 3 3,768 27,283

United States 14,280 2,464 - - 612 17,356

Europe 22,420 2,827 127 2,173 10,492 38,039
Other, including segregated funds 6,507 493 - 4 109,123 116,127
Total equity 3,856 532 1,023 394 11,206 17,011
Total carrying value 82,581 17,875 7,051 3,572 142,771 253,850
Fairvalue 84,085 19,067 7,089 3,572 142,771 256,584
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MORTGAGE INVESTMENT

JANUARY 1, 2012 BONDS LOANS SHARES PROPERTIES OTHER TOTAL
Participating liabilities

Canada 11,862 6,686 3,864 507 3,551 26,470

United States 4,059 152 - - 4428 8,639

Europe 855 56 128 70 121 1,230
Non-participating liabilities

Canada 16,674 4,738 1,329 20 4,338 27,099

United States 13,523 2,369 - - 765 16,657

Europe 20,449 2,506 119 2,092 10,306 35,472
Other, including segregated funds 6,563 484 - 6 100,869 107,922
Total equity 4,370 441 1,216 554 9,131 15,712
Total carrying value 78,355 17,432 6,656 3,249 133,509 239,201
Fairvalue 79,396 18,662 6,724 3,249 133,509 241,540

Cashflows of assets supporting insurance and investment contract liabilities ~ Changes in the fair values of assets backing capital and surplus, less related
are matched within reasonable limits. Changes in the fair values of these  income taxes, would resultin a corresponding change in surplus over timein
assets are essentially offset by changes in the fair value of insurance and  accordance with investmentaccounting policies.

investment contract liabilities.

CHANGE IN INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Thechange ininsurance contract liabilities during the year was the result of the following business activities and changes in actuarial estimates:

PARTICIPATING NON-PARTICIPATING

GROSS REINSURANCE GROSS REINSURANCE TOTAL

DECEMBER 31, 2013 LIABILITY ASSETS NET LIABILITY ASSETS NET NET
Balance, beginning of year 38,003 (74) 38,077 81,970 2,138 79,832 117,909
Acquisition of Irish Life = = = 6,160 2,963 3,197 3,197
Impact of new business 16 - 16 5,251 (135) 5,386 5,402
Normal change in force 1,049 (13) 1,062 (5,898) 417 (6,315) (5,253)
Management action and changes in assumptions (129) (36) (93) (407) (323) (84) 177)
Business movement from/to external parties = = = (455) (234) (221) (221)
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes 724 2 722 4,890 365 4,525 5,247
Balance, end of year 39,663 (121) 39,784 91,511 5,191 86,320 126,104

PARTICIPATING NON-PARTICIPATING

GROSS REINSURANCE GROSS REINSURANCE TOTAL

DECEMBER 31, 2012 LIABILITY ASSETS NET LIABILITY ASSETS NET NET
Balance, beginning of year 36,303 (32) 36,335 78,482 2,093 76,389 112,724
Impact of new business 72 - 72 4,656 326 4,330 4,402
Normal changein force 1,621 6) 1,627 (519) 35 (554) 1,073
Managementaction and changes in assumptions (260) (34) (226) (380) (306) (74) (300)
Business movement from/to external parties - - - (48) 7) (41) (41)
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes (262) 2) (260) 308 (3) 311 51
Impact of Crown Life amalgamation 529 - 529 (529) - (529) -
Balance, end of year 38,003 (74) 38077 81,970 2,138 79,832 117,909
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Under fair value accounting, movement in the fair value of the supporting
assets is a major factor in the movement of insurance contract liabilities.
Changesinthefairvalue of assetsarelargely offset by corresponding changes
inthefairvalue of liabilities. The changein the value of theinsurance contract
liabilities associated with the change in the value of the supporting assets is
included in the normal changein force above.

In 2013, the major contributors to the increase in net insurance contract
liabilities were the impact of new business ($5,402 million increase), the
impact of foreign exchange rate changes ($5,247 million increase) and the
Irish Life acquisition ($3,197 million increase). This was partially offset by the
normal change in the in-force business (55,253 million decrease) which was
partly due to the changeinfairvalue.

Net non-participatinginsurance contract liabilities decreased by $84 million
in 2013 due to management actions and assumption changes including
a $123 million decrease in Canada, a $41 million increase in Europe and a
$2million decrease in the United States.

The decrease in Canada was primarily due to updated mortality assumptions
(595 million decrease), updated morbidity assumptions (570 million decrease),
modelling refinements across the Canadian segment (515 million decrease),
decreased provisions forinterest and mismatch risk (55 million decrease) and
updated expenses and taxes (53 million decrease), partially offset by increased
provisions for policyholder behaviour (563 million increase) and updated
longevity assumptions ($3 million increase).

The increase in Europe was primarily due to increased provisions for
policyholder behaviour (555 million increase), increased provisions for
expenses and taxes ($30 million increase), updated morbidity assumptions
(527 million increase) and updates to other provisions (54 million increase),
partially offset by updates to the life mortality assumptions ($40 million
decrease), decreased provisions for interest and mismatch risk (25 million
decrease) and modelling refinements (511 million decrease).

The decreaseinthe United States was primarily due to updated life mortality
assumptions (5§12 million decrease), partially offset by updated expenses
and taxes ($9 million increase), and updated longevity assumptions
(STmillionincrease).

Net participating insurance contract liabilities decreased by $93 million
in 2013 due to management actions and assumption changes. The decrease
was primarily due to decreases from higher investment returns ($631 million
decrease), modelling refinements in Canada ($109 million decrease) and
updated expenses and taxes (588 million decrease), partially offset by
increased provisions for future policyholder dividends (5710 million increase),

increased provisions for policyholder behaviour ($20 millionincrease), updated
life mortality assumptions (54 million increase) and updated morbidity
assumptions ($1million increase).

In 2012, the major contributors to the increase in net insurance contract
liabilities were the impact of new business (54,402 million increase) and the
normal changein thein-force business (51,073 millionincrease) primarily due
tothechangeinfairvalue.

Net non-participating insurance contract liabilities decreased by $74 million
in 2012 due to management actions and assumption changes, including
a $138 million decrease in Canada, a $97 million increase in Europe and a
$33 million decrease in the United States.

The decrease in Canada was primarily due to updated lifeinsurance mortality
(579 million decrease), updated expenses and taxes (575 million decrease),
modelling refinements across the Canadian segment ($71 million decrease),
updated longevity assumptions (521 million decrease) and updated morbidity
assumptions (59 million decrease), partially offset by provisions forasset and
mismatch risk (566 million increase) and increased provisions for policyholder
behaviour in Individual Insurance ($41 million increase).

Theincreasein Europe was primarily due to updated longevity improvement
assumptions ($348 million increase), increased provisions for policyholder
behaviour in reinsurance ($109 million increase), increased provisions for
expenses and taxes ($36 million increase), modelling refinements ($32 million
increase), increased provisions for asset and mismatch risk (515 million
increase) and updated morbidity assumptions ($3 millionincrease), partially
offset by updated base longevity assumptions ($358 million decrease) and
updated lifeinsurance mortality (585 million decrease).

The decreasein the United Stateswas primarily due to updated life mortality
(533 million decrease), updated longevity assumptions (53 million decrease),
decreased provisions for policyholder behaviour ($3 million decrease) and
updated expenses and taxes (51 million decrease), partially offset by provisions
forasset and mismatch risk (7 million increase).

Net participating insurance contract liabilities decreased by $226 million
in 2012 due to managementactions and assumption changes. The decrease
was primarily due to decreases in the provision for future policyholder
dividends ($2,078 million decrease), improved Individual Life mortality
(8124 million decrease), updated expenses and taxes ($92 million decrease)
and modelling refinements in Canada ($10 million decrease), partially offset
by lower investment returns (52,056 million increase), increased provisions
for policyholder behaviour (519 million increase) and updated morbidity
assumptions ($3 millionincrease).

CHANGE IN INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year 739 782
Acquisition of Irish Life [Note 4] 194 -
Normal change in in-force business 97) (87)
Investment experience 19 51
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes 34 (7)
Balance, end of year 889 739
The carrying value of investment contract liabilities approximates their fair value. No investment contract liabilities have been reinsured.
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PREMIUM INCOME

DECEMBER 31 2013 20120
Direct premiums 18,772 17,379
Assumed reinsurance premiums 4,669 4,897
Total 23,441 22,276
POLICYHOLDER BENEFITS

DECEMBER 31 2013 20121
Direct 13,516 14,589
Assumed reinsurance 4,948 3,265
Total 18,464 17,854

[1] Lifecoreclassified certain comparative figures to conform to the presentation adopted in the current period. This resulted inanincrease in assumed reinsurance
premiums of $437 million, a decrease to reinsurance fee income of $13 million, offset primarily by an increase in assumed reinsurance policyholder benefits.

Therewas noimpact on equity, net earnings or cash flows of the Corporation.

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

In the computation of insurance contract liabilities, valuation assumptions
have been made regarding rates of mortality/morbidity, investment
returns, levels of operating expenses, rates of policy termination and
rates of utilization of elective policy options or provisions. The valuation
assumptions use best estimates of future experience together with
a margin for adverse deviation. These margins are necessary to provide
for possibilities of misestimation and/or future deterioration in the best
estimate assumptions and provide reasonable assurance that insurance
contractliabilities coverarange of possible outcomes. Margins are reviewed
periodically for continued appropriateness.

The methodsforarriving at these valuation assumptions are outlined below:

Mortality A life insurance mortality study is carried out annually for each
major block of insurance business. Theresults of each study are used to update
Lifeco's experience valuation mortality tables for that business. When there
isinsufficient data, useis made of the latest industry experience to derive an
appropriate valuation mortality assumption. The actuarial standards were
amended to remove the requirement that, for life insurance, any reduction
in liabilities due to mortality improvement assumptions be offset by an equal
amount of provision foradverse deviation. Appropriate provisions have been
made for future mortality deterioration on term insurance.

Annuitant mortality is also studied regularly and the results are used to

modify established industry experience annuitant mortality tables.

Mortality improvement has been projected to occur throughout future
years forannuitants.

Morbidity Lifeco uses industry-developed experience tables modified to
reflect emerging Lifeco experience. Both claim incidence and termination
are monitored regularly and emerging experience is factored into the
currentvaluation.
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Property and casualty reinsurance Insurance contract liabilities for
propertyand casualty reinsurance written by London Reinsurance Group Inc.
(LRG), a subsidiary of London Life, are determined using accepted actuarial
practices for property and casualty insurers in Canada. The insurance
contract liabilities have been established using cash flow valuation
techniques, including discounting. The insurance contract liabilities are
based on cession statements provided by ceding companies. In certain
instances, LRG management adjusts cession statement amounts to reflect
management's interpretation of the treaty. Differences will be resolved via
audits and other loss mitigation activities. In addition, insurance contract
liabilities also include an amount for incurred but not reported losses which
may differ significantly from the ultimate loss development. The estimates
and underlying methodology are continually reviewed and updated, and
adjustments to estimates are reflected in earnings. LRG analyzes the
emergence of claims experience against expected assumptions for each
reinsurance contractseparatelyandat the portfoliolevel. If necessary, a more
in-depth analysisis undertaken of the cedant experience.

Investment returns The assets which correspond to the different liability
categories are segmented. For each segment, projected cash flows from
the current assets and liabilities are used in the Canadian Asset Liability
Method to determine insurance contract liabilities. Cash flows from assets
arereduced to provide forasset defaultlosses. Testing under several interest
rateand equity scenarios (including increasing and decreasing rates) is done
to provide for reinvestment risk (refer to Note 23).

Expenses Contractual policy expenses (e.g., sales commissions) and tax
expensesarereflected ona best estimate basis. Expense studies forindirect
operating expenses are updated regularly to determine an appropriate
estimate of future operating expenses for the liability type being valued.
Improvements in unit operating expenses are not projected. An inflation
assumption is incorporated in the estimate of future operating expenses
consistent with the interest rate scenarios projected under the Canadian
Asset Liability Method as inflation is assumed to be correlated with new
money interest rates.



INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES continuep)

Policy termination Studies to determine rates of policy termination are
updated regularly to form the basis of this estimate. Industry data is also
available and is useful where Lifeco has no experience with specific types of
policies orits exposure is limited. Lifeco has significant exposures in respect
of the T-100 and Level Cost of Insurance Universal Life productsin Canada and
policyrenewalratesat the end of term for renewable term policiesin Canada
and Reinsurance. Industry experience has guided Lifeco’'s assumptions for
these products as Lifeco's own experienceis very limited.

Utilization of elective policy options There are a wide range of elective
options embedded in the policies issued by Lifeco. Examples include term
renewals, conversion to whole life insurance (term insurance), settlement
annuity purchase at guaranteed rates (deposit annuities) and guarantee
resets (segregated fund maturity guarantees). The assumed rates of
utilization are based on Lifeco or industry experience when it exists and,
when not, onjudgment considering incentives to utilize the option. Generally,
whenever it is clearly in the best interests of an informed policyholder to
utilize an option, then itisassumed to be elected.

Policyholder dividends and adjustable policy features Future
policyholder dividends and other adjustable policy features are included
in the determination of insurance contract liabilities with the assumption
that policyholder dividends or adjustable benefits will change in the future

inresponse to therelevant experience. The dividend and policy adjustments

are determined consistent with policyholders' reasonable expectations, such
expectations being influenced by the participating policyholder dividend
policies and/or policyholder communications, marketing material and past
practice. It is Lifeco’s expectation that changes will occur in policyholder
dividend scales oradjustable benefits for participating oradjustable business
respectively, corresponding to changes in the best estimate assumptions,
resulting inanimmaterial net changeininsurance contract liabilities. Where
underlying guarantees may limit the ability to pass all of this experience
back to the policyholder, the impact of this non-adjustability impacting
shareholder earnings is reflected in the impact of changes in best estimate
assumptions above.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Insurance risk Insurance risk is the risk that the insured event occurs
and that there are large deviations between expected and actual actuarial
assumptions, including mortality, persistency, longevity, morbidity, expense
variations and investmentreturns.

Asaninsurance company, Lifecoisin the business of accepting risk associated
withinsurance contractliabilities. Lifeco's objective is to mitigate its exposure
to risk arising from these contracts through product design, product and
geographical diversification, theimplementation of its underwriting strategy
guidelines, and through the use of reinsurance arrangements.

The following table provides information about Lifeco's insurance contract liabilities’ sensitivities to Lifeco management's best estimate of the approximate
impactasaresult of changesinassumptions used to determine Lifeco’s liability associated with these contracts.

2013 2012
IMPACT ON POWER IMPACT ON POWER
CHANGES IN LIFECO PROFIT FINANCIAL'S CHANGES IN LIFECO PROFIT FINANCIAL'S
DECEMBER 31 ASSUMPTIONS ORLOSS SHARE ASSUMPTIONS ORLOSS SHARE
Mortality (increase) 2% (217) (146) 2% (208) (147)
Annuitant mortality (decrease) 2% (272) (183) 2% (274) (194)
Morbidity (adverse change) 5% (208) (140) 5% (188) (133)
Investment returns
Parallel shiftinyield curvel!
Increase 1% = = 1% n/a n/a
Decrease 1% = = 1% n/a n/a
Changeinrange of interest rates!!
Increase 1% 12 8 1% n/a n/a
Decrease 1% (322) (217) 1% n/a n/a
Changein equity markets
Increase 10% 34 23 10% 18 13
Decrease 10% (150) (101) 10% (96) (68)
Changein best estimate returns for equities
Increase 1% 353 237 1% 342 242
Decrease 1% (392) (264) 1% (376) (266)
Expenses (increase) 5% (76) (51) 5% (56) (40)
Policy termination (adverse change) 10% (4606) (313) 10% (473) (334)
[1] Duetoachangeininterest provision methodologyin 2013, 2012 sensitivities are not comparable to 2013. Please refer to Note 23.
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Concentration risk may arise from geographicregions, accumulation of risks and market risks. The concentration of insurancerisk before and after reinsurance

by geographicregionis described below.

DECEMBER 31, 2013 DECEMBER 31, 2012 JANUARY1, 2012

GROSS REINSURANCE GROSS REINSURANCE GROSS REINSURANCE
LIABILITY ASSETS NET LIABILITY ASSETS NET LIABILITY ASSETS NET
Canada 55,005 389 54,616 55134 658 54,476 53,569 869 52,700
United States 28,375 249 28,126 26,298 255 26,043 25,296 294 25,002
Europe 48,683 4,432 44,251 39,280 1151 38,129 36,702 898 35,804
132,063 5,070 126,993 120,712 2,064 118,648 115,567 2,061 113,506

Reinsurance risk Maximum limits per insured life benefit amount (which
vary by line of business) are established for life and health insurance and
reinsurance is purchased foramounts in excess of those limits.

Reinsurance costsand recoveriesas defined by the reinsurance agreementare
reflected in thevaluation with these costs and recoveries being appropriately
calibrated to the direct assumptions.

OBLIGATION TO SECURITIZATION ENTITIES

IGM securitizes residential mortgages through the Canada Mortgage and
Housing Corporation (CMHC)-sponsored National Housing Act Mortgage-
Backed Securities (NHA MBS) Program and Canada Mortgage Bond (CMB)
Program and through Canadian bank-sponsored asset-backed commercial
paper (ABCP) programs. These transactions do not meet the requirements for
derecognitionasIGM retains prepaymentrisk and certain elements of credit
risk. Accordingly, IGM has retained these mortgages onits balance sheetsand
hasrecorded an offsetting liability for the net proceeds received as obligations
to securitization entities which is carried at amortized cost.

IGM earns interest on the mortgages and pays interest on the obligations
to securitization entities. As part of the CMB transactions, IGM enters
into a swap transaction whereby IGM pays coupons on CMBs and receives
investment returnson the NHA MBS and the reinvestment of repaid mortgage

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve Lifeco from its obligations to
policyholders. Failure of reinsurers to honour their obligations could result
in losses to Lifeco. Lifeco evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers
to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies.

Certain of the reinsurance contracts are on a funds withheld basis where
Lifeco retains the assets supporting the reinsured insurance contract
liabilities, thus minimizing the exposure to significant losses from reinsurer
insolvency on those contracts.

principal. A component of this swap, related to the obligation to pay CMB
coupons and receive investment returns on repaid mortgage principal,
is recorded as a derivative and had a negative fair value of $16 million at
December 31,2013 (a negative fair value of $56 million in 2012).

Under the NHA MBS and CMB Programs, IGM has an obligation to make
timely payments to security holders regardless of whether amounts are
received from mortgagors. All mortgages securitized under the NHA MBS and
CMB Programs are insured by CMHC or another approved insurer under the
program. As part of the ABCP transactions, IGM has provided cash reserves
for credit enhancement which are carried at cost. Credit risk is limited to
these cashreservesandfuture netinterestincomeas the ABCP Trusts have no
recourse to IGM's otherassets for failure to make payments when due. Credit
riskis further limited to the extent these mortgages are insured.

2013 2012
OBLIGATIONS TO OBLIGATIONS TO

DECEMBER 31 VORTGAGES — ENTITIES NET  MORTGAGES | ENTIIES NET
Carryingvalue

NHA MBS and CMB Programs 3,803 3,843 (40) 3,285 3,312 27)

Bank-sponsored ABCP 1,689 1,729 (40) 1,354 1,389 (35)

Total 5,492 5,572 (80) 4,639 4,701 62)

Fairvalue 5,659 5,671 (12) 4,757 4,787 (30)

The carrying value of obligations to securitization entities, whichis recorded net of issue costs, includes principal payments received on securitized mortgages
thatarenotdue to be settled until after the reporting period. Issue costs are amortized over the life of the obligation on an effective interest rate basis.
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DEBENTURES AND DEBT INSTRUMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER 31,2012

JANUARY 1, 2012

CARRYING
VALUE

FAIR
VALUE

CARRYING
VALUE

FAIR
VALUE

CARRYING
VALUE

FAIR
VALUE

DEBTINSTRUMENTS
GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

Commercial paperand other short-term debt instruments with

interest rates from 0.24% to 0.33% (0.27% to 0.35% in 2012) 105 105 97 97 100 100
Revolving credit facility with interest equal to LIBOR rate plus

0.75% or U.S. prime rate loan (US$450 million) 477 477 - - - -
Mortgage payable with interest rate of 4% changing to 5%

on February1, 2014, matures April 30, 2014 75 75 - - - -
Term note due October18, 2015, bearing an interest rate of LIBOR

rate plus 0.75%, (US$304 million) unsecured 322 322 301 301 304 308
Revolving credit facility with interest equal to LIBOR rate

plus1%or U.S. prime rate loan (US$200 million) = = 198 198 204 204
Notes payable with interest rate of 8.0% due May 6, 2014,

unsecured 1 1 2 2 3 3

TOTALDEBT INSTRUMENTS 980 980 598 598 611 615
DEBENTURES
POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

6.90% debentures, due March 11,2033, unsecured 250 304 250 324 250 295
GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

5.25% subordinated debentures, including associated fixed

floating swap (€200 million) 317 321 - - - -
6.14% debentures due March 21, 2018, unsecured 199 227 199 234 199 229
4.65% debentures due August 13,2020, unsecured 498 539 498 557 497 522
2.50% debentures due April 18,2023, (€500 million) unsecured 729 713 - - - -
6.40% subordinated debentures due December 11,2028, unsecured 100 117 100 117 100 115
6.74% debentures due November 24, 2031, unsecured 192 246 191 256 190 237
6.67% debentures due March 21, 2033, unsecured 391 493 397 512 397 472
6.625% deferrable debentures due November15, 2034,

(US$175 million) unsecured 182 184 170 176 175 170
5.998% debentures due November16, 2039, unsecured 342 405 342 431 343 383
Subordinated debentures due May 16, 2046, bearing an interest

rate of 7153% until May 16, 2016 and, thereafter, a rate of 2.538%

plus the 3-month LIBOR rate, (US$300 million) unsecured 317 328 296 307 310 298
Subordinated debentures due June 21,2067, bearing an interest

rate of 5.691% until June 21, 2017 and, thereafter, at arate

equal to the Canadian 90-day bankers'acceptancerate plus

1.49%, unsecured 996 1,097 995 1,097 994 1,028
Subordinated debentures due June 26, 2068, bearing an interest

rate of 7127% until June 26, 2018 and, thereafter, at a rate

equal to the Canadian 90-day bankers'acceptancerate plus

3.78%, unsecured 497 583 497 592 497 550

IGM FINANCIALINC.
6.58% debentures 2003 Series, due March 7, 2018, unsecured 150 172 150 176 150 175
7.35% debentures 2009 Series, due April 8, 2019, unsecured 375 450 375 466 375 457
6.65% debentures1997 Series, due December13, 2027, unsecured 125 146 125 151 125 148
7.45% debentures 2001 Series, due May 9, 2031, unsecured 150 189 150 194 150 189
7.00% debentures 2002 Series, due December 31,2032, unsecured 175 213 175 220 175 213
71% debentures 2003 Series, due March 7, 2033, unsecured 150 185 150 190 150 185
6.00% debentures 2010 Series, due December10, 2040, unsecured 200 223 200 232 200 220
Debentures held by Lifeco as investments (40) (49) (41) (51) (39) (47)
TOTALDEBENTURES 6,295 7,086 5,219 6,181 5,238 5,839
7,275 8,066 5,817 6,779 5,849 6,454

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

2013 ANNUAL REPORT 8]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEBENTURES AND DEBT INSTRUMENTS (continueD)

The principal payments on debentures and debt instrumentsin each of the next five years is as follows:

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereafter

658
322

294
350
5,651

CAPITAL TRUST DEBENTURES

DECEMBER 31, 2013 DECEMBER 31,2012 JANUARY 1, 2012
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
CANADA LIFE CAPITALTRUST

7.529% capital trust debentures due June 30, 2052, unsecured 150 205 150 216 150 197
6.679% capital trust debentures due June 30, 2052, unsecured = = - - 300 307

GREAT-WEST LIFE CAPITALTRUST
5.995% capital trust debentures due December 31,2052, unsecured = = - - 350 363
150 205 150 216 800 867
Acquisition-related fair value adjustment 13 = 14 - 15 -
163 205 164 216 815 867

Canada Life Capital Trust (CLCT) redeemed all of its outstanding $300 million
principalamount Canada Life Capital Securities — Series A (CLiCS — Series A)
onJune29,2012 at par.

Great-West Life Capital Trust redeemed all of its outstanding $350 million
principal amount Great-West Life Capital Trust Securities — Series A on
December 31,2012 at par.

OTHER LIABILITIES

CLCT, a trust established by Canada Life, had issued $150 million of Canada
Life Capital Securities — Series B (CLiCS — Series B), the proceeds of which
were used by CLCT to purchase Canada Life senior debenturesintheamount
of $150 million.

Distributions and interest on the capital trust securities are classified as
financing charges on the statements of earnings (see Note 25).

Subject to regulatory approval, CLCT may redeem the CLICS — Series B, in
wholeorin part, atany time.

DECEMBER 31, 2013 DECEMBER 31, 2012 JANUARY 1, 2012

Bank overdraft 380 448 437
Accounts payable 1,935 1,556 1,651
Dividends and interest payable 362 358 362
Income taxes payable 1,014 684 541
Repurchase agreements = 225 250
Deferred income reserves 451 427 406
Deposits and certificates 187 163 151
Funds held under reinsurance contracts 270 335 169
Pension and other post-employment benefits [Note 26] 1,194 1,563 1,232
Other 1,105 905 889
6,898 6,664 6,088

Total other liabilities of $4,763 million as at December 31,2013 are expected to be settled within12 months.
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OTHER LIABILITIES continueD)
DEFERRED INCOME RESERVES

Changes in deferred income reserves of Lifeco are as follows:

DECEMBER 31

2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year 427 406
Additions 70 103
Amortization (39) (42)
Foreign exchange 38 8
Disposals (45) (48)
Balance, end of year 451 427
INCOME TAXES
EFFECTIVE INCOME TAX RATE
The Corporation’s effective income tax rate is derived as follows:
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
% %
Combined statutory Canadian federal and provincial tax rates 26.5 26.5
Increase (decrease) in the income tax rate resulting from:
Non-taxable investment income (4.4) (5.4)
Lower effective tax rates on income not subject to taxin Canada (2.0) (2.0)
Earnings of investment in associate, and in jointly controlled corporations (1.0) (1.0
Impact of rate changes on deferred income taxes (0.4) 0.1)
Tax loss consolidation transaction (0.2) -
Other 0.1) (2.0
Effectiveincome taxrate 18.4 16.0
INCOME TAXES
The components of income tax expense recognized in the statements of earnings are:
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Current taxes
Inrespect of the currentyear 775 623
Other (11) (20)
764 603
Deferred taxes
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (18) (32)
Effect of changein tax rates (13) (4)
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses and deductible temporary differences (6) (22)
Other (49) 14
(86) (44)
678 559
The following table shows aggregate current and deferred taxes relating to items not recognized in the statements of earnings:
2013 2012
OTHER OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE COMPREHENSIVE
DECEMBER 31 INCOME EQUITY INCOME EQUITY
Current taxes (14) - 3 -
Deferred taxes 106 2 (86) (20)
92 2 (83) (20)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAXES (conTiNnuED)

DEFERRED TAXES
Deferred taxes are attributable to the following items:

DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Loss carry forwards 1,360 1,184
Investments (541) (839)
Insurance and investment contract liabilities (518) (272)
Deferred selling commissions (184) (186)
Intangible assets (52) 77
Other 96 241
161 205

Presented on the balance sheets as follows:
Deferred tax assets 1,240 1,223
Deferred tax liabilities (1,079) (1,018)
161 205

Adeferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences and
unused taxattributes only to the extent that realization of therelated income
tax benefit through future taxable profitsis probable.

Recognition is based on the fact thatitis probable that the entity will have
taxable profits and/or tax planning opportunities available to allow the
deferred taxasset to be utilized. Changes in circumstancesin future periods
may adversely impact the assessment of the recoverability. The uncertainty
of the recoverability is taken into account in establishing the deferred tax
assets. The annual financial planning process provides a significant basis for
the measurement of deferred tax assets.

Management of the Corporation and of its subsidiaries assess the
recoverability of the deferred taxasset carrying values based on future years'
taxable income projections and believes the carrying values of the deferred
tax assetsas of December 31,2013 are recoverable.

At December 31,2013, Lifeco had tax loss carry forwards totalling $4,185 million
(53,600 million in 2012). Of this amount, $3,925 million expires between 2014
and 2033, while $260 million has no expiry date. Lifeco will realize this benefit
infuture years through a reduction in current income taxes payable.
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One of Lifeco’s subsidiaries has had a history of recent losses. The subsidiary
has a net deferred tax asset balance of $1,184 million (US$1,117 million) as at
December 31, 2013 composed principally of net operating losses and future
deductions related to goodwill which has been previously impaired for book
accounting purposes. Management of Lifeco has concluded thatitis probable
that the subsidiary and other historically profitable subsidiaries with which
it files orintends to file a consolidated United States income tax return will
generate sufficient taxable income against which the unused United States
losses and deductions will be utilized.

Asat December 31,2013, the Corporationandits subsidiaries have non-capital
losses of $213 million ($288 million in 2012) available to reduce future taxable
income forwhich the benefits have not been recognized. These losses expire
from 2026 to 2033. In addition, the Corporation and its subsidiaries have
capital loss carry forwards of $133 million ($94 million in 2012) that can be
used indefinitely to offset future capital gains for which the benefits have
not been recognized.

A deferred tax liability has not been recognized in respect of the temporary
differences associated with investmentsin subsidiaries, branches, associate,
and jointly controlled corporations as the Corporation and its subsidiaries
are able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences,
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.



STATED CAPITAL

AUTHORIZED
The authorized capital of Power Financial consists of an unlimited number of First Preferred Shares, issuable in series; an unlimited number of Second Preferred
Shares, issuablein series; and an unlimited number of common shares.

ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING

DECEMBER 31, 2013 DECEMBER 31,2012 JANUARY 1, 2012
NUMBER STATED NUMBER STATED NUMBER STATED
OF SHARES CAPITAL OF SHARES CAPITAL OF SHARES CAPITAL

FIRST PREFERRED SHARES (Perpetual)
Series All 4,000,000 100 4,000,000 100 4,000,000 100
Series DI 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series Elil 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200
Series Fivl 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series HY 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series |V 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200
Series KLil 10,000,000 250 10,000,000 250 10,000,000 250
Series LWil 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200
Series M 7,000,000 175 7,000,000 175 7,000,000 175
Series O™ 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series P 11,200,000 280 11,200,000 280 11,200,000 280
Series R 10,000,000 250 10,000,000 250 - -
Series Skl 12,000,000 300 - - - -
Series TV 8,000,000 200 - - - -
2,755 2,255 2,005
COMMON SHARESK 711,173,680 721 709,104,080 664 | 708,173,680 639

COMMON SHARES

Balance, beginning of year 709,104,080 664 708,173,680 639 708,173,680 639
Issued under Stock Option Plan 2,069,600 57 930,400 25 - -
Balance, end of year 711,173,680 721 709,104,080 664 | 708,173,680 639

U

(il

[iii]

[iv]

The Series A First Preferred Shares are entitled to an annual cumulative
dividend, payable quarterly at a floating rate equal to 70% of the prime
rate of two major Canadian chartered banks and are redeemable, at the
Corporation’soption, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared and
unpaid dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

The 5.50% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series D are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.375 per share per annum, payable quarterly. The Corporation may
redeem for cash the Series D First Preferred Shares, inwholeorin part, at
the Corporation’soption, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared
and unpaid dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

The 5.25% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series E are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
§1.3125 per share per annum, payable quarterly. The Corporation may
redeem for cashthe Series E First Preferred Shares, inwhole orin part, at
the Corporation’soption, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared
and unpaid dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

The 5.90% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series F are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.475 per share per annum, payable quarterly. The Corporation may
redeem for cash the Series F First Preferred Shares, inwhole orin part, at
the Corporation’soption, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared
and unpaid dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

[v]

[vi]

[vii]

The 5.75% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series H are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.4375 per share per annum, payable quarterly. The Corporation may
redeem for cash the Series H First Preferred Shares, in whole orin part, at
the Corporation’soption, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared
and unpaid dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

The 6.00% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series | are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.50 per share per annum, payable quarterly. The Corporation may
redeem for cash the Series | First Preferred Shares, in wholeorin part, at
the Corporation’soption, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared
and unpaid dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

The 4.95% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series K are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.2375 per share per annum, payable quarterly. The Corporation may
redeem for cash the Series K First Preferred Shares, in whole orin part,
at the Corporation’s option, at $25.25 per share if redeemed prior to
October 31, 2014, and $25.00 per share if redeemed thereafter, in each
case together with all declared and unpaid dividends to, but excluding,
the date of redemption.
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STATED CAPITAL (conTinueD)

[viii] The 5.10% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series L are entitled

[ix]

[x]

[xi
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to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.2750 per share per annum, payable quarterly. The Corporation may
redeem for cash the Series L First Preferred Shares, in whole orin part,
at the Corporation's option, at $25.50 per share if redeemed prior to
October 31, 2014, $25.25 per share if redeemed thereafter and prior to
October 31, 2015, and $25.00 per share if redeemed thereafter, in each
case together with all declared and unpaid dividends to, but excluding,
the date of redemption.

The 6.00% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series M were entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.50 per share perannum, payable quarterly. OnJanuary 31,2014 and on
January 31every five years thereafter, the Corporation was permitted to
redeemforcash the Series M First Preferred shares, inwholeorin part, at
the Corporation’s option, at $25.00 per share plus all declared and unpaid
dividends to the date fixed for redemption, or the Series M First Preferred
Shares were convertible to Non-Cumulative Floating Rate First Preferred
Shares, Series N, at the option of the holders on January 31, 2014 or on
January 31every five years thereafter. On January 31,2014, the Corporation
redeemed all of its 6.00% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series
M for cash consideration of $175 million.

The 5.80% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series O are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.45 per share per annum, payable quarterly. On and after October 31,
2014, the Corporation may redeem for cash the Series O First Preferred
Shares, in whole orin part, at the Corporation’s option, at $26.00 per
shareif redeemed prior to October 31,2015, $25.75 per share if redeemed
thereafter and prior to October 31, 2016, $25.50 per share if redeemed
thereafter and prior to October 31, 2017, $25.25 per share if redeemed
thereafterand prior to October 31,2018, and $25.00 per share if redeemed
thereafter, ineach case togetherwith all declared and unpaid dividends
to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

The 4.40% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series P are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$110 per share per annum, payable quarterly, during the period ending,
but excluding, January 31, 2016. Thereafter, during the "Subsequent
Fixed Rate Periods” (that s, for theinitial Subsequent Fixed Rate Period,
the period from and including January 31, 2016 up to but excluding
January 31, 2021 and for each succeeding Subsequent Fixed Rate Period,
the period commencing on the day immediately following the end of the
immediately preceding Subsequent Fixed Rate Period to, but excluding,
January 31in the fifth year thereafter), the Series P First Preferred Shares
have fixed non-cumulative preferential dividends equal to a product of
$25.00 and the rate of interest equal to the sum of the Government of
CanadaYield onthe applicable “Fixed Rate Calculation Date" (that is, for
any Subsequent Fixed Rate Period, the 30th day prior to the first day of
theapplicable Subsequent Fixed Rate Period) plus1.60 per cent, payable
quarterly. Onjanuary 31,2016 and on January 31every five years thereafter,
the Corporation may redeem for cash the Series P First Preferred Shares,
inwholeorin part, at the Corporation’s option, at $25.00 per share plus
all declared and unpaid dividends to the date fixed for redemption, or
the Series P First Preferred Shares are convertible to Non-Cumulative
Floating Rate First Preferred Shares, Series Q, at the option of the holders
onJanuary 31,2016 or on January 31every five years thereafter.
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[xii]

The 5.50% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series R are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.375 pershare perannum, payable quarterly. On and after April 30, 2017,
the Corporation may redeem for cash the Series R First Preferred Shares,
in whole or in part, at the Corporation’s option, at $26.00 per share if
redeemed prior to April 30, 2018, $25.75 per share if redeemed thereafter
and prior to April 30, 2019, $25.50 per share if redeemed thereafter and
priorto April 30, 2020, $25.25 per share if redeemed thereafter and prior
to April 30, 2021, and $25.00 per share if redeemed thereafter, in each
case together with all declared and unpaid dividends to, but excluding,
the date of redemption.

[xii] In the first quarter of 2013, the Corporation issued 12,000,000 4.80%

Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series Sfor gross cash proceeds
of $300 million. The Series S First Preferred Shares are entitled to fixed
non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to $1.20 per
share per annum, payable quarterly. On and after April 30, 2018, the
Corporation may redeem for cash the Series S First Preferred Shares,
in whole orin part, at the Corporation’s option, at $26.00 per share if
redeemed prior to April 30,2019, $25.75 per share if redeemed thereafter
and prior to April 30, 2020, $25.50 per share if redeemed thereafter and
priorto April 30,2021, $25.25 per share if redeemed thereafterand prior to
April 30,2022, and $25.00 per share if redeemed thereafter, in each case
together with all declared and unpaid dividends to, but excluding, the
date of redemption. Share issue costs of $9 million in connection with
the Series S First Preferred Shares were charged to retained earnings in
theyear ended December 31,2013.

[xiv] In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Corporation issued 8,000,000 4.20%

[xv]

Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series T for gross cash proceeds
of $200 million. The Series T First Preferred Shares are entitled to fixed
non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to $1.05 per
share per annum, payable quarterly during the period ending, but
excluding, January 31, 2019. Thereafter, during the "Subsequent Fixed
Rate Periods” (that is, for the initial Subsequent Fixed Rate Period,
the period from and including January 31, 2019 up to, but excluding
January 31, 2024 and for each succeeding Subsequent Fixed Rate Period,
the period commencing on the day immediately following the end of the
immediately preceding Subsequent Fixed Rate Period to, but excluding
January 3lin the fifth year thereafter), the Series T First Preferred Shares
have fixed non-cumulative preferential dividends equal to a product of
$25.00 and the rate of interest equal to the sum of the Government of
CanadaYield onthe applicable “Fixed Rate Calculation Date” (that is, for
any Subsequent Fixed Rate Period, the 30th day prior to the first day of
theapplicable Subsequent Fixed Rate Period) plus2.37 per cent, payable
quarterly. OnJanuary 31,2019 and on January 31every five years thereafter,
the Corporation may redeem for cash the Series T First Preferred Shares,
inwhole orin part, at the Corporation’s option, at $25.00 per share plus
all declared and unpaid dividends to the date fixed for redemption, or
the Series T First Preferred Shares are convertible to Non-Cumulative
Floating Rate First Preferred Shares, Series U, at the option of the holders
onjanuary 31,2019 oronJanuary 31every five years thereafter. Shareissue
costs of S5 millionin connection with the Series T Preferred Shares were
charged to retained earnings in the year ended December 31, 2013.

During the year 2013, 2,069,600 common shares (930,400 in 2012) were
issued under the Corporation’'s Employee Stock Option Plan for a
consideration of $45 million ($20 million in 2012).

Dividends declared on the Corporation’s common shares in 2013 amounted

to $1.40 per share (51.40 per share in 2012).



SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

STOCK OPTION PLAN date of the grant of the option. Generally, options granted vest on a delayed
Under Power Financial's Employee Stock Option Plan, 14,421,600 additional ~ basis over periods beginning no earlier than one year from the date of grant
common shares are reserved forissuance. The plan requires that theexercise ~ and nolater than five years from the date of grant. Options recently granted,
price under the option must not be less than the marketvalue ofashareonthe  whichare notfully vested, have the following vesting conditions:

YEAR OF GRANT OPTIONS VESTING CONDITIONS
2010 679,525 Vest equally over a period of five years

2010 38,293 Vest 50% after three years and 50% after four years
201 743,080 Vest equally over a period of five years

201 34,423 Vest 50% after three years and 50% after four years
2012 598,325 Vest equally over a period of five years

2012 70,254 Vest 50% after three years and 50% after four years
2013 702,713 Vest equally over a period of five years

2013 53,476 Vest 50% after three years and 50% after four years

A summary of the status of Power Financial's Employee Stock Option Plan as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and changes during the years ended on those

datesisasfollows:

2013 2012
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE WEIGHTED-AVERAGE
OPTIONS EXERCISE PRICE OPTIONS EXERCISE PRICE

$

S

Outstanding at beginning of year 8,835,797 28.32 9,097,618 27.85
Granted 756,189 32.44 668,579 25.31
Exercised (2,069,600) 21.65 (930,400) 21.65

Outstanding at end of year 7,522,386 30.56 8,835,797 28.32

Options exercisable at end of year 5,468,569 31.29 6,958,267 28.73

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2013:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING

OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE ~ WEIGHTED-AVERAGE

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES OPTIONS REMAINING LIFE EXERCISE PRICE OPTIONS EXERCISE PRICE
$ (YRS) $ $
25.07-26.97 1,575,467 7.6 25.87 603,079 26.13
28.13-29.95 1,532,879 5.5 28.96 1,238,695 29.12
30.18-31.59 602,383 5.2 31.42 527,370 31.55
32.24 2,015,000 14 32.24 2,015,000 32.24
32.46-32.58 741,006 9.4 32.57 28,774 32.46
34.45-3713 1,055,651 4.2 34.81 1,055,651 34.81

7,522,386 5.0 30.56 5,468,569 31.29
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continuep)

Compensation expense Lifecoand IGM havealso established stock option
plans pursuant to which options may be granted to certain officers and
employees. Compensation expense is recorded for options granted under
the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries’ stock option plans based on the fair

value of the options at the grant date, amortized over the vesting period.
Total compensation expense relating to the stock options granted by the
Corporation and its subsidiaries amounted to $15 million in 2013 (513 million
in 2012).

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Power Financial granted 756,189 options (668,579 options in 2012) under its Employee Stock Option Plan. The fair
value of these options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2013 2012
Dividendyield 5.0% 4.8%
Expected volatility 18.3% 18.7%
Risk-freeinterest rate 2.3% 1.7%
Expected life (years) 9 9
Fair value per stock option ($/option) $2.78 $2.08
Weighted-average exercise price (5/option) $32.44 §25.31

Expected volatility has been estimated based on the historical volatility of the Corporation’s share price over nine years, which is reflective of the expected

option life.

PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT PLAN

In 2013, Power Financial introduced a Performance Share Unit (PSU) plan
for selected employees and officers (participants) to assist in retaining and
furtheraligning the interests of participants with those of the shareholders.
Under the terms of the plan, PSUs may be awarded annually and are subject to
timeand performance vesting conditions. The value of each PSU is based on
the share price of the Corporation'scommon shares. The PSUs are cash settled
andvestovera three-year period. Participants canelectat the time of grant to
receive a portion of their PSUs in the form of performance deferred share units
(PDSU) which also vest over a three-year period. PDSUs are redeemable when
aparticipantisnolongeranemployee of the Corporation orany of its affiliates,
orintheeventof thedeath of the participant, by alump sum payment based
on thevalue of the PDSU at that time. Additional PSUs and PDSUs are issued
in respect of dividends payable on common shares based on the value of
the PSU or PDSU at the dividend payment date. The Corporation recorded
compensation expense, excluding the impact of hedging, of $1.3 million in 2013
and a liability of $1.3 million as at December 31, 2013.

DEFERRED SHARE UNIT PLAN

On October 1, 2000, Power Financial established a Deferred Share Unit
Plan for its Directors to promote a greater alignment of interests between
Directorsand shareholders of the Corporation. Under this plan, each Director
participating in the plan will receive half of his or her annual retainer in the
form of deferred share units and may elect to receive the remainder of his
or her annual retainer and attendance fees entirely in the form of deferred
share units, entirely in cash, orequally in cash and deferred share units. The
number of deferred share units granted is determined by dividing the amount
of remuneration payable by the five-day-average closing price on the Toronto

88 POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

Stock Exchange of the common shares of the Corporation on the last five
days of the fiscal quarter (the value of a deferred share unit). A Director will
receive additional deferred share unitsin respect of dividends payableon the
common shares, based on the value of a deferred share unit on the date on
which the dividends were paid on the common shares. A deferred share unit
ispayable, at the timea Director'smembership on the Board is terminated or
intheeventofthedeath ofa Director, by alump-sum cash payment, based on
thevalue of a deferred share unitat that time. At December 31,2013, the value
of the deferred share units outstanding was $18 million (513 million in 2012).
Alternatively, Directors may participatein the Directors Share Purchase Plan.

EMPLOYEE SHARE PURCHASE PROGRAM

Effective May1,2000, an Employee Share Purchase Program was implemented,
giving employees the opportunity to subscribe for up to 6% of their gross
salary to purchase Subordinate Voting Shares of Power Corporation of Canada
on the open market and to have Power Financial invest, on the employee’s
behalf, uptoanequalamount. Theamount paid on behalf of employees was
$0.1million in 2013 ($0.1 million in 2012).

OTHER SHARE-BASED AWARDS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The subsidiaries of the Corporation also establish other share-based awards
for their directors, management and employees. Some of these share-
base awards are cash settled and included within other liabilities on the
balance sheets. The compensation expense related to these subsidiary share-
based awards is recorded in operating and administrative expenses on the
statements of earnings.



NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The Corporation has controlling equity interestsin Lifeco and IGM as at Dece

mber 31,2013, December 31,2012 and January 1, 2012.

The non-controlling interests of Lifeco and IGM and their subsidiaries reflected in the balance sheets are as follows:

2013 2012
DECEMBER 31 LIFECO IGM TOTAL LIFECO IGM TOTAL
Non-controlling interests, beginning of year 8,327 1,775 10,102 7,300 1,831 9,131
Earnings allocated to non-controlling interests 683 301 984 892 301 1,193
Other comprehensive income (loss) allocated
to non-controlling interests 304 10 314 (90) (16) (106)
Dividends 472) (213) (685) (440) (219) (659)
Issuance of preferred shares = = = 650 - 650
Repurchase of preferred shares (230) - (230) - - -
Change in ownership interest 501 4 505 15 122) (107)
Non-controlling interests, end of year 9,113 1,877 10,990 8,327 1,775 10,102
The carrying value of non-controlling interests as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 consists of the following:
2013 2012
DECEMBER 31 LIFECO IGM TOTAL LIFECO IGM TOTAL
Common shareholders 4,445 1,727 6,172 3,332 1,625 4,957
Preferred shareholders 2,314 150 2,464 2,544 150 2,694
Participating shareholders 2,354 = 2,354 2,451 - 2,451
9113 1,877 10,990 8,327 1,775 10,102

Change in ownership in Lifeco in 2013 is mainly attributable to the issuance
of Lifeco’s common shares in regards to the acquisition of Irish Life (Note 4).
Other changes in ownership in 2013 and 2012 are due to the issuance of
common shares under stock option plans as well as the repurchase of
common shares by subsidiaries.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

As a holding company, Power Financial's objectives in managing its capital
areto:

> provide sufficient financial flexibility to pursue its growth strategy and

supportits group companies and other investments;

maintainan appropriate creditrating to ensure stable access to the capital
markets; and

> provide attractive long-term returns to shareholders of the Corporation.

The Corporation manages its capital taking into consideration the risk
characteristics and liquidity of its holdings. In order to maintain or adjust its
capital structure, the Corporation may adjust the amount of dividends paid
toshareholders, return capital to shareholders orissue new forms of capital.

The capital structure of the Corporation consists of preferred shares,
debentures and equity composed of stated capital, retained earnings and
non-controlling interests in the equity of subsidiaries of the Corporation.
The Corporation utilizes perpetual preferred sharesasa permanentand cost-
effective source of capital. The Corporation considersitself tobealong-term
investorand as such holds positionsinlong-term investments as well as cash
and short-terminvestments for liquidity purposes.

Whereas the Corporation itself is not subject to externally imposed
regulatory capital requirements, certain of the Corporation’s major operating
subsidiaries (Lifeco and IGM) are subject to regulatory capital requirements
and they manage their capital as described below.

As at December 31, 2013, Power Financial and IGM held 67.0% and 4.0%,
respectively, of Lifeco'scommon shares, representing approximately 65.0% of
thevotingrights attached to the outstanding Lifeco voting shares.

Lifeco and IGM's financial information as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2013 can be obtained in their publicly available financial
statements.

LIFECO

Lifeco manages its capital on both a consolidated basis as well as at the
individual operating subsidiary level. The primary objectives of Lifeco's capital
management strategy are:

> to maintain the capitalization of its regulated operating subsidiaries
at a level that will exceed the relevant minimum regulatory capital

requirements in thejurisdictions in which they operate;

to maintain strong creditand financial strength ratings of Lifeco ensuring
stable access to capital markets; and

to provide an efficient capital structure to maximize shareholder value in
the context of Lifeco’'s operational risks and strategic plans.

Lifeco has established policies and procedures designed to identify,
measure and report all material risks. Management of Lifeco is responsible
for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and
monitoring the capital plan.

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2013 ANNUAL REPORT 89



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (conTinueD)

Lifeco's subsidiaries Great-West Life, Great-West Life & Annuity and
Canada Life UK are subject to minimum regulatory capital requirements.
Lifeco's practice is to maintain the capitalization of its regulated operating
subsidiaries at a level that will exceed the relevant minimum regulatory
capital requirementsin thejurisdictions in which they operate:

> In Canada, the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions
has established a capital adequacy measurement for life insurance
companies incorporated under the Insurance Companies Act (Canada) and
their subsidiaries, knownas the Minimum Continuing Capitaland Surplus
Requirements (MCCSR). As at December 31, 2013, the MCCSR ratio for
Great-West Life was 223% (207% at December 31, 2012).

> At December 31, 2013, the Risk-Based Capital ratio (RBC) of Great-West
Life & Annuity, Lifeco's requlated U.S. operating company, was estimated
tobe480% of the Company Action Level set by the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners. Great-West Life & Annuity reportsits RBCratio
annually to U.S. insurance regulators.

> In the United Kingdom, Canada Life UK is required to satisfy the capital
resources requirements set out in the Integrated Prudential Sourcebook,
part of the Prudential Regulatory Authority Handbook. The capital
requirements are prescribed by a formulaic capital requirement (Pillar 1)
and an individual capital adequacy framework which requires an entity

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Corporation and its subsidiaries have established policies, guidelines or
procedures designed to identify, measure, monitorand mitigate all material
risks associated with financial instruments. The key risks related to financial
instruments are liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk.

> Liquidityriskis therisk that the Corporationandits subsidiaries will not be
able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they come due.

> Credit risk is the potential for financial loss to the Corporation and its
subsidiariesif a counterparty in atransaction fails to meetits obligations.

> Marketriskis therisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrumentwill fluctuate as a result of changesin market factors. Market
factors include three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and
equity price risk.
> Currency risk relates to the Corporation, its subsidiaries and its jointly
controlled corporations and associate operating in different currencies
and converting non-Canadian earnings at different points in time at
different foreign exchange levels when adverse changes in foreign
currency exchange rates occur.

> Interestrate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interestrates.

> Equity price risk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of
assetsarising from changes in equity markets.
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to self-assess an appropriate amount of capital it should hold, based
on the risks encountered from its business activities. At the end of 2013,
Canada Life UK complied with the capital resource requirements in the
United Kingdom.

> Other foreign operations and foreign subsidiaries of Lifeco are required
to comply with local capital or solvency requirements in their respective
jurisdictions. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, Lifeco maintained capital
levels above the minimum local regulatory requirements in each of its
other foreign operations.

IGM FINANCIAL

IGM's capital management objective is to maximize shareholder returns
while ensuring that IGM is capitalized in @ manner which appropriately
supportsregulatory capital requirements, working capital needs and business
expansion. IGM's capital management practices are focused on preserving
the quality of its financial position by maintaining a solid capital base and a
strong balance sheet.

IGM subsidiaries subject to regulatory capital requirements include
investment dealers, mutual fund dealers, exempt market dealers, portfolio
managers, investment fund managers anda trust company. IGM subsidiaries
arerequired to maintain minimum levels of capital based on either working
capital, liquidity or shareholders’equity. IGM subsidiaries have complied with
all regulatory capital requirements.

Management of the Corporation and its subsidiaries are responsible
for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and
monitoring their capital plans. The Board of Directors of the Corporation
and the boards of directors of its subsidiaries review and approve all capital
transactions undertaken by the respective managements.

This note includes estimates of sensitivities and risk exposure measures for
certain risks, such as the sensitivity due to specific changes in interest rate
levels projected and market pricesasat the valuation date. Actual results can
differ significantly from these estimates for a variety of reasons, including:

> assessment of the circumstances that led to the scenario may
lead to changes in (re)investment approaches and interest rate
scenarios considered;

> changes in actuarial, investment return and future investment
activity assumptions;

> actual experience differing from the assumptions;

> changesin business mix, effective tax rates and other market factors;

> interactionsamong thesefactorsand assumptions when more than one
changes; and

> thegeneral limitations of internal models.

For these reasons, the sensitivities should only be viewed as directional

estimates of the underlying sensitivities for the respective factors based on

theassumptions outlined above. Given the nature of these calculations, the

Corporation cannot provide assurance that the actualimpact on netearnings
attributed to shareholders will be as indicated.



RISK MANAGEMENT conTinueD)
POWER FINANCIAL

LIQUIDITY RISK

Power Financial is a holding company. As such, corporate cash flows from
operations, before payment of dividends to its common and preferred
shareholders, are principally made up of dividends received from its
subsidiaries andjointly controlled corporation, and income from investments,
less operating expenses, financing charges and income taxes. The ability of
Lifecoand IGM, which arealso holding companies, to meet their obligations
and pay dividends depends in particular upon receipt of sufficient funds from
theirown subsidiaries.

Power Financial seeks to maintain a sufficient level of liquidity to meet all its
cash flow requirements. In addition, Power Financial and its parent, Power
Corporation of Canada, jointly have a $100 million uncommitted line of credit
with a Canadian chartered bank. Power Corporation and Power Financial
never accessed the uncommitted line of credit in the past; however, any
advances made by the bank under the uncommitted line of credit would be
at the bank's sole discretion.

Principal payments on debentures (other than those of Lifeco and IGM
discussed below) of $250 million due after five years represent the only
significant contractual liquidity requirement of Power Financial.

Power Financial's liquidity position and its management of liquidity risk have
not changed materially since December 31, 2012.

CREDIT RISK

Cash and cash equivalents, fixed income securities, and derivatives are
subject to creditrisk. The Corporation mitigates credit risk on these financial
instruments by adhering to its Investment Policy, which outlines credit risk
parameters and concentration limits.

Cash and cash equivalents amounting to $470 million and fixed income
securities amounting to $455 million consist primarily of bonds, bankers’
acceptances and highly liquid temporary deposits with Canadian chartered
banks as well as bonds and short-term securities of, or guaranteed by, the
Canadian government. The Corporation regularly reviews the credit ratings
of its counterparties. The maximum exposure to credit risk on these financial
instruments is their carrying value.

Derivatives continue to be utilized on a basis consistent with the risk
management guidelines of the Corporation and are monitored by the
Corporation for effectiveness as economic hedges even if specific hedge
accounting requirementsare not met. The Corporation regularly reviews the

LIFECO

credit ratings of derivative financial instrument counterparties. Derivative
contracts are over-the-counter traded with counterparties that are highly
rated financial institutions.

In 2013, the Corporation entered into other derivative contracts which
consist primarily of an equity put option on the S&P 500 related to a macro
capitalhedgeas well as total return swaps to hedge-deferred compensation
arrangements. The fair value of the equity put option was $3 million on an
outstanding notional amount of $3.5 billion at December 31, 2013. The fair
value of the total return swaps was $1 million on an outstanding notional
amount of $5 million at December 31, 2013. The exposure to credit risk, net of
collateral received, was $1million at December 31, 2013.

MARKET RISK

Currency risk Power Financial's financial instruments are essentially
cash and cash equivalents, fixed income securities and long-term debt. In
managing its own cash and cash equivalents, Power Financial may hold
cash balances denominated in foreign currencies and thus be exposed to
fluctuationsin exchangerates. In order to protect against such fluctuations,
Power Financial may from time to time enter into currency-hedging
transactions with highly rated financial institutions. As at December 31,
2013, essentially all of Power Financial's cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in Canadian dollars or in foreign currencies with currency
hedgesin place.

Power Financial is exposed through Parjointco to foreign exchange
risk as a result of Parjointco’s investment in Pargesa, a company whose
functional currency is the Swiss franc. In accordance with IFRS, foreign
currency translation gains and losses from Pargesa are recorded in other
comprehensive income.

Interest rate risk Power Financial’s financial instruments are essentially
cash and cash equivalents, fixed income securities and long-term debt that
donot have significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Equity price risk Power Financial's financial instruments are essentially
cash and cash equivalents, fixed income securities and long-term debt that
do not have exposure to equity price risk.

Pargesa indirectly holds substantial investments classified as available
for sale, therefore unrealized gains and losses on these investments are
recorded in other comprehensive income until realized. These investments
are reviewed periodically to determine whether there is objective evidence
of animpairmentinvalue.

The risk committee of the board of directors of Lifeco is responsible for the oversight of Lifeco’s key risks.

LIQUIDITY RISK
The following policies and procedures are in place to manage liquidity risk:

> Lifeco closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow matching
of assets and liabilities and forecasting earned and required yields, to
ensure consistency between policyholder requirements and the yield
of assets. Approximately 69% (70% in 2012) of insurance and investment
contract liabilities are non-cashable prior to maturity or subject to market
value adjustments.

> Management of Lifeco monitors the use of lines of credit on a reqular basis,
and assesses the ongoing availability of these and alternative forms of
operating credit.

> Management of Lifeco closely monitors the solvency and capital positions
of its principal subsidiaries opposite liquidity requirements at the holding
company. Additionalliquidity is available through established lines of credit
orvia capital market transactions. Lifeco maintains $350 million of liquidity
at the Lifeco level through committed lines of credit with a Canadian
chartered bank. As well, Lifeco maintains a $150 million liquidity facility
at Great-West Life, a USS500 million revolving credit agreement with a
syndicate of banks for use by Putnam, a US$304 million non-revolving
term loan facility provided for Putnam by a syndicate of banks and a
USS$50 million line of credit at Great-West Financial.

In the normal course of business, Lifeco enters into contracts that give rise
to commitments of future minimum payments that impact short-term and
long-term liquidity. The following table summarizes the principal repayment
schedule of certain of Lifeco's financial liabilities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (conTinueD)

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

AFTER

DECEMBER 31, 2013 1YEAR 2 YEARS 3YEARS 4YEARS 5YEARS S5YEARS TOTAL
Debentures and other debt instruments 658 322 = 294 200 4,283 5757
Capital trust debentures!V = = = = = 150 150
Purchase obligations 61 33 28 25 17 33 197
Pension contributions 168 = = = = = 168

887 B55 28 319 217 4,466 6,272

[1] Paymentsdue have not been reduced to reflect that Lifeco held capital trust securities of $37 million principal amount ($47 million carrying value).

CREDIT RISK

The following policies and procedures are in place to manage credit risk:

> Investment guidelines are in place that require only the purchase of
investment-grade assets and minimize undue concentration of assetsin
any single geographicarea, industry and company.

Investment guidelines specify minimumand maximum limits foreach asset
class. Credit ratings are determined by recognized external credit rating
agencies and/orinternal credit review.

Investment guidelines also specify collateral requirements.

Portfolios are monitored continuously, and reviewed regularly with the
risk committee of Lifeco and the investment committee of the board of
directors of Lifeco.

> Creditrisk associated with derivative instruments is evaluated quarterly
based on conditions that existed at the balance sheet date, using practices
thatareatleastasconservative as those recommended by regulators.

Lifecois exposed to creditrisk relating to premiums due from policyholders
during the grace period specified by theinsurance policy or until the policy
is paid up or terminated. Commissions paid to agents and brokers are
netted againstamountsreceivable, if any.

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit
rating and concentration of credit risk is managed by following policy
guidelines set each year by the board of directors of Lifeco. Management
of Lifeco continuously monitors and performs an assessment of the
creditworthiness of reinsurers.

Maximum exposure to credit risk for Lifeco The following table summarizes Lifeco's maximum exposure to credit risk related to financial instruments.
The maximum credit exposure is the carrying value of the asset net of any allowances for losses.

DECEMBER 31,2013 DECEMBER 31,2012 JANUARY 1, 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 2,791 1,895 2,056
Bonds
Fairvalue through profitorloss 70,144 64,865 61,723
Available forsale 7,915 6,782 6,888
Loans and receivables 11,855 10,934 9,744
Mortgage loans 19,063 17,875 17,432
Loans to policyholders 7,332 7,082 7,162
Funds held by ceding insurers!! 10,832 10,599 9,978
Reinsurance assets 5,070 2,064 2,061
Interest due and accrued 1,242 1,098 1,108
Accounts receivable 1,248 1,065 849
Premiums in course of collection 578 484 422
Trading account assets 376 144 141
Otherfinancial assets? 831 754 607
Derivative assets 593 997 968
Total balance sheet maximum credit exposure 139,870 126,638 121,139

[1] Includes $9,848 million as at December 31, 2013 (59,951 million at December 31, 2012 and $9,411 million at January 1, 2012) of funds held by ceding insurers
where Lifeco retains the credit risk of the assets supporting the liabilities ceded (see Note 7).

[2] Includesitems such as currentincome taxes receivable and miscellaneous other assets of Lifeco.

Credit risk is also mitigated by entering into collateral agreements. The
amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit
risk of the counterparty. Guidelines have beenimplemented by regarding the
acceptability of types of collateraland the valuation parameters. Management
of Lifeco monitors the value of the collateral, requests additional collateral
when needed and performs animpairmentvaluation when applicable. Lifeco
has $19 million of collateral received as at December 31,2013 ($25 million as at
December 31,2012) relating to derivative assets.
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Concentration of credit risk for Lifeco Concentrations of credit risk arise
from exposures to a single debtor, a group of related debtors or groups of
debtors that have similar credit risk characteristicsin that they operatein the
same geographic region or in similarindustries. The characteristics of such
debtorsare similarin that changesineconomicor political environments may
impact their ability to meet obligations as they come due.



RISK MANAGEMENT conTinueD)

The following table provides details of the carrying value of bonds of Lifeco by issuer, by industry sector and geographic distribution:

DECEMBER 31, 2013 CANADA UNITED STATES EUROPE TOTAL

Bondsissued or guaranteed by:

Canadian federal government 4,276 3 51 4,330
Provincial, state and municipal governments 5,739 2,028 52 7,819
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. agencies 297 3,827 902 5,026
Other foreign governments 130 22 11,216 11,368
Government-related 2,641 = 1,553 4,194
Supranationals 399 7 704 1,110
Asset-backed securities 2,677 3,115 860 6,652
Residential mortgage-backed securities 26 307 189 522
Banks 2,012 331 2,846 5,189
Other financial institutions 791 1,620 2,154 4,565
Basic materials 278 978 272 1,528
Communications 490 222 603 1,315
Consumer products 1,807 2,198 1,882 5,887
Industrial products/services 919 1,052 538 2,509
Natural resources 1,056 665 509 2,230
Real estate 1,021 140 2,249 3,410
Transportation 1,726 827 703 3,256
Utilities 4,715 3,703 3,433 11,851
Miscellaneous 1,314 970 389 2,673
Total long-term bonds 32,314 22,015 31,105 85,434
Short-term bonds 3,321 76 1,083 4,480
35,635 22,091 32,188 89,914

DECEMBER 31, 2012 CANADA UNITED STATES EUROPE TOTAL

Bondsissued or guaranteed by:

Canadian federal government 4,873 3 43 4,919
Provincial, state and municipal governments 6,454 1,881 61 8,396
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. agencies 305 3,421 976 4,702
Other foreign governments 151 29 8,044 8,224
Government-related 2,585 - 1,205 3,790
Supranationals 453 11 289 753
Asset-backed securities 2,587 3,117 830 6,534
Residential mortgage-backed securities 16 452 165 633
Banks 2,140 359 2,317 4,816
Other financial institutions 846 1,578 1,964 4,388
Basic materials 252 724 231 1,207
Communications 499 181 553 1,233
Consumer products 1,903 1,975 1,867 5,745
Industrial products/services 873 984 323 2,180
Natural resources 1,100 665 565 2,330
Real estate 850 - 1,739 2,589
Transportation 1,747 696 598 3,041
Utilities 4,257 3,317 3,342 10,916
Miscellaneous 1,316 856 312 2,484
Total long-term bonds 33,207 20,249 25,424 78,880
Short-term bonds 2,388 358 955 3,701
35,595 20,607 26,379 82,581
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JANUARY 1, 2012 CANADA  UNITED STATES EUROPE TOTAL

Bondsissued or guaranteed by:

Canadian federal government 4,328 2 42 4,372
Provincial, state and municipal governments 6,430 1,980 53 8,463
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. agencies 271 2,857 1,006 4134
Otherforeign governments 185 25 8,216 8,426
Government-related 2,110 - 955 3,065
Supranationals 443 12 211 666
Asset-backed securities 2,696 3,401 803 6,900
Residential mortgage-backed securities 26 638 146 810
Banks 2,168 416 1,858 4,442
Other financial institutions 1,137 1,449 1,615 4201
Basic materials 233 748 214 1,195
Communications 508 221 501 1,230
Consumer products 1,848 1,813 1,771 5432
Industrial products/services 695 825 212 1,732
Natural resources 1,127 560 554 2,241
Real estate 608 - 1,610 2,218
Transportation 1,721 672 624 3,017
Utilities 3,792 2,689 3,158 9,639
Miscellaneous 1,207 814 277 2,298
Total long-term bonds 31,533 19,122 23,826 74,481
Short-term bonds 2,980 323 571 3,874
34,513 19,445 24,397 78,355

The following table provides details of the carrying value of mortgage loans of Lifeco by geographic location:

SINGLE-FAMILY MULTI-FAMILY
DECEMBER 31,2013 RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL TOTAL
Canada 1,758 3,435 6,942 12,135
United States = 1,052 2,504 3,556
Europe = 325 3,047 3,372
1,758 4,812 12,493 19,063

SINGLE-FAMILY MULTI-FAMILY
DECEMBER 31, 2012 RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL TOTAL
Canada 1,676 3,250 6,982 11,908
United States - 921 2,139 3,060
Europe - 187 2,720 2,907
1,676 4,358 11,841 17,875

SINGLE-FAMILY MULTI-FAMILY
JANUARY 1, 2012 RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL TOTAL
Canada 1,591 3,407 7,022 12,020
United States - 811 1,999 2,810
Europe 79 108 2,415 2,602
1,670 4,326 11,436 17,432
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Asset quality

BOND PORTFOLIO QUALITY

DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER 31,2012

JANUARY1, 2012

AAA 30,626 29,302 29,612
AA 15,913 13,463 12,525
A 25,348 23,812 22,717
BBB 16,809 14,662 12,399
BB and lower 1,218 1,342 1,102
Total bonds 89,914 82,581 78,355

DERIVATIVE PORTFOLIO QUALITY

DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER 31,2012

JANUARY 1, 2012

Over-the-counter contracts (counterparty credit ratings):

AAA 8 9 12
AA 86 106 361
A 499 882 595
Total 593 997 968

Loans of Lifeco past due, but not impaired Loansthatare pastdue but not considered impaired are loans for which scheduled payments have not been
received, but management of Lifeco has reasonable assurance of collection of the full amount of principal and interest due. The following table provides

carrying values of the loans past due, but notimpaired:

DECEMBER 31, 2013 DECEMBER 31, 2012 JANUARY 1, 2012
Less than 30 days 6 12 3
30-90 days = _ 1
Greater than 90 days 4 1
Total 8 16 5

The following outlines the future asset credit losses provided for in insurance and investment contract liabilities. These amounts are in addition to the

allowance forasset losses included with assets:

DECEMBER 31, 2013 DECEMBER 31,2012 JANUARY 1, 2012

Participating 999 892 852
Non-participating 1,796 1,667 1,648
2,795 2,559 2,500

MARKET RISK

Currency risk For Lifeco, if the assets backing insurance and investment
contractliabilities are not matched by currency, changes in foreign exchange
rates can expose Lifeco to the risk of foreign exchange losses not offset by
liability decreases. Lifeco has net investments in foreign operations. In
addition, Lifeco’s debt obligations are mainly denominated in Canadian
dollars. Inaccordance with IFRS, foreign currency translation gainsand losses
fromnetinvestmentsinforeign operations, net of related hedging activities
and taxeffects, arerecorded in other comprehensiveincome. Strengthening

or weakening of the Canadian dollar spot rate compared to the U.S. dollar,

British pound and euro spot rates impacts Lifeco's total share capital and
surplus. Correspondingly, Lifeco’s book value per share and capital ratios
monitored by rating agencies are also impacted. The following policies and
procedures arein place to mitigate Lifeco’'s exposure to currency risk:

> Lifeco uses financial measures such as constant currency calculations to
monitor the effect of currency translation fluctuations.

> Investments are normally made in the same currency as the liabilities
supported by those investments. Segmented investment guidelines
include maximum tolerances for unhedged currency mismatch exposures.

> Foreigncurrencyassetsacquired to back liabilities are normally converted
back to the currency of the liability using foreign exchange contracts.

> A10% weakening of the Canadian dollaragainst foreign currencies would be
expectedtoincrease non-participatinginsurance and investment contract
liabilities and their supporting assets by approximately the sameamount,
resulting in an immaterial change to net earnings. A10% strengthening
of the Canadian dollar against foreign currencies would be expected to
decrease non-participating insurance and investment contract liabilities
and their supporting assets by approximately the sameamount, resulting
inanimmaterial change in net earnings.
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Interest rate risk The following policies and procedures are in place to
mitigate exposure tointerest rate risk:

> Lifeco utilizes a formal process for managing the matching of assets and
liabilities. This involves grouping general fund assets and liabilities into
segments. Assetsineach segmentare managedinrelation to theliabilities
inthe segment.

> Interest rate risk is managed by investing in assets that are suitable for
the products sold.

> Where these products have benefit or expense payments that are
dependent oninflation (inflation-indexed annuities, pensions and disability
claims), Lifeco generally investsin real returninstruments to hedgeits real
dollarliability cash flows. Some protection against changesin theinflation
indexisachieved asany related change in thefairvalue of the assets will be
largely offset by a similar change in the fair value of the liabilities.

> For products with fixed and highly predictable benefit payments,
investments are made in fixed income assets or real estate whose cash
flows closely match the liability product cash flows. Where assets are
not available to match certain cash flows, such as long-tail cash flows, a
portion of theseareinvested in equities and therest are duration matched.
Hedginginstruments are employed where necessary when thereis a lack
of suitable permanent investments to minimize loss exposure to interest
rate changes. To the extent these cash flows are matched, protection
againstinterestrate changeisachieved and any changein the fairvalue of
theassetswill be offset by a similar change in the fairvalue of the liabilities.

> Forproductswithless predictable timing of benefit payments, investments
aremadeinfixedincome assets with cash flows of a shorter duration than
theanticipated timing of benefit payments or equities, as described below.

> Therisksassociated with the mismatch in portfolio durationand cash flow,
asset prepayment exposure and the pace of assetacquisition are quantified
and reviewed regularly.

Projected cash flows from the current assets and liabilities are used in
the Canadian Asset Liability Method to determine insurance contract
liabilities. Valuation assumptions have been made regarding rates of returns
on supporting assets, fixed income, equity and inflation. The valuation
assumptions use best estimates of future reinvestment rates and inflation
assumptions with anassumed correlation together with margins foradverse
deviation set in accordance with professional standards. These margins
are necessary to provide for possibilities of misestimation and/or future
deterioration in the best estimate assumptions and provide reasonable
assurance that insurance contract liabilities cover a range of possible
outcomes. Margins are reviewed periodically for continued appropriateness.

Projected cash flows from fixed income assets used in actuarial calculations
arereducedto provide for potential asset defaultlosses. The net effective yield
rate reduction averaged 0.19% (0.18% in 2012). The calculation for future credit
lossesonassetsis based on the credit quality of the underlying asset portfolio.

Testing under several interest rate scenarios (including increasing and
decreasing rates) is done to assess reinvestment risk. The total provision
for interest rates is sufficient to cover a broader or more severe set of
risks than the minimum arising from the current Canadian Institute of
Actuaries-prescribed scenarios.

EffectiveJanuary1,2013, Lifeco refined its methodology for estimating interest
rate provisions. The total provision was realigned into provisions designed
to cover shorter-term modelling risks and those to cover inherent long-
term modelling and cash flow mismatch risks, with no net impact on total
provisions upon realignment. Therealignment, however, did have animpact
on the pattern of expected emergence of these provisions into net earnings.
This realignment increased 2013 annual net earnings by approximately
$74 million after tax compared to 2012 on the prior methodology.
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Therange of interest rates covered by these provisionsis setin consideration
of long-term historical results and is monitored quarterly with a full review
annually. An immediate 1% parallel shift in the yield curve would not have a
material impact on Lifeco’s view of the range of interest rates to be covered
by the provisions. If sustained however, the parallel shift could impact Lifeco’s
range of scenarios covered.

Thetotal provision forinterest rates also considers theimpact of the Canadian
Institute of Actuaries-prescribed scenarios.

> The effect of an immediate 1% parallel increase in the yield curve on the
prescribed scenarios would not change the total provision forinterest rates.

> The effect of an immediate 1% parallel decrease in the yield curve on the
prescribed scenarios would not change the total provision forinterest rates.

Another way of measuring the interest rate risk associated with this
assumption is to determine the effect on the insurance and investment
contract liabilities impacting the shareholders earnings of Lifeco of a
1% change in Lifeco’s view of the range of interest rates to be covered by
these provisions.

> Theeffectofanimmediate1%increasein thelowand high end of therange
of interest rates recognized in the provisions would be to decrease these
insurance and investment contract liabilities by approximately $33 million,
causing an increase in net earnings of Lifeco of approximately $12 million
(Power Financial's share —$8 million).

> Theeffectofanimmediate1% decreasein the low and high end of therange
of interest rates recognized in the provisions would be to increase these
insuranceand investment contract liabilities by approximately $481million,
causing a decrease in net earnings of Lifeco of approximately $322 million
(Power Financial's share — $217 million).

Equity price risk For Lifeco, the risks associated with segregated fund
guarantees have been mitigated through a hedging program for lifetime
Guaranteed Minimum Withdrawal Benefit guarantees using equity futures,
currency forwards, and interest rate derivatives. For policies with segregated
fund guarantees, Lifeco generally determinesinsurance contract liabilities at
a conditional tail expectation of 75 (CTE75) level.

Some insurance and investment contract liabilities are supported by
investment properties, common stocks and private equities, for example,
segregated fund products and products with longtail cash flows. Generally
these liabilities will fluctuate in line with equity market values. A10%
increase in equity markets would be expected to additionally decrease
non-participating insurance and investment contract liabilities by
approximately $43 million, causing an increase in net earnings of Lifeco
of approximately $34 million (Power Financial's share — $23 million). A10%
decrease in equity markets would be expected to additionally increase
non-participating insurance and investment contract liabilities by
approximately $192 million, causing a decrease in net earnings of Lifeco of
approximately $150 million (Power Financial’s share — $101 million).

The best estimate return assumptions for equities are primarily based on
long-term historical averages. Changes in the current market could resultin
changes to these assumptions and will impact both asset and liability cash
flows. A1% increase in the best estimate assumption would be expected to
decrease non-participating insurance contract liabilities by approximately
$458 million, causing an increase in net earnings of Lifeco of approximately
$353 million (Power Financial's share — $237 million). A1% decrease in the
bestestimate assumption would be expected toincrease non-participating
insurance contract liabilities by approximately $514 million, causing a decrease
in net earnings of Lifeco of approximately $392 million (Power Financial's
share —$264 million).
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LIQUIDITY RISK

IGM’s liquidity management practices include: controls over liquidity
management processes; stress testing of various operating scenarios; and
oversight over liquidity management by committees of the board of directors
of IGM.

Akey liquidity requirement for IGM is the funding of commissions paid on the
sale of mutual funds. Commissions on the sale of mutual funds continue to
be paid from operating cash flows.

IGM also maintains sufficient liquidity to fund and temporarily hold
mortgages. Throughits mortgage banking operations, residential mortgages
are sold or securitized to:

> Investors Mortgage and Short Term Income Fund and Investors Canadian
Corporate Bond Fund;

IGM's contractual obligations were as follows:

> third parties, including Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation
(CMHQ) or Canadian bank-sponsored securitization trusts; or

> institutional investors through private placements.

Certain subsidiaries of IGM are approved issuers of National Housing Act
Mortgage-Backed Securities (NHA MBS) and approved sellers into the
Canada Mortgage Bond Program (CMB Program). Thisissuerand seller status
provides IGM with additional funding sources for residential mortgages. IGM'’s
continued ability to fund residential mortgages through Canadian bank-
sponsored securitization trustsand NHA MBS is dependent on securitization
market conditions that are subject to change. A condition of the NHA MBS
and CMB Programs is that securitized loans be insured by an insurer that is
approved by CMHC. The availability of mortgage insurance is dependent upon
market conditions that are subject to change.

LESS THAN AFTER

DECEMBER 31, 2013 DEMAND 1YEAR 1-5YEARS 5YEARS TOTAL
Derivative financial instruments - 11 25 - 36
Deposits and certificates 161 10 11 5 187
Obligations to securitization entities - 890 4,649 33 5,572
Long-term debt = = 150 1,175 1,325
Operation leases - 54 147 65 266
Pension funding = 20 = = 20
Total contractual obligations 161 985 4982 1,278 7,406

In addition to IGM's current balance of cash and cash equivalents, liquidity
is available through IGM's operating lines of credit. IGM's operating lines of
credit withvarious Schedule | Canadian chartered banks totalled $525 million
as at December 31, 2013, unchanged from December 31, 2012. The lines of
credit as at December 31, 2013 consisted of committed lines of $350 million
($350 million in 2012) and uncommitted lines of $175 million ($175 million in
2012). IGM has accessed its uncommitted lines of credit in the past; however,
any advances made by the banks under the uncommitted lines are at the
banks'solediscretion. Asat December 31,2013 and 2012, IGM was not utilizing
its committed lines of credit orits uncommitted lines of credit.

IGM’s liquidity position and its management of liquidity and funding risk have
not changed materially since December 31, 2012.

CREDIT RISK

IGM’s cash and cash equivalents, securities holdings, mortgage and
investment loan portfolios, and derivatives are subject to credit risk. IGM
monitors its credit risk management practices continuously to evaluate
their effectiveness.

At December 31,2013, cash and cash equivalents of $1,082 million (51,059 million
in 2012) consisted of cash balances of $89 million ($101 million in 2012) on
deposit with Canadian chartered banks and cash equivalents of $994 million
(8958 million in 2012). Cash equivalents are composed of Government of
Canada treasury bills totalling $42 million (5233 million in 2012), provincial
government and government-guaranteed commercial paper of $564 million
(5473 million in 2012) and bankers'acceptancesissued by Canadian chartered
banks of $388 million ($253 million in 2012). IGM regularly reviews the credit
ratings of its counterparties. The maximum exposure to credit risk on these
financialinstrumentsis their carrying value. IGM manages credit risk related
to cashand cash equivalents by adhering toits Investment Policy that outlines
credit risk parameters and concentration limits.

At December 31, 2012, fair value through profit or loss securities included
Canada Mortgage Bonds with a fair value of $226 million. The investmentin
these bonds was disposed during the third quarter of 2013.

IGM regularly reviews the credit quality of the mortgage portfolios related
to IGM's mortgage banking operations and its intermediary operations,
as well as the adequacy of the collective allowance. As at December 31,
2013, mortgages totalled $5.9 billion ($4.9 billion in 2012) and consisted of
residential mortgages:

> Sold to securitization programs which are classified as loans and
receivables and totalled $5.5 billion compared to $4.6 billion at December 31,
2012. An offsetting liability, obligations to securitization entities, has
been recorded and totalled $5.6 billion at December 31, 2013, compared to
$4.7 billion at December 31, 2012.

> Related to IGM's mortgage banking operations which are classified
as held for trading and totalled $324 million, compared to $249 million
at December 31, 2012. These loans are held by IGM pending sale
or securitization.

> Related to IGM's intermediary operations which are classified as loans
and receivables and totalled $36 million at December 31, 2013, compared
to $35 million at December 31, 2012.

Asat December 31,2013, the mortgage portfolios related to IGM's intermediary
operations were geographically diverse, 100% residential 100% in 2012) and
88.6% insured (86.2% in 2012). As at December 31, 2013, impaired mortgages
were nil, unchanged from December 31, 2012. Uninsured non-performing
mortgages over 90 days were nil, unchanged from December 31, 2012. The
characteristics of the mortgage portfolios have not changed significantly
during 2013.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (conTinueD)

The NHA MBS and CMB Program require that all securitized mortgages be
insured against default by an approved insurer. The ABCP programs do not
require mortgages to be insured; however, at December 31, 2013, 58.9% of
these mortgages were insured compared to 66.6% at December 31, 2012.
At December 31, 2013, 86.1% of the securitized portfolio and the residential
mortgages classified as held for trading were insured, compared to 88.3%
at December 31, 2012. As at December 31,2013, impaired mortgages on these
portfolios were $2 million, compared to $1 million at December 31, 2012.
Uninsured non-performing mortgages over 90 days on these portfolios were
S1million at December 31,2013, unchanged from December 31, 2012.

IGM retains certain elements of credit risk on securitized loans. At
December 31,2013, 87.4% of securitized loans were insured against credit losses
compared to 90.2% at December 31,2012. IGM's credit risk onits securitization
activities is limited to its retained interests. The fair value of IGM's retained
interests in securitized mortgages was $113 million at December 31, 2013,
compared to $69 million at December 31,2012. Retained interests include:

> Cash reserve accounts and rights to future net interest income, which
were $29 million ($24 million in 2012) and $100 million ($102 million in 2012),
respectively, at December 31, 2013. Cash reserve accounts are reflected
on the balance sheet, whereas rights to future net interest income are
not reflected on the balance sheet and will be recorded over the life of
the mortgages.

The portion of this amount pertaining to Canadian bank-sponsored
securitization trusts of $59 million ($55 million in 2012) is subordinated to
theinterests of the trustand represents the maximum exposure to credit
risk forany failure of the borrowers to pay when due. Credit risk on these
mortgages is mitigated by any insurance on these mortgages, as previously
discussed, and IGM's credit risk on insured loans is to the insurer.

Rights to future net interest income under the NHA MBS and CMB
Programs totalled $70 million ($70 million in 2012). Under the NHA MBS
and CMB Programs, IGM has an obligation to make timely payments
to security holders regardless of whether amounts are received from
mortgagors. All mortgages securitized under the NHA MBS and CMB
Programs are insured by CMHC or another approved insurer under the
programs. Outstanding mortgages securitized under these programs are
$3.8 billion ($3.3 billion in 2012).

> Fairvalueof principal reinvestmentaccount swaps had a negative fairvalue
of $16 million at December 31,2013 ($56 millionin2012) and is reflected on the
balance sheet. These swaps represent the component of a swap entered
into under the CMB Program whereby IGM pays coupons on Canada
Mortgage Bonds and receives investment returns on the reinvestment
of repaid mortgage principal. The notional amount of these swaps was
$1,023 million at December 31, 2013 ($932 million in 2012).

IGM's exposure to and management of credit risk related to cash and cash
equivalents, fixed income securities and mortgage portfolios have not
changed materially since December 31, 2012.

IGM utilizes over-the-counter derivatives to hedge interest rate risk and
reinvestment risk associated with its mortgage banking and securitization
activities, aswell as marketrisk related to certain stock-based compensation
arrangements. To the extent that the fairvalue of the derivativesisinagain
position, IGM is exposed to the credit risk thatits counterparties fail to fulfill
their obligations under these arrangements.

IGM participates in the CMB Program by entering into back-to-back swaps
whereby Canadian Schedule | chartered banks designated by IGM are
between IGM and the Canadian Housing Trust. IGM receives coupons on
NHA MBS and eligible principal reinvestments and pays coupons on the
Canada Mortgage Bonds. IGM also entersinto offsetting interest rate swaps
with the same bank counterparties to hedge interest rate and reinvestment
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risk associated with the CMB Program. The negative fair value of these
swaps totalled $17 million at December 31, 2013 ($27 million in 2012) and the
outstanding notional amount was $6.8 billion (55.7 billion in 2012). Certain
of these swaps relate to securitized mortgages that have been recorded on
the balance sheet with an associated obligation. Accordingly, these swaps,
with an outstanding notional amount of $3.6 billion ($3.3 billion in 2012) and
having a negative fairvalue of $28 million ($29 million in2012), are not reflected
on the balance sheet. Principal reinvestment account swaps and hedges of
reinvestmentand interest raterisk, with an outstanding notional amount of
$3.2 billion ($2.4 billion in 2012) and having a fair value of $11 million (53 million
in2012), are reflected on the balance sheet. The exposure to credit risk, which
is limited to the fair value of swaps in a gain position, totalled $47 million at
December 31,2013, compared to $63 million at December 31, 2012.

IGM utilizes interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk associated with
mortgages securitized through Canadian bank-sponsored ABCP programs.
The negative fair value of these interest rate swaps totalled $1 million
(55 million in 2012) on an outstanding notional amount of $66 million at
December 31,2013 (5435 million in 2012). The exposure to credit risk, which is
limited to the fair value of swaps in a gain position, was nil at December 31,
2013, unchanged from December 31, 2012.

Interestrate swaps utilized to hedge IGM's interest raterisk associated with
its investments in Canada Mortgage Bonds were settled during the third
quarter of 2013.

IGM entersinto other derivative contracts which consist primarily of interest
rate swaps utilized to hedge interest rate risk related to mortgages held
pending sale, or committed to, by IGM as well as total return swaps and
forward agreements on IGM’s common shares utilized to hedge deferred
compensation arrangements. The fair value of interest rate swaps, total
return swaps and forward agreements was $12 million on an outstanding
notional amount of $154 million at December 31, 2013, compared to a fair
value of $0.1 million on an outstanding notional amount of $125 million at
December 31, 2012. The exposure to credit risk, which is limited to the fair
value of those instruments which are in a gain position, was $12 million at
December 31,2013, compared to $2 million as at December 31, 2012.

The aggregate credit risk exposure related to derivatives that are in a
gain position of $58 million ($65 million in 2012) does not give effect to any
netting agreements or collateral arrangements. The exposure to credit risk,
considering nettingagreementsand collateralarrangements, was $4 million
at December 31, 2013 (nil in 2012). Counterparties are all Canadian Schedule
| chartered banks and, as a result, management of IGM has determined
that IGM's overall credit risk related to derivatives was not significant at
December 31, 2013. Management of credit risk has not changed materially
since December 31, 2012.

MARKET RISK

Currency risk IGM's financial instruments are generally denominated in
Canadian dollars, and do not have significant exposure to changesin foreign
exchange rates.

Interest raterisk IGM is exposed to interest rate risk onits loan portfolio,
fixed income securities, Canada Mortgage Bonds and on certain of the
derivative financial instruments used in IGM's mortgage banking and
intermediary operations.

The objective of IGM's asset and liability management is to control interest
rate risk related to its intermediary operations by actively managing its
interestrate exposure. Asat December 31,2013, the total gap between deposit
assetsand liabilities was within IGM's trust subsidiaries’ stated guidelines.



RISK MANAGEMENT conTinueD)

IGM utilizes interest rate swaps with Canadian Schedule | chartered bank
counterpartiesin order to reduce theimpact of fluctuating interest rates on
its mortgage banking operations, as follows:

> IGM has funded fixed rate mortgages with ABCP as part of the
securitization transactions with bank-sponsored securitization trusts.
IGM enters into interest rate swaps with Canadian Schedule | chartered
banks to hedge the risk that ABCP rates rise. However, IGM remains
exposed to the basis risk that ABCP rates are greater than the bankers’
acceptancerates thatitreceivesonits hedges.

> |IGM hasincertaininstances funded floating rate mortgages with fixed rate
Canada Mortgage Bonds as part of the securitization transactions under
the CMB Program. IGM enters into interest rate swaps with Canadian
Schedule I chartered banks to hedge therisk that theinterest rates earned
onfloating rate mortgagesdecline. As previously discussed, as part of the
CMB Program, IGM alsois entitled to investment returns on reinvestment
of principal repayments of securitized mortgages and is obligated to pay
Canada Mortgage Bond coupons that are generally fixed rate. IGM hedges
the risk that reinvestment returns decline by entering into interest rate
swaps with Canadian Schedule | chartered bank counterparties.

> IGMisalsoexposedtotheimpactthatchangesininterestrates may have
on thevalue of mortgages held, or committed to, by IGM. IGM may enter
intointerest rate swaps to hedge this risk.

As at December 31, 2013, the impact to annual net earnings of IGM of a
100-basis-point change in interest rates would have been a decrease of
approximately $2 million (Power Financial's share — $1million). IGM's exposure
to and management of interest rate risk has not changed materially since
December 31, 2012.

Equity price risk IGM is exposed to equity price risk on its proprietary
investment funds which are classified as available-for-sale securities and
its equity securities which are classified as fair value through profit or loss.
Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recorded in
other comprehensive income until they are realized or until management of
IGM determines thereis objective evidence of impairmentin value, at which
time they are recorded in the statements of earnings.

IGM sponsors a number of deferred compensation arrangements where
payments to participants are linked to the performance of the common
shares of IGM Financial Inc. IGM hedges this risk through the use of forward
agreements and total return swaps.

RISKS RELATED TO ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

- MARKET RISK

Risks related to the performance of the equity markets, changes in interest
rates and changes in foreign currencies relative to the Canadian dollar can
have a significant impact on the level and mix of assets under management.
These changesinassetsunder managementdirectly impact earnings of IGM.

OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Salaries and other employee benefits 2,511 2,190
Amortization, depreciation and impairment 199 178
Premium taxes 313 293
Restructuring and acquisition expenses 107 -
Sub-advisor fees!t 110 98
Other 1,234 1,047

4,474 3,806

[1] Lifecoreclassified sub-advisor fees which were previously set offagainst fee income to operating and administrative expenses.

RESTRUCTURING AND ACQUISITION EXPENSES

With the acquisition of Irish Life on July 18, 2013, Lifeco has developed a restructuring plan to combine the life and pension operations of Canada Life (Ireland)
and Irish Life. In addition, other restructuring expenses have been incurred by Lifeco and IGM.

Restructuring and acquisition expenses by major categories were as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013
Acquisition expenses 29
Restructuring —Irish Life
Staff costs 17
Information systems 3
Other 11
31
Impairment of Canada Life Ireland brand value [Note 11] 34
Otherrestructuring expenses 13
Total 107

Included in the above restructuring expenses are provisions of $34 million which are included within other liabilities. These provisions are expected to be

realized within12 months from the reporting date.
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FINANCING CHARGES
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Interest on debentures and debt instruments 364 341
Netinterest on capital trust debentures 11 41
Other 25 27
400 409

PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

CHARACTERISTICS, FUNDING AND RISK

The Corporation and its subsidiaries maintain funded defined benefit pension
plansforcertain employeesand advisors aswell as unfunded supplementary
employee retirement plans (SERP) for certain employees. The Corporation's
subsidiaries also maintain defined contribution pension plans for eligible
employees and advisors.

The defined benefit pension plans provide pensions based on length of service
and final average earnings. For most plans, active plan participants share
in the cost by making contributions in respect of current service. Certain
pension payments are indexed either on an ad hoc basis or a guaranteed
basis. The determination of the defined benefit obligation reflects pension
benefits, inaccordance with the terms of the plans, and assuming the plans
arenotterminated. The assets supporting the funded pension plans are held
inseparate trusteed pension funds. The obligations for the wholly unfunded
plansare supported by general assets.

Effective July1, 2012, the defined benefit pension plan of IGM was closed and
will only accept members hired priortoJuly1, 2012. For all eligible employees
hired after July 1, 2012, IGM introduced a registered defined contribution
pension plan.

EffectiveJanuary1,2013, both the Great-West Life Assurance Company Canadian
Employees’ Pension Plan and the London Life Staff Pension Plan added a
defined contribution provision to their plans. All new hires after this date
are eligible only for defined contribution benefits. This change is consistent
with the benefit provisions of the majority of Lifeco’s pension plans and will
continue to reduce Lifeco’s defined benefit plan exposure in future years.

Subsidiaries of Lifeco have declared partial windups in respect of certain
defined benefit pension plans. Lifeco holds after-tax provisionsin theamount
of $34 million for these plans.
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The defined contribution pension plans provide pension benefits based on
accumulated employee and company contributions. Contributions to these
plans are a set percentage of employees' annual income and may be subject
to certainvesting requirements.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries also provide post-employment health,
dental and life insurance benefits to eligible employees, advisors and their
dependents. These post-employment benefits are not pre-funded. The
amount of theobligation for these benefitsisincluded in other liabilities and
issupported by general assets.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries have pension and benefit committees
or a trustee arrangement that provides oversight for the benefit plans.
The benefit plans are monitored on an ongoing basis to assess the benefit,
funding and investment policies, financial status, and funding requirements
of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. Significant changes to benefit plans
requireapproval.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries’ funding policy for the funded pension
plansis to make annual contributions equal to or greater than those required
by the applicable regulations and plan provisions that govern the funding
of the plans. Where funded plans have a net defined benefit asset, the
Corporation and its subsidiaries determine if an economic benefit exists in
the form of potential reductions in future contributions and in the form of
surplusrefunds, where permitted by applicable regulation and plan provisions.

By their design, the defined benefit plans expose the Corporation and
its subsidiaries to the typical risks faced by defined benefit plans such as
investment performance, changes to the discount rates used to value
the obligations, longevity of plan members, and future inflation. Pension
and benefit risk is managed by regular monitoring of the plans, applicable
regulationsand otherfactors that could impact the expenses and cash flows
of the Corporation andits subsidiaries.



PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS continuep)

PLAN ASSETS, BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS AND FUNDED STATUS

2013 2012
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
PENSION EMPLOYMENT PENSION EMPLOYMENT
DECEMBER 31 PLANS BENEFITS PLANS BENEFITS
CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS
Fairvalue of planassets, beginning of year 3,539 = 3,359 -
Interestincome 176 - 168 -
Employee contributions 22 = 20 -
Employer contributions 164 19 93 19
Actual return over interestincome 310 = 112 -
Benefits paid (210) (19) (185) (19)
Administrative expenses 6) - (5) -
Acquisition of Irish Life 1,196 = - -
Foreign exchange and other 158 - (23) -
Fairvalue of plan assets, end of year 5,349 = 3,539 -
CHANGE IN DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of year 4,389 470 3,868 449
Current service cost 125 4 91 3
Employee contributions 22 - 20 -
Interest cost 212 19 191 22
Actuarial (gains) losses on:
Financial assumption changes (332) (29) 416 49
Demographicassumption changes 37 11) 9 10
Arising from member experience 8 3 3 (44)
Benefits paid (210) (19) (185) (19)
Past service cost 1 - 1 -
Acquisition of Irish Life 1,202 = - -
Foreign exchange and other 199 1 (25) -
Defined benefit obligation, end of year 5,653 438 4,389 470
FUNDED STATUS
Fund deficit (304) (438) (850) (470)
Unrecognized amount due to limit on asset (44) - (41) -
Accrued benefit liability (348) (438) (891) (470)
The aggregate defined benefit obligation of pension plans is as follows:
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Wholly or partly funded plans 5229 3,975
Wholly unfunded plans 424 414
The net accrued benefit asset (liability) shown above is presented in these financial statements as follows:
2013 2012
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
PENSION EMPLOYMENT PENSION EMPLOYMENT
DECEMBER 31 PLANS BENEFITS TOTAL PLANS BENEFITS TOTAL
Pension benefitasset 408 - 408 202 - 202
Pension and other post-employment benefit liabilities (756) (438) (1,194) (1,093) (470) (1,563)
Accrued benefit asset (liability) (348) (438) (786) (891) (470) (1,361)
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PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS continuep)

Under International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
14, The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction, the Corporation and its subsidiaries must assess whether the
pension asset is of economic benefit to the Corporation and its subsidiaries

through future contribution reductions or refunds. In the event the
Corporationandits subsidiaries are not entitled to a benefit, a limit or "asset
ceiling"is required on the balance. Thefollowing provides a breakdown of the
changesin theasset ceiling.

DECEMBER 31 2013 2012
Asset ceiling, beginning of year 41 71
Interest on beginning of period asset ceiling 4
Changein asset ceiling 1 (34)
Asset ceiling, end of year 44 41
PENSION AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSE
2013 2012
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
DECEMBER 31 Thias " eenents Toas " aenerms
Defined benefit current service cost 147 4 111 3
Employee contributions 22) - (20) -
125 4 91 3
Netinterest cost 38 19 27 22
Past service cost = 1 -
Administration fees - 5 -
Defined contribution current service cost 31 = 26 -
Expense recognized in net earnings 201 23 150 25
Actuarial (gain) loss recognized (287) (37) 428 15
Return on assets (greater) less than assumed (310) - (112) -
Effect of the asset ceiling 1 - (34) -
Expense recognized in other comprehensive income (596) (37) 282 15
Total expense (income) (395) (14) 432 40

During 2013, the Corporation and its subsidiaries incurred $23 million of actuarial gains (57 million of actuarial losses in 2012) for pension plan remeasurements
notincludedin the table shown above. This primarily relates to the share of actuarial gains (losses) for investments accounted for under the equity method.

ASSET ALLOCATION BY MAJOR CATEGORY WEIGHTED BY PLAN ASSETS

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

% DECEMBER 31,2013 DECEMBER 31,2012 JANUARY 1, 2012
Equity securities 54 52 47
Debt securities 37 38 41
All otherassets 9 10 12

100 100 100

No plan assets are directly invested in the Corporation’s or subsidiaries’
securities. Lifeco's plan assets include investments in segregated funds
and other funds managed by subsidiaries of Lifeco in the balance sheet of
$3,012 million at December 31, 2013 ($1,523 million at December 31, 2012 and
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$1,430 million at January 1, 2012). Plan assets do not include any property
occupied orotherassetsused by Lifeco. IGM's plan assetsare invested in IGM's
mutual funds. Power Financial's plan assetsareinvested in segregated funds
managed by a subsidiary of Lifeco.



PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS continuen)
DETAILS OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

PORTION OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION SUBJECT TO FUTURE SALARIES

2013 2012
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
PENSION EMPLOYMENT PENSION EMPLOYMENT
DECEMBER 31 PLANS BENEFITS PLANS BENEFITS
Benefit obligation without future salary increases 5,036 438 4,030 470
Effect of assumed future salary increases 617 = 359 -
Defined benefit obligation 5,653 438 4,389 470
ALLOCATION OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION BY MEMBERSHIP
2013 2012
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
DECEMBER 31 PENSION EMPLOYMENT PENSION EMPLOYMENT
% PLANS BENEFITS PLANS BENEFITS
Actives 46 25 44 27
Deferred vesteds 15 = 15 -
Retirees 39 75 41 73
Total 100 100 100 100
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years) 18.2 11.9 16.3 12.7
CASH FLOW INFORMATION
The expected employer contributions for the year 2014 are as follows:
DEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT
PENSION PLANS BENEFITS
Funded (wholly or partly) defined benefit plans 118 -
Unfunded defined benefit plans 22 22
Defined contribution plans 34 -
Total 174 22
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND SENSITIVITIES
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
DEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT
PENSION PLANS BENEFITS
% 2013 2012 2013 2012
RANGE OF DISCOUNT RATES
To determine benefit cost 41-406 45-55 41-45 45-51
To determine accrued benefit obligation at year-end 47-51 41-46 47-5.0 41-45
WEIGHTED AVERAGE ASSUMPTIONS USED TO DETERMINE BENEFIT COSTW
Discountrate 4.4 51 4.2 51
Rate of compensation increase 3.2 3.6 - -
WEIGHTED AVERAGE ASSUMPTIONS USED TO DETERMINE ACCRUED BENEFIT OBLIGATION
AT YEAR-ENDM
Discountrate 4.7 4.4 4.8 4.2
Rate of compensation increase 3.3 3.2 = -
WEIGHTED AVERAGE HEALTHCARE TREND RATES!
Initial healthcare trend rate 6.4 6.5
Ultimate healthcare trend rate 4.5 4.5
Year ultimate trend rate is reached 2024 2024

[1] Basedonthe obligations of each plan.
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PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS continuep)

SAMPLE LIFE EXPECTANCIES BASED ON MORTALITY ASSUMPTIONS

2013 2012
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
PENSION EMPLOYMENT PENSION EMPLOYMENT
DECEMBER 31 PLANS BENEFITS PLANS BENEFITS
Weighted average life expectancies based on mortality assumptions®:
Male
Age 65 in fiscal year 22.0 21.4 21.0 20.8
Age 65in fiscal year +30 years 243 23.0 233 22.9
Female
Age 65 in fiscal year 239 23.7 231 23.2
Age 65in fiscal year +30 years 25.8 25.0 24.5 24.3

[1] Basedonthe obligations of each plan.

Mortality assumptions are significant in measuring the defined benefit
obligation for defined benefit plans. The period of time over which benefits
are assumed to be paid is based on best estimates of future mortality,
including allowances for mortality improvements. This estimate is subject

its subsidiaries take into consideration average life expectancy, including
allowances for future mortality improvement as appropriate, and reflect
variations in such factors asage, gender and geographiclocation.

The mortality tables are reviewed at least annually, and assumptions are in

to considerable uncertainty and judgment is required in establishing this
assumption. The mortality assumptions applied by the Corporation and

accordance with accepted actuarial practice. Emerging plan experience is
reviewed and considered in establishing the best estimate for future mortality.

IMPACT OF CHANGES TO ASSUMPTIONS

DECEMBER 31,2013 1% INCREASE 1% DECREASE

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS:

Impact of a change to the discount rate (856) 1,100
Impact of a change to the rate of compensationincrease 268 (218)
Impact of a change to the rate of inflation 662 (523)
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:

Impact of a change to assumed medical cost trend rates 45 (37)
Impact of a change to the discount rate (48) 58

Tomeasure theimpact of achangeinanassumption, all otherassumptions were held constant. It would be expected that there would be interaction between
atleast some of the assumptions and therefore the sensitivity analysis presented may not be representative of the actual change.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Inthe normal course of managing exposure to fluctuations ininterest rates, foreign exchangerates, and to market risks, the Corporation andits subsidiaries
are end-users of various derivative financial instruments. Contracts are either exchange traded or over-the-counter traded with counterparties that are

credit-worthy financial intermediaries.

The following table summarizes the portfolio of derivative financial instruments of the Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31:

NOTIONALAMOUNT

TOTAL

1YEAR 1-5 OVER MAXIMUM ESTIMATED
2013 ORLESS YEARS 5YEARS TOTAL CREDITRISK FAIR VALUE
DERIVATIVES NOT DESIGNATED AS ACCOUNTING HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Futures—long 4 = = 4 = =
Futures—short 13 = = 13 = =
Swaps 2,455 3,191 990 6,636 269 176
Options purchased 265 327 89 681 30 30
2,737 3,518 1,079 7,334 299 206
Foreign exchange contracts
Forward contracts 602 476 = 1,078 11 6
Cross-currency swaps 213 2,053 4,986 7,252 313 (167)
815 2,529 4,986 8,330 324 (161)
Other derivative contracts
Equity contracts 10,660 102 - 10,762 11 (90)
Futures—long 15 = = 15 = =
Futures —short 301 - - 301 - 6)
Otherforward contracts 157 = = 157 = =
11,133 102 = 11,235 11 (96)
14,685 6,149 6,065 26,899 634 (51)
CASH FLOW HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Swaps = = 33 33 7 7
Foreign exchange contracts
Cross-currency swaps = 1,500 12 1,512 = (94)
Other derivative contracts
Forward contracts and total return swap 15 17 = 32 8 8
15 1,517 45 1,577 15 (79)
FAIRVALUE HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Swaps = 17 66 83 5 5
14,700 7,683 6,176 28,559 654 (125)
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

NOTIONALAMOUNT

TOTAL

1YEAR 1-5 OVER MAXIMUM ESTIMATED
2012 OR LESS YEARS SYEARS TOTAL CREDITRISK FAIR VALUE
DERIVATIVES NOT DESIGNATED AS ACCOUNTING HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Futures —long 9 - - 9 - -
Futures —short 71 - - 71 - -
Swaps 1,844 2,613 1,348 5,805 410 318
Options purchased 257 513 87 857 46 46
2,181 3,126 1,435 6,742 456 364
Foreign exchange contracts
Forward contracts 300 - - 300 1 -
Cross-currency swaps 205 2,001 4,772 6,978 565 290
505 2,001 4,772 7,278 566 290
Other derivative contracts
Equity contracts 900 4 - 904 8 (5)
Futures—long 7 - - 7 - -
Futures—short 224 - - 224 - 4)
Otherforward contracts 290 - - 290 - -
1,421 4 - 1,425 8 (9)
4,107 5,131 6,207 15,445 1,030 645
CASH FLOW HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Swaps - - 30 30 14 13
Foreign exchange contracts
Cross-currency swaps - 1,000 500 1,500 16 (8)
Other derivative contracts
Forward contracts and total return swap 3 18 - 21 - 2)
3 1,018 530 1,551 30 3
FAIR VALUE HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Swaps - 58 124 182 - 1)
4,110 6,207 6,861 17,178 1,060 647

The amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of the
instrumentswhichareinagain position. The credit riskis presented without
giving effect to any netting agreements and does not reflect actual or
expected losses. The total estimated fair value represents the total amount
that the Corporationand its subsidiaries would receive (or pay) to terminate
all agreements at year-end. However, this would not result in a gain or loss
to the Corporation and its subsidiaries as the derivative instruments which
correlate to certain assetsand liabilities provide offsetting gains or losses.

INTEREST RATE CONTRACTS

Interest rate swaps, futures and options are used as part of a portfolio of
assets to manage interest rate risk associated with investment activities
and insurance and investment contract liabilities and to reduce the impact
of fluctuating interest rates on the mortgage banking operations and
intermediary operations. Interest rate swap agreements require the periodic
exchange of payments without the exchange of the notional principalamount
onwhich payments are based.
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Calloptions grant the Corporation and its subsidiaries the right to enterinto
a swap with predetermined fixedrate payments over a predetermined time
period on the exercise date. Call options are used to manage the variability
infutureinterest paymentsduetoachangeincredited interestratesand the
related potential changein cash flows due to surrenders. Call options are also
used to hedge minimum rate guarantees.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Cross-currency swaps are used in combination with other investments to
manage foreign currency risk associated with investment activities and
insurance and investment contract liabilities. Under these swaps, principal
amounts and fixed and floating interest payments may be exchanged in
different currencies. The Corporation and its subsidiaries may also enter
into certain foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge certain product
liabilities, cash and cash equivalents and cash flows.



DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueD)

OTHER DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Equity index swaps, futures and options are used to hedge certain product
liabilities. Equity index swapsarealso used as substitutes for cash instruments
and are used to periodically hedge the market risk associated with certain
fee income. Equity put options are used to manage the potential credit risk
impact of significant declines in certain equity markets.

Forward agreements and total return swaps are used to manage exposure
to fluctuations in the total return of common shares related to deferred
compensation arrangements. Total return swap and forward agreements
require the exchange of net contractual payments periodically orat maturity
without the exchange of the notional principal amounts on which the
payments are based. Certain of these instruments are not designated as
hedges. Changes in fair value are recorded in operating and administrative
expensesin the statements of earnings for thoseinstruments not designated
ashedges.

ENFORCEABLE MASTER NETTING

AGREEMENTS OR SIMILAR AGREEMENTS

The following disclosure shows the potential effect on the Corporation’s
balance sheets on financial instruments that have been shown in a gross
position where right of set-off exists under certain circumstances that do
not qualify for netting on the balance sheets.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries enter into the International Swaps and
Derivative Association's masteragreements for transacting over-the-counter
derivatives. The Corporation andits subsidiaries receive and pledge collateral
according to the related International Swaps and Derivative Association’s
Credit Support Annexes. The International Swaps and Derivative Association’s
master agreements do not meet the criteria for offsetting on the balance
sheets because they create a right of set-off that is enforceable only in the
event of default, insolvency, or bankruptcy.

For exchange-traded derivatives subject to derivative clearing agreements
with exchangesand clearing houses, thereis no provision for set-off at default.
Initial margin is excluded from the table below as it would become part of a
pooled settlement process.

Lifeco's reverse repurchase agreements are also subject to right of set-off
in the event of default. These transactions and agreements include master
nettingarrangements which provide for the netting of payment obligations
between Lifeco and its counterparties in the event of default.

RELATED AMOUNTS NOT SET OFF IN THE BALANCE SHEETS

GROSS AMOUNT

OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS FINANCIAL

PRESENTED IN OFFSETTING COLLATERAL

THE BALANCE COUNTERPARTY RECEIVED / NET
DECEMBER 31, 2013 SHEET posITION1 PLEDGED[2] EXPOSURE
FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS (ASSETS)
Derivative financial instruments 654 (271) (22) 361
Reverse repurchase agreements!® 87 - (87) -
Total financial instruments (assets) 741 (271) (109) 361
FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS (LIABILITIES)
Derivative instruments 779 (271) (199) 309
Total financial instruments (liabilities) 779 (271) (199) 309

RELATED AMOUNTS NOT SET OFF IN THE BALANCE SHEETS

GROSS AMOUNT

OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS FINANCIAL

PRESENTED IN OFFSETTING COLLATERAL

THE BALANCE COUNTERPARTY RECEIVED / NET
DECEMBER 31, 2012 SHEET posiTIoN(L PLEDGEDI2! EXPOSURE
FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS (ASSETS)
Derivative financial instruments 1,060 (275) (25) 760
Reverse repurchase agreements!® 101 - (101) -
Total financial instruments (assets) 1,161 (275) (126) 760
FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS (LIABILITIES)
Derivative instruments 413 (275) (96) 42
Total financial instruments (liabilities) 413 (275) (96) 42

[1] Includes counterparty amounts recognized on the balance sheets where the Corporation has a potential offsetting position (as described above) but does not

meet the criteria for offsetting on the balance sheets, excluding collateral.

[2] Financial collateral presented above excludes overcollateralization and, for exchange-traded derivatives, initial margin. Financial collateral received on reverse
repurchase agreements is held by a third party. Total financial collateral, including initial margin and overcollateralization, received on derivative assets was
$22 million ($25 million at December 31, 2012), received on reverse repurchase agreements was $89 million (6103 million at December 31, 2012), and pledged

on derivative liabilities was $222 million ($118 million at December 31, 2012).

[3] Assetsrelated to reverse repurchase agreements are included in bonds in the balance sheets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of the
Corporation’s financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels
in the fair value hierarchy using the valuation methods and assumptions
described in the summary of significant accounting policies and below. Fair
valuesare management's estimatesand are generally calculated using market
information at a specific pointin time and may not reflect future fair values.
The calculations are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties and matters
of significant judgment. The table distinguishes between those financial
instruments recorded at fair value and those recorded at amortized cost.

The table excludes fair value information for financial assets and financial
liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of the fair value. The excluded items are cash and cash
equivalents, dividends, interest and accounts receivable, income tax
receivable, loans to policyholders, certain other financial assets, accounts
payable, repurchase agreements, dividends payable, interest payable, income
tax payable and certain other financial liabilities.

CARRYING TOTAL
DECEMBER 31, 2013 VALUE LEVEL1 LEVEL2 LEVEL3 FAIR VALUE
FINANCIALASSETS
Financial assets recorded at fairvalue
Bonds
Fairvalue through profit or loss 70,104 = 69,771 333 70,104
Available for sale 8,370 = 8,346 24 8,370
Mortgage and otherloans
Fairvalue through profit orloss 324 - 324 - 324
Shares
Fairvalue through profit or loss 7,297 7,264 7 26 7,297
Available for sale 117 116 - 1 117
Investment properties 4 288 = = 4 288 4288
Derivative instruments 654 - 646 8 654
Otherassets 396 244 131 21 396
91,550 7,624 79,225 4,701 91,550
Financial assets recorded at amortized cost
Bonds
Loansand receivables 11,855 = 12,544 128 12,672
Mortgage and otherloans
Loans andreceivables 24,591 = 19,517 5,695 25,212
Shares
Available for sale™ 632 = = 632 632
37,078 32,061 6,455 38,516
Total financial assets 128,628 7,624 111,286 11,156 130,066
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities recorded at fair value
Investment contract liabilities (889) - (859) (30) (889)
Derivative instruments (779) 6) (749) (24) (779)
Otherliabilities (20) (20) = = (20)
(1,688) (26) (1,608) (54) (1,688)
Financial liabilities recorded atamortized cost
Obligations to securitization entities (5,572) - - (5,671) (5,671)
Debentures and debtinstruments (7,275) (582) (7,409) (75) (8,066)
Capital trust debentures (163) - (205) - (205)
Deposits and certificates (187) - (188) - (188)
(13,197) (582) (7,802) (5,746) (14,130)
Total financial liabilities (14,885) (608) (9,410) (5,800) (15,818)

[1] Fairvalue cannot be reliably measured as these are unique private companies across various industries. In addition, the financial data that the Corporation
receivesisnotavailable on a timely basis to allow accurate estimates on reporting dates, therefore the investments are held at cost.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS conrinuep)

DECEMBER 31, 2012

CARRYING
VALUE

LEVEL1

LEVEL2

LEVEL 3

TOTAL
FAIR VALUE

FINANCIALASSETS
Financial assets recorded at fair value

Bonds
Fairvalue through profit orloss 65,050 225 64,551 274 65,050
Available for sale 7407 - 7,380 27 7407
Mortgage and other loans
Fairvalue through profit or loss 249 - 249 - 249
Shares
Fairvalue through profit or loss 5,949 5,930 12 5,949
Available for sale 138 132 1 138
Investment properties 3,572 - - 3,572 3,572
Derivative instruments 1,060 - 1,060 - 1,060
Otherassets 285 192 84 9 285
83,710 6,479 73,336 3,895 83,710
Financial assets recorded at amortized cost
Bonds
Loans and receivables 10,934 - 12,372 66 12,438
Mortgage and otherloans
Loans and receivables 22,548 - 19,067 4792 23,859
Shares
Available for sale 674 - - 674 674
34,156 - 31,439 5,532 36,971
Total financial assets 117,866 6,479 104,775 9,427 120,681
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities recorded at fair value
Investment contract liabilities (739) - (706) (33) (739)
Derivative instruments (413) 4 (353) (56) (413)
Otherliabilities (141) (141) - - (141)
(1,293) (145) (1,059) (89) (1,293)
Financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost
Obligations to securitization entities (4,701) - - (4,787) (4,787)
Debentures and debtinstruments (5,817) (295) (6,484) - (6,779)
Capital trust debentures (164) - (216) - (216)
Deposits and certificates (163) - (165) - (165)
(10,845) (295) (6,865) (4,787) (11,947)
Total financial liabilities (12,138) (440) (7,924) (4,876) (13,240)

There were no significant transfers between LevelTand Level 2in 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS conrinuep)

The Corporation’s financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair
value have been categorized based upon the following fair value hierarchy:

> Level 1inputs utilize observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets foridentical assets or liabilities that the Corporation has the ability
to access. Financial assets and liabilities utilizing Level 1inputs include
actively exchange-traded equity securities, exchange-traded futures,
and mutual and segregated funds which have available pricesinan active
market with no redemption restrictions. LevelTassets also include, open-
end investment fund units, and investments in Government of Canada
Bonds and Canada Mortgage Bonds in instances where there are quoted
prices available from active markets.

Level 2 inputs utilize other-than-quoted prices included in Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level
2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets, and inputs other-than-quoted prices that are observable for the
assetorliability, suchasinterestratesandyield curves thatare observable
at commonly quoted intervals. The fair values for some Level 2 securities
were obtained from a pricing service. The pricing service inputs include,
but are not limited to, benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer
quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers
andreferencedata. Level2assetsand liabilities include those priced using

amatrixwhichisbased on credit quality and average life, governmentand
agency securities, restricted stock, some private bonds and equities, most
investment-grade and high-yield corporate bonds, most asset-backed
securities, most over-the-counter derivatives, mortgage loans, deposits
and certificates, and long-term debt. The fair value of derivative financial
instruments and deposits and certificates is determined using valuation
models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques using
primarily observable market inputs. The fair value of long-term debt is
determined using indicative broker quotes. Investment contracts that
are measured at fair value through profit or loss are mostly included in
Level 2 category.

Level 3inputs utilize one or more significant inputs that are not based on
observable market inputs and include situations where there is little, if
any, market activity for the asset or liability. The values of the majority
of Level 3 securities were obtained from single-broker quotes, internal
pricing models, external appraisers or by discounting projected cash flows.
Financial assetsand liabilities utilizing Level 3inputsinclude certain bonds,
certain asset-backed securities, some private equities, some mortgages,
investmentsin mutualand segregated funds where there are redemption
restrictions, certain over-the-counter derivatives, investment properties,
and obligations to securitization entities.

The following table presents additional information about financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for which the

Corporation and its subsidiaries have utilized Level 3inputs to determine fair value for the year ended December 31, 2013.

BONDS SHARES
FAIR VALUE FAIR VALUE OTHER INVESTMENT
THROUGH AVAILABLE THROUGH AVAILABLE INVESTMENT DERIVATIVES, ASSETS CONTRACT
DECEMBER 31, 2013 PROFIT OR LOSS FOR SALE PROFIT OR LOSS FOR SALE PROPERTIES NET (LIABILITIES) LIABILITIES TOTAL
Balance, beginning of year 274 27 12 1 3,572 (56) 9 (33) 3,806
Total gains (losses)
Innetearnings 68 4 1 - 152 18 12 - 255
Inother
comprehensive
incomet = 3 = = 216 = = = 219
Acquisition of Irish
Life [Note 4] 120 = 1 = 248 = = = 369
Purchases = = 21 = 182 3 = = 206
Sales (104) (5) (10) - (82) - - - (201)
Settlements (69) (5) - - - 19 - - (55)
Other = = = = = = = 3 3
Transfersinto Level 3 50 - 1 - - - - - 51
Transfers out of Level 3 6) - - - - - - - 6)
Balance, end of year 333 24 26 1 4,288 (16) 21 (30) 4,647

[1] Amountof other comprehensive income forinvestment properties represents the unrealized gain on foreign exchange.

Transfersinto Level 3are due primarily to decreased observability of inputsin valuation methodologies. Transfers out of Level 3are due primarily toincreased
observability of inputsinvaluation methodologies as evidenced by corroboration of market prices with multiple pricing vendors or the lifting of redemption

restrictions on investments in mutual funds and segregated funds.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS conrinuep)

The following table sets out information about significant unobservable inputs used at period end in measuring financial assets and financial liabilities
categorized as Level 3in thefair value hierarchy.

TYPE OF ASSET

VALUATION APPROACH

SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUT

INPUT VALUE

INTER-RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN
KEY UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Asset-backed securities
(included with bonds)

Discounted cash flow

Prepayment speed assumption
(estimated % of collateral that
prepaysannually)

Constant default rateassumption
(estimated % of defaultsin the
collateral pool annually)

Adjusted asset-backed
securities index (ABX index)
spread assumption (adjusted
forinternally calculated
liquidity premium)

8.5% (weighted average)

5.0% (weighted average)

455 bps (weighted average)

Lifeco does not believe that
changing one or more of the
inputstoreasonably alternate
assumptions would change their
values significantly.

Investment properties

Investment property valuations
are generally determined using
property valuation models based
on expected capitalization
ratesand models that discount
expected future net cash flows.
The determination of the fair
value of investment property
requires the use of estimates
suchasfuture cash flows (such
asfutureleasingassumptions,
rental rates, capitaland
operating expenditures) and
discount, reversionary and overall
capitalization rates applicable
totheasset based on current
market rates.

Discountrate

Reversionary rate

Vacancy rate

Range of 4.0%-11.0%

Rangeof 5.4% —8.3%

Weighted average of 3.1%

Adecreaseinthediscountrate
would resultinanincreasein fair
value. Anincreasein the discount
ratewould resultinadecreasein
fairvalue.

Adecreasein thereversionary
ratewould resultinanincrease
infairvalue. Anincreasein the
reversionary rate would resultin
adecreasein fairvalue

Adecreasein the expected
vacancy rate would generally
resultinanincreasein fairvalue.
Anincrease in the expected
vacancy rate would generally
resultinadecreasein fairvalue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ITEMS THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED
SUBSEQUENTLY TO NET EARNINGS

ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE
RECLASSIFIED TO NET EARNINGS

SHARE OF ACTUARIAL SHARE OF
INVESTMENT JOINTLY GAIN (LOSSES) JOINTLY
“YNDCASE  CURRENCY CORPORATIONS OMRENERIT  CORPORATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 FLOW HEDGES TRANSLATION ~ AND ASSOCIATE PENSION PLANS ~ AND ASSOCIATE TOTAL

Balance, beginning of year
As previously reported 78 (302) 76 = = (148)
Change inaccounting policy [Note 3] = = = (475) (44) (519)

Asrestated 78 (302) 76 (475) (44) (667)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (128) 564 251 292 19 998
Other 1 2 = 4 = 7

Balance, end of year (49) 264 327 (179) (25) 338

ITEMS THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED ITEMS THATWILLNOT BE

SUBSEQUENTLY TO NET EARNINGS RECLASSIFIED TO NET EARNINGS

SHARE OF ACTUARIAL SHARE OF

INVESTMENT JOINTLY GAIN (LOSSES) JOINTLY
YNDCASE  CURRENCY  CORPORATIONS OMTBENEFIT  CORPORATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 FLOW HEDGES TRANSLATION  AND ASSOCIATE PENSION PLANS ~ AND ASSOCIATE TOTAL

Balance, beginning of year
As previously reported 96 (249) 176 - - 23
Change inaccounting policy [Note 3] - - - (335) (37) (372)

Asrestated 96 (249) 176 (335) (37) (349)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (18) (53) (100) (140) 7) (318)

Balance, end of year 78 (302) 76 (475) (44) (667)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Thefollowingis a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators used in the computations of earnings per share:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012

EARNINGS

Net earnings attributable to shareholders 2,027 1,735

Dividends on perpetual preferred shares (131) (117)

Net earnings attributable to common shareholders 1,896 1,618

Dilutive effect of subsidiaries (28) )

Diluted net earnings attributable to common shareholders 1,868 1,609

NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES (millions)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding — Basic 710.8 708.3
Exercise of outstanding stock options 7.4 3.6
Shares assumed to be repurchased with proceeds from exercise of stock options (7.0) (3.2)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding — Diluted 711.2 708.7

NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic 2.67 2.29

Diluted 2.63 2.27

For2013,141,415 stock options (5,190,730 in 2012) have been excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as the exercise price was higher than

the market price.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Corporation and its subsidiaries are from time to time subject to legal
actions, including arbitrations and classactions, arising in the normal course
of business. It is inherently difficult to predict the outcome of any of these
proceedings with certainty, and it is possible that an adverse resolution
could have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of
the Corporation. However, based on information presently known, itis not
expected that any of the existing legal actions, either individually orin the
aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position of the Corporation.

LIFECO

Asubsidiary of Lifeco, Canada Life, has declared a partial windup in respect of
an Ontario defined benefit pension plan which will not likely be completed for
some time. The partial windup could involve the distribution of the amount
of actuarial surplus, if any, attributable to the wound-up portion of the plan.
In addition to the regulatory proceedings involving this partial windup, a
related class action proceeding has been commenced in Ontario related to
the partial windup and three potential partial windups under the plan. The
classactionalso challenges thevalidity of charging expensesto the plan. The
provisionsfor certain Canadian retirement plansin theamounts of $97 million
aftertaxestablished by Lifeco's subsidiaries in the third quarter of 2007 have
beenreducedto $34 millionin the fourth quarter of 2012. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

In connection with the acquisition of its subsidiary Putnam, Lifeco has an
indemnity from a third party against liabilities arising from certain litigation
andregulatoryactionsinvolving Putnam. Putnam continues to have potential
liability for these matters in the event the indemnity is not honoured. Lifeco
expects the indemnity will continue to be honoured and that any liability
of Putnam would not have a material adverse effect on its consolidated
financial position.

On October 17,2012, a subsidiary of Lifeco, Putnam Advisory Company, LLC,
received an administrative complaint from the Massachusetts Securities
Division in relation to that subsidiary's role as collateral manager of two
collateralized debt obligations. The complaint is seeking certain remedies,
including the disgorgement of fees, a civil administrative fine and a cease
and desist order. In addition, that same subsidiary was a defendant in two
civillitigation matters brought by institutionsinvolved in those collateralized
debtobligations. Inthe third quarter of 2013, one of the civil litigation matters
was dismissed. Based oninformation presently known, Lifeco believes these
matters are without merit. The potential outcome of these matters is not
yetdetermined.

During thefirst quarter of 2013, Lifeco completed a review of the contingencies
relating to the cost of acquiring Canada Life Financial Corporation in2003 and
reduced the existing provision from $41 million to $7 million. This provision
was furtherreduced to nilin the fourth quarter of 2013.

Lifeco and its subsidiaries London Life and Great-West Life are defendantsin
class proceedings in Ontario regarding the participation of the London Life
and Great-West Life participating accounts in the financing of the acquisition
of London Insurance Group Inc. in1997 by Great-West Life.

The Ontario Superior Court of Justice released its trial decision on OctoberT,
2010. Lifeco andits subsidiaries appealed and the Court of Appeal for Ontario
released its decision on November 3, 2011. The Court of Appeal ordered that
there be adjustments to the October 1, 2010 trial judgment regarding the
amounts which were to be reallocated to the participating accounts and
directed the parties back to the trial judge to determine these amounts
and address the remaining issues. On May 24, 2012, the Supreme Court of
Canada dismissed the plaintiffs' application for leave to appeal the Court of
Appeal decision.

The parties returned to the trial judge and, on January 24, 2013 the Ontario
Superior Court of Justice released a decision ordering that $298 million
be reallocated to the participating account surplus. Lifeco established an
incremental provision in the December 31, 2012 financial statements of
$140 million after taxin its common shareholders account to hold $290 million
in after-tax provisions for these proceedings.

During thefirst quarter of 2013 Lifeco subsidiaries London Life and Great-West
Life reallocated an amount of $298 million to the participating account
surplusinaccordance with the January 24, 2013 decision and Lifeco therefore
reduced the litigation provision in its common shareholders account. The
monies to be relocated to the participating accounts are to be dealt with
in accordance with Lifeco subsidiaries’ participating policyholder dividend
policies in the ordinary course of business. No awards are to be paid out to
individual class members.

Lifeco subsidiaries London Life and Great-West Life appealed the
January 24, 2013 decision and the appeal was heard September 4, 2013. The
Court of Appeal for Ontario reserved its decision.

Subsequent event — Participating account legal matter The Court
of Appeal for Ontario released a decision on February 3, 2014 overturning
the January 24, 2013 decision of the Ontario Superior Court of Justice and
reducing the amount to be reallocated to the participating account surplus
to $52 million, which positively impacted Lifeco’s common shareholders' net
earnings by $226 million after tax. There will not be any impact on Lifeco's
capital position oronits participating policy contract terms and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

GUARANTEES

In the normal course of operations, the Corporation and its subsidiaries
execute agreements that provide for indemnifications to third parties in
transactions such as business dispositions, business acquisitions, loans and
securitization transactions. The Corporation and its subsidiaries have also
agreed toindemnify theirdirectors and certain of their officers. The nature of
these agreements precludes the possibility of making a reasonable estimate
of the maximum potential amount the Corporation and its subsidiaries
could berequired to pay third parties as the agreements often do not specify
a maximum amount and the amounts are dependent on the outcome of
future contingent events, the nature and likelihood of which cannot be
determined. Historically, the Corporation has not made any payments under
such indemnification agreements. No amounts have been accrued related
to theseagreements.

LETTERS OF CREDIT

Letters of credit are written commitments provided by a bank. For Lifeco,
the total amount of letter of credit facilities is US$3.0 billion, of which
USS2.7 billion were issued as of December 31, 2013.

The Reinsurance operation periodically uses letters of credit as collateral
under certain reinsurance contracts for on-balance sheet policy liabilities.

INVESTMENT COMMITMENTS

With respect to Lifeco, commitments to investment transactions made in the
normal course of operations in accordance with policies and guidelines and
thatareto bedisbursed upon fulfilment of certain contract conditions were
$466 million as at December 31,2013 ($516 million as at December 31, 2012). At
December 31,2013, the fullamount of $466 million will mature within1year (at
December 31,2012, $470 million was to mature within1year and $46 million
in1-2years).

INVESTED ASSETS ON DEPOSIT

FOR REINSURANCE AGREEMENTS

As at December 31,2013, Lifeco has $582 million (5606 million at December 31,
2012) of invested assets maintained on deposit in respect of certain
reinsurance agreements. Lifeco retains all rights to the cash flows on these
assets, however, theinvestment policies for these assetsare governed by the
terms of the reinsurance agreements.

COMMITMENTS

The Corporation and its subsidiaries enter into operating leases for office
spaceand certain equipment usedinthe normal course of operations. Lease
payments are charged to operations over the period of use. The future
minimum lease payments in aggregate and by year are as follows:

2019 AND
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 THEREAFTER TOTAL
Future lease payments 154 136 117 98 77 125 707
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURE
The financial statements of Power Financial include the operations of the following subsidiaries and joint venture:
CORPORATION INCORPORATED IN PRIMARY BUSINESS OPERATION % HELD
Great-West Lifeco Inc. Canada Financial services holding company 67
The Great-West Life Assurance Company Canada Insurance and wealth management 100
London Life Insurance Company Canada Insurance and wealth management 100
The Canada Life Assurance Company Canada Insurance and wealth management 100
Irish Life Group Limited Ireland Insurance and wealth management 100
Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company United States Insurance and wealth management 100
Putnam Investments, LLC United States Financial services 95.6
IGM Financial Inc. Canada Financial services 58.6
Investors Group Inc. Canada Financial services 100
Mackenzie Financial Corporation Canada Financial services 100
Parjointco N.V. (joint venture) Netherlands Holding company 50
Pargesa Holding SA Switzerland Holding company 55.6

Balancesand transactions between the Corporation andits subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Corporation, have been eliminated on consolidation
and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the Corporation and other related parties are disclosed below.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continueD)

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In the normal course of business, Great-West Life enters into various
transactions with related companies which include providing insurance
benefits and sub-advisory services to other companies within the
Power Financial group of companies. Inall cases, transactions are at market
terms and conditions.

During 2013, IGM sold residential mortgage loans to Great-West Life, London
Life and segregated funds maintained by London Life for $204 million
($232 million in 2012).

Lifeco provides reinsurance, asset managementand administrative services
for employee benefit plans relating to pension and other post-employment
benefits foremployees of Power Financial and Lifeco and its subsidiaries.

On January 7, 2014, the Corporation renewed its tax loss consolidation
transactions with IGM. The Corporation acquired $1.67 billion of 4.50%
secured debentures of IGM. As sole consideration for the debentures a wholly
owned subsidiary of Power Financial issued $1.67 billion of 4.51% preferred
sharestoIGM. The Corporation haslegally enforceable rights to settle these
financial instruments on a net basis and the Corporation intends to exercise
theserights.

KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Corporation, directly or indirectly. The persons included in the key
management personnel are the members of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation, as well as certain management executives of the Corporation
and its subsidiaries.

Thefollowing table describes all compensation paid to, awarded to, or earned by each of the key management personnel for services rendered in all capacities

tothe Corporation and its subsidiaries:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013 2012

Compensation and employee benefits 19 16

Post-employment benefits

Share-based payments 9 9
32 32

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Corporation's reportable operating segments are Lifeco, IGM and
Parjointco. These reportable segments reflect Power Financial's management
structure and internal financial reporting. The following provides a brief
description of the three reportable operating segments:

> Lifecooffers, in Canada, the United States, Europe and Asia, a wide range of
lifeinsurance, retirementand investment products, aswellasreinsurance
and specialty general insurance products, to individuals, businesses and
other private and public organizations.

> IGM offers a comprehensive package of financial planning services and
investment products to its client base. IGM derives its revenues from
a range of sources, but primarily from management fees, which are
charged to its mutual funds for investment advisory and management
services. IGM also earns revenue from fees charged to its mutual funds for
administrative services.

> Parjointco holds the Corporation’'sinterestin Pargesa, a holding company
with diversified interests in Europe-based companies active in various
sectors: minerals-based specialties for industry; cement, aggregates
and concrete; oil, gas and alternative energies; electricity, natural gas,
and energy and environmental services; water and waste management
services; wines and spirits; and testing, inspection and certification.

The column entitled Corporate is made up of corporate activities of
Power Financial and also includes consolidation elimination entries.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are those described in
Note 2 - Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
of these financial statements.

The Corporation evaluates the performance based on the operating segment’s
contribution to consolidated net earnings. Revenuesandassetsareattributed
to geographicareasbased on the point of origin of revenues and the location
of assets. The contribution to consolidated net earnings of each segment is
calculated after taking into account the investment Lifeco and IGM have in
each other.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENTED INFORMATION (conTinueD)

INFORMATION ON PROFIT MEASURE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 LIFECO IGM PARJOINTCO CORPORATE TOTAL
REVENUES
Premiumincome, net 20,236 = = = 20,236
Investmentincome, net 2,605 177 - (121) 2,661
Feeincome 3,585 2,513 - (165) 5,933
26,426 2,690 = (286) 28,830
EXPENSES
Total paid or credited to policyholders 17,811 = = = 17,811
Commissions 1,869 886 - (165) 2,590
Operating and administrative expenses 3,693 730 = 51 4 474
Financing charges 292 92 = 16 400
23,665 1,708 = (98) 25,275
2,761 982 = (188) 3,555
Share of earnings of investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate 20 - 114 - 134
Earnings before income taxes 2,781 982 114 (188) 3,689
Income taxes 463 211 = 4 678
Contribution to net earnings 2,318 771 114 (192) 3,011
Attributable to
Non-controlling interests 776 326 = (118) 984
Perpetual preferred shareholders = = = 131 131
Common shareholders 1,542 445 114 (205) 1,896
2,318 771 114 (192) 3,011
INFORMATION ON ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURE
DECEMBER 31, 2013 LIFECO IGM PARJOINTCO CORPORATE TOTAL
Goodwill 6,272 2,833 = = 9,105
Total assets 325,975 12,340 2,437 959 341,711
Total liabilities 305,906 8,173 = 529 314,608
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31,2013 CANADA UNITED STATES EUROPE TOTAL
Invested assets (including cash and cash equivalents) 67,129 31,206 40,919 139,254
Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate = = 2,664 2,664
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders 62,204 28,168 70,407 160,779
Otherassets 3,650 3,356 17,622 24,628
Goodwilland intangible assets 10,158 1,828 2,400 14,386
Total assets 143,141 64,558 134,012 341,711
Total revenues 15,211 5,231 8,388 28,830

Hé POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2013 ANNUAL REPORT



SEGMENTED INFORMATION (conTinueD)

INFORMATION ON PROFIT MEASURE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 LIFECO IGM PARJOINTCO CORPORATE TOTAL
REVENUES
Premiumincome, net 19,257 - - - 19,257
Investmentincome, net 8,310 153 - (88) 8,375
Feeincome 3,030 2,424 - (152) 5,302
30,597 2,577 - (240) 32,934
EXPENSES
Total paid or credited to policyholders 22,875 - - - 22,875
Commissions 1,781 858 - (152) 2,487
Operating and administrative expenses 3,080 669 - 57 3,806
Financing charges 299 92 - 18 409
28,035 1,619 - (77) 29,577
2,562 958 - (163) 3,357
Share of earnings of investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate - - 130 - 130
Earnings before income taxes 2,562 958 130 (163) 3,487
Income taxes 364 190 - 5 559
Contribution to net earnings 2,198 768 130 (168) 2,928
Attributable to
Non-controlling interests 964 328 - (99) 1,193
Perpetual preferred shareholders - - - 117 117
Common shareholders 1,234 440 130 (186) 1,618
2,198 768 130 (168) 2,928
INFORMATION ON ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURE
DECEMBER 31, 2012 LIFECO IGM PARJOINTCO CORPORATE TOTAL
Goodwill 5,857 2,816 - - 8,673
Total assets 253,924 11,539 2,121 1,002 268,586
Total liabilities 236,839 7,522 - 560 244,921
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2012 CANADA UNITED STATES EUROPE TOTAL
Invested assets (including cash and cash equivalents) 65,084 28722 33,110 126,916
Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate - - 2,121 2,121
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders 54,638 23,809 26,985 105,432
Otherassets 3,889 3,051 13,571 20,511
Goodwilland intangible assets 10,129 1,721 1,756 13,606
Total assets 133,740 57,303 77,543 268,586
Total revenues 16,298 6,422 10,214 32,934
JANUARY 1, 2012 CANADA UNITED STATES EUROPE TOTAL
Invested assets (including cash and cash equivalents) 62,211 27,402 31,063 120,676
Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associate - - 2,205 2,205
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders 49,850 22,359 24776 96,985
Otherassets 3,823 2,962 12,559 19,344
Goodwilland intangible assets 10,280 1,769 1,760 13,809
Total assets 126,164 54,492 72,363 253,019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Power Financial Corporation, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as
at December 31,2013, December 31,2012 and January1,2012, and the consolidated statements of earnings, statements of comprehensive income, statements
of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
thatare free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Anauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on theauditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our auditsis sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Power Financial Corporation as
at December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and January 1, 2012, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
December 31,2012 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Signed,
Deloitte LLP*

March 19, 2014
Montréal, Québec

+ CPA auditor, CA, publicaccountancy permit No. A104630
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POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

DECEMBER 31

CGAAP

[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS] (UNAUDITED) 2013 20120 201112 20100 2009
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4,344 3,313 3,385 3,656 4,855
Total assets 341,711 268,586 252,678 244,644 140,231
Shareholders'equity 16,113 13,563 13,521 12,811 13,207
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
REVENUES
Premium income, net 20,236 19,257 17,293 17,748 18,033
Investmentincome, net 2,661 8,375 9,764 9,600 9,678
Feeincome 5,933 5,302 5,343 5174 4,998
28,830 32,934 32,400 32,522 32,709
EXPENSES
Total paid or credited to policyholders 17,811 22,875 23,043 23,225 23,809
Commissions 2,590 2,487 2,312 2,216 2,088
Operating and administrative expenses 4,474 3,806 3,006 3,837 3,607
Financing charges 400 409 409 432 494
25,275 29,577 28,770 29,710 29,998
3,555 3,357 3,630 2,812 2,711
Share of earnings (losses) of investments in
jointly controlled corporations and associate 134 130 (20) 121 71
Earnings beforeincome taxes — continuing operations 3,689 3,487 3,610 2,933 2,782
Income taxes 678 559 706 523 565
Net earnings —continuing operations 3,011 2,928 2,904 2,410 2,217
Net earnings —discontinued operations = - 63 2 -
Net earnings 3,011 2,928 2,967 2,412 2,217
Attributable to
Non-controlling interests 984 1,193 1,141 845 778
Perpetual preferred shareholders 131 117 104 99 88
Common shareholders 1,896 1,618 1,722 1,468 1,351
3,011 2,928 2,967 2,412 2,217
PER SHARE
Operating earnings attributable to common shareholders 2.40 2.37 2.44 2.30 2.05
Net earnings attributable to common shareholders from discontinued operations = - 0.05 - -
Net earnings attributable to common shareholders 2.67 2.29 2.43 2.08 1.92
Dividends declared on common shares 1.4000 1.4000 1.4000 1.4000 1.4000
Book value at year-end 18.78 15.95 16.26 15.26 16.27
MARKET PRICE (COMMON SHARES)
High 36.79 30.15 31.98 34.23 31.99
Low 27.02 24.06 23.62 27.00 14.66
Year-end 36.00 27.24 25.54 30.73 31.08
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
EARNINGS EARNINGS
PER SHARE PER SHARE
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE ATTRIBUTABLE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON TO COMMON
TOTAL NET TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDERS
IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS] (UNAUDITED) REVENUESH EARNINGS SHAREHOLDERS = BASIC —DILUTED
2013
First quarter 8,150 692 394 0.55 0.55
Second quarter 4,236 780 475 0.67 0.67
Third quarter 7,803 744 434 0.61 0.61
Fourth quarter 8,641 795 593 0.84 0.84
2012
First quarter 7111 710 454 0.64 0.64
Second quarter 8,376 691 429 0.61 0.60
Third quarter 9,216 809 458 0.65 0.65
Fourth quarter 8,231 718 277 0.39 0.38
[1] Duringtheyear, the Corporation reclassified comparative figures for presentation adjustments.
[2] The 2011 and 2010 figures have not been adjusted to reflect current year reclassifications and new and revised IFRS adopted on January 1, 2013.
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CORPORATE
INFORMATION

Additional copies of this Annual Report, as well as copies
of the annual report of Power Corporation of Canada,
are available from the Secretary:

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION
751 Victoria Square or  Suite 2600, Richardson Building
Montréal, Québec 1Lombard Place
Canada H2Y2J3 Winnipeg, Manitoba
Canada R3BO0OX5

STOCK LISTINGS
Shares of Power Financial Corporation are listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange:

COMMON SHARES: PWF

FIRST PREFERRED SHARES:
Series A: PWF.PR.A
Series D: PWF.PR.E

Series L:  PWF.PR.L
Series O: PWF.PR.O

Series E: PWF.PR.F Series P:  PWF.PR.P
Series F.  PWF.PR.G Series R: PWF.PR.R
Series H: PWF.PR.H Series S: PWF.PR.S
Series | PWF.PR.I SeriesT. PWF.PRT

Series K: PWF.PR.K

WEBSITE
www.powerfinancial.com

The trademarks contained in this reportare owned by

Power Financial Corporation ora member of the Power Corporation Group of
Companies™. Trademarks that are not owned by Power Financial Corporation
are used with permission.
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SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Shareholders with questions relating to the payment of
dividends, change of address and share certificates should
contact the Transfer Agent:

Computershare Investor Services Inc.

Shareholder Services

100 University Avenue, 8th Floor

Toronto, Ontario, Canada MS5) 2Y1

Telephone: 1-800-564-6253 (toll-free in Canada and the U.S.)
or 514-982-7555

www.computershare.com

Sivous préférez recevoir ce rapport annuel en francais, veuillez
vous adresser au secrétaire :

CORPORATION FINANCIERE POWER
751, square Victoria ou  Bureau 2600, Richardson Building
Montréal (Québec) 1Lombard Place
Canada H2Y2J3 Winnipeg (Manitoba)
Canada R3B 0X5
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